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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

MEGERER

Results
Turnover
Cost of sales

Gross loss
Other revenue
Other net gains

Selling and distribution expenses

Administrative expenses
Finance costs
Other operating expenses

Loss before taxation
Taxation

Loss for the year

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Loss for the year

Loss per share (cents)
Basic and diluted

Assets and liabilities
Total assets
Total liabilities

Net (liabilities)/assets

Total (deficit)/equity
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Year ended 31 December
BEt-A=1+-HLEE

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
—E-NF “E-—=F —E——%& —E-Tf
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
TERT FEr FEx BT BT
39,678 20,901 14,531 11,186 8,497
(60,591) (47,066) (54,684) (28,358) (16,339)
(20,913) (26,165) (40,153) (17,172) (7,842)
370 432 846 338 1,198
10,490 44,991 5,733 7,332 840
(5,462) (7,567) (94) (367) (207)
(39,560) (35,019) (40,728) (37,315) (32,945)
(50,952) (84,145) (82,414) (62,562) (7,458)
(243,810) (345,687) (538,335) (103,102) -
(349,837) (453,154) (695,145) (212,848) (46,414)
23,351 40,171 30,564 - (4)
(326,486) (412,983) (664,581) (212,848) (46,418)
(279,820) (322,358) (593,133) (207,378) (46,315)
(46,666) (90,625) (71,448) (5,470) (103)
(326,486) (412,983) (664,581) (212,848) (46,418)
(14.27) (22.80) (200.69) 6.32) (2.13)

(Restated)

(&m&5)
295,686 589,058 1,004,176 1,287,377 967,849
(594,739) (793,641) (848,845) (690,502) (605,663)
(299,053) (204,583) 155,331 596,875 362,186
(299,053) (204,583) 155,331 596,875 362,186




Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (“Board”) of directors (“Directors”) of
Ding He Mining Holdings Limited (“Ding He" or “Company”,
together with its subsidiaries “Group”), | am pleased to present
the Group's annual results for the financial year ended 31
December 2014.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

Turnover of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014
was HKD39,678,262 (2013: HKD20,901,439), a surge of 89.8% as
compared to last year. Loss for the year and loss per share
were HKD326,485,766 (2013: HKD412,983,049) and HK14.27
cents (2013: HK22.80 cents) respectively.

During the year, our key turnover-generating business segments
were distressed by the weak magnesium price, the delayed
Indonesian court decision and the limited cash resources of the
Group. For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group
recorded a substantial growth of turnover by 89.8% as
compared to that of 2013 mainly from the sale of magnesium
ingots due to the increased in confidence in us by a major
customer. Yet, this favourable outcome was partially offset by
the stressful cash flow status of the Group that forbid the Group
from expanding and marketing its mineral water business in
China (“Long Chuan”). Accordingly, revenue generated by this
business segment recorded a significant decrease by 80.3% in
2014.

Nevertheless, loss for the year and loss per share of the Group
decreased by 20.9% and 37.4% respectively during the year as
a result of (i) increase in sales of the Smelter, (ii) reduction in
other operating expenses subsequent to the substantial
impairment loss recognised by the Group in previous year and
(i) decrease in finance costs after capitalising the unsecured
loans from third parties.

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EEHE
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EEHE

DIVIDENDS
The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend
(2013: Nil).

BUSINESS

During the financial year of 2014, the nonferrous metals
industry continued to confront the difficult operating
environment and face downward pricing pressure. Considering
the keen competition in the magnesium mining industry and the
depressed magnesium price, the Group maintained the
operation of the smelter in Malaysia by producing refined
magnesium crown. The success in retaining a stable major
customer contributed escalating revenue to this segment at the
amount of HKD38,730,049, representing an increase of 140.6%
compared to last year. Nevertheless, the segment recorded a
segment loss of HKD29,521,729 as a result of surging raw
material and administration costs and exchange loss. In spite of
these unfavourable factors, the Group will strive to implement
more stringent cost control and widen its customer base to this
segment while simultaneously continue to monitor the pricing
of magnesium in order to enhance the operating scale of the
smelter.

The operation in Indonesia has been temporarily suspended
since 2012 by reason of the failure for PT Laksbang Mediatama
(“PTLM"), a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, to (i)
contact its legal representative and certain directors and (ii)
convene general meeting to replace the legal representative
and the members of the board. Accordingly, there was no
material income generated by this business segment during the
year. Subsequently in 2015, the Group received a legal opinion
from the lawyer of PTLM in Indonesia that the court has granted
judgment principally to stipulate PTLM to organise an
extraordinary general meeting properly. In order to resume the
operation of PTLM, the Group will act promptly to assist PTLM
to identify suitable candidates for the replacement of legal
representative and board members.
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The Group has acquired controlling interest in Long Chuan in
2012 with the aim of taking advantage of the growing bottled
water market in China. In spite of this, the development of Long
Chuan was adversely affected by the keen market competition
and the limited cash resources of the Group to carry out
extensive marketing promotion activities. For the year ended 31
December 2014, Long Chuan recorded a material drop of
revenue by 80.3% to HKD948,213. In view of this, the Group has
plans to modify the marketing strategy of Long Chuan in 2015
by focusing its resources on engaging sizeable chain stores
and/or supermarkets for the sale of its products.

During the year, Ding He conducted various corporate exercises
to lower its indebtedness and raise additional working capital
for the Group’s operations. Through the capitalisation of the
unsecured loans from third parties in 2014, the Group's burden
on finance costs was lessened. The placing of 321,636,000
shares under general mandate has raised general working
capital for the Company at the amount of approximately
HKD48,000,000 for the year.

Nevertheless, the Group was unable to repay its outstanding
bank loans and redeem the convertible bonds when they fell
due during the year owing to our limited cash resources. The
default in repayment of bank loans and redemption of
convertible bonds constitute events of default and these
creditors have the right to take legal actions against the
Company to recover the debts. Currently, Directors are using
best efforts to further negotiate with these creditors to
restructure the repayment terms and revise the redemption
terms. We shall continue to monitor the development and
inform the shareholders in due course.

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EEHE

AEBR T _FhIER)INEREE 5 RS
BIRRMPBIREKTISHER < R BE)IMER
AmGHFAURAERETAREEZINREE
BRERMEANANEE B2-_T-0OF+-A
=+t —RLEFE EBIISNKRAKETKS3%E
948,213 87T - BN - REBFEN TR FH
ER/INmgHERERRE  $ERETRESNEHE
K/ BRI IS HERERK o

FR RAMETSBECEETES WAL EEERAR
EEEBELBINEEES - BEBR_T—NFEE
ZHERBRERERL - REBSLURE B E KA
B FR - RIBE—MITHERE 321,636,000 R Ix 15 &
ANATEELE#)48,000,0008 TTH — L EES -

AW ARAEERSERAR - SCRERFAEE
HEHAREERITERLEQDE AR RES - R
BERBTERLBRATBRRESBREY  Z5ER
ABREARRBRBUERITHAKREER - BAT - &
EEBERABNAZSERANE - PEHAEAER
R RIETTERGR - ARRSEB T LR R
& XAER SRR

ANNUAL REPORT £} 2014 07



CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EEHE

OUTLOOK

Looking forward to 2015, it is anticipated that the environment
for the mining business continues to be challenging. In order to
cope with the challenges facing the Group, our strategies are,
on one hand, stabilising our financial position by means of new
funding, indebtedness reduction and stringent cost control
imposition in an attempt to achieve cost efficiency, and on the
other hand, expanding our sources of income by exploring new
markets and customers for our products and keeping close
monitor of magnesium pricing to capture the opportunity to
enhance our production scale. The Group remains cautious in
resolving our contingent liabilities of potential litigations to be
taken by our creditors. We are committed to improve our
operational efficiency and leverage our resources to ameliorate
the credit risk of the Company for the purpose of achieving the
sustainability of the Group.

APPRECIATION

I ' would like to take this opportunity to express my heartfelt
gratitude to my fellow Directors, our staff and stakeholders for
their continuous contributions to the Group.

Du Jian Jun
Chairman and Executive Director
Hong Kong, 31 March 2015
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Ding He Mining Holdings Limited (formerly known as CVM
Minerals Limited) (‘Ding He" or the “Company”, together with
its subsidiaries, the “Group”) operates in the State of Perak,
Malaysia through its wholly owned subsidiary CVYM Magnesium
Sdn. Bhd. ("CVMSB") which is the first primary magnesium
producer in South East Asia. The Group is also engaged in the
extraction and bottling of mineral water in the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC") and the exploration of iron ore, coal and
manganese in the Republic of Indonesia (“Indonesia”).

REVIEW ON EXPLORATION, DEVELOPMENT
AND MINING PRODUCTION ACTIVITIES
Geological Exploration

The Group did not incur any geological exploration expenses
during the financial year 2014 due to the disposal of the entire
equity interest of the Group in the exploration rights in Aceh,
Indonesia and the absence of a legal representative in the
operations in Yogyakarta, Indonesia.

Mining of Dolomite

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group did not
extract any dolomite from the dolomite quarry. Hence, the
accumulated dolomite extracted up to 31 December 2014
remained at 19,970 MT (2013: approximately 19,970 MT). The
expenditure incurred on dolomite mining production activities,
which was mainly minimum royalty payment, for the financial
year ended 31 December 2014 was approximately
HKD11,640,000 (2013: approximately HKD13,210,000).

Iron Ore, Coal and Manganese

The Group did not undertake any exploration, development or
mining production activities of iron ore, coal and manganese in
the financial year ended 31 December 2014. Accordingly, there
was no expenditure incurred in these activities.

THEWES
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
THBFRE S

CREZEN 3
ARRIREMBRARR - E—NER-_F—=F1+=
A=+ BZBREFEEHNOT

Estimated Proved Reserves
The updated mineral reserves of the Company and its
subsidiaries as at 31 December 2014 and 2013 were as follows:

Reserves
identified

by JORC
standard as at
31 December

Reserves
identified

by JORC
standard as at
31 December

2014 2013
Total area (000’ tonnes) (000’ tonnes)
Minerals Location (hectares) (Proved) (Proved)
—E—MF —E—=
+=BA=+—H +=—A=+—H
JORC #3 Bll 3% 7 JORC #3 Bll 3% 7
Zf#E (TH) 2 e (T W)
(%H) (%)
Dolomite Lots: HS (D) 13756, PT 13404 and 13 19,9700 19,9700
HEAR HS (D) 13757, PT 13405
Mukim: Sungai Siput
District: Kuala Kangsar
State: Perak
country: Malaysia
HoER - HS (D) 13756, PT 13404 .
HS (D) 13757, PT 13405
& 15 Sungai Siput
[@ : Kuala Kangsar
I EEM
Bl : BT
Iron Ore@ City: Subulussalam 450 Disposed Exploration
HEA© Subdistrict: Penanggalan BHE activities ceased
Province:  Nanggroe Aceh BELEHTRES
Darussalam
country: Indonesia
W Subulussalam
o Penanggalan
% Nanggroe Aceh
Darussalam
EiER ENfe
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Minerals

Coal?@
Biro

Coal®
Kk e

Manganese®
ﬁ )

Location

Subdistrict:

Regency:
Province:

Country:
ol
& :
A

Bx :

Subdistrict:

Regency:
Province:

Country:
Dl
& :

Subdistrict:

Regency:
Province:

Country:
ol

[

&

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
THEWES

Reserves
identified

by JORC
standard as at
31 December

2014
Total area (000’ tonnes)
(hectares) (Proved)
—E—MF
+T=H=+—8H
JORC #3 Bl & 5l
Zi#E (T H)
(%)
Beutong & Tadu Raya 10,000 Disposed
Nagan Raya BEHE
Nanggroe Aceh
Darussalam
Indonesia
Beutong } Tadu Raya
Nagan Raya
Nanggroe Aceh
Darussalam
e
Kuala & Tadu Raya 9,825 Disposed
Nagan Raya BEHE
Nanggroe Aceh
Darussalam
Indonesia
Kuala & Tadu Raya
Nagan Raya
Nanggroe Aceh
Darussalam
e
Bakongan 3,710 Disposed
South Aceh BEHE
Nanggroe Aceh
Darussalam
Indonesia
Bakongan
South Aceh
Nanggroe Aceh
Darussalam
ENfe

Reserves
identified

by JORC
standard as at
31 December
2013

(000’ tonnes)
(Proved)
—E—=£F
+=A=+—H
JORC # All & 51
ZidE (T )
(£R98)

Exploration
activities ceased
EEIEHRES

Exploration
activities ceased
BiFIE#EREE

Exploration
activities ceased
BiF I EEEE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
THBFRE S

Reserves
identified

by JORC
standard as at
31 December

Reserves
identified

by JORC
standard as at
31 December

2014 2013
Total area (000’ tonnes) (000’ tonnes)
Minerals Location (hectares) (Proved) (Proved)
—E—MF —E-—=F
+t=HA=+—-~H t=A=+—H
JORC #3 Rl & 5 JORC #3 Bl 38 5l
Zi#E (T H) ZEE (TH)
BEE(QE) (%) (#REH)
Manganese®  Village: Jatimulyo 195 Exploration Exploration
h© Subdistrict:  Girimulyo activities activities
Regency:  Kulon Progo suspended suspended
Province:  Daerah Istimewa EEIEIETRES EiF I ERE S
Yogyakarta
Country Indonesia
7 Jatimulyo
DI Girimulyo
[ : Kulon Progo
o Daerah Istimewa
Yogyakarta
ER ENfe
Notes: Wiz

(1) The average percentage (“%") of magnesium oxide (“MgO0”) and (1) A (IMgo ) ki (TMgl) FriE FHE D ([%) T -

Magnesium (“Mg") are as follows:

South Hill
B

Average % of MgO

MgO Pl FIBE DL

Average % of Mg

Mg P F B Dt

North Hill
dbil

Average % of MgO

MgO Pl B DL

Average % of Mg

MgFTE PR At

12

Above Ground
i

19.17%

11.50%

Above Ground

;.

20.06%

12.04%

Below Ground (30 metres depth)
#F (30 5K3%)

18.59%

11.15%

Below Ground (30 metres depth)
T (30 5K3%)

19.10%

11.46%
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

2) On 3 April 2014, the Group has completed the disposal of its subsidiary,
CVM International Limited (“CVMIL"). Immediately after the completion of
the disposal and as at 31 December 2014, the Company did not hold any
exploration rights in these sites.

(3) During the year ended 31 December 2014 and up to the date of this report,
the operations in Yogyakarta, Indonesia, had been hampered due to the
failure to contact the legal representative of PT Laksbang Mediatama
("PTLM").

BUSINESS REVIEW

The year 2014 was full of challenges. During the year, the Group
experienced strong head-wind from the difficult business and
financial environment, including the slowdown of world
economy, the keen competition in the magnesium market, the
uncertainties in court decisions in Indonesia and the limited
cash resources of the Group to operate and market the new
business. For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group’s
reportable business segments are namely (i) mining of dolomite
and manufacture of magnesium ingots, (ii) exploration for iron
ore, coal and manganese and (iii) extraction and bottling of
mineral water.

Mining of Dolomite and Manufacture of
Magnesium Ingots

During the year 2014, the recovery of the world economy
remained slow and prices for magnesium continued to be
under pressure. Taking into account the challenges of keen
competition from other manufacturers and the cost-
effectiveness to maintain full operation, the smelter plant of the
Company which is situated in the State of Perak, Malaysia (the
“Smelter”) continued with the unit of refining magnesium
crown rather than a full manufacturing line producing
magnesium ingots. As a result, extraction of dolomite from the
dolomite quarry has been suspended since 2012 and there was
no dolomite extracted from the dolomite quarry throughout
2014 (2013: Nil).

Since 2013 and throughout the year, the Smelter was able to
secure consistent sales contracts from a major customer and
accordingly, revenue generated from this business segment
recorded an increase of 140.6% to HKD38,730,049 (2013:
HKD16,098,739) for the year ended 31 December 2014.
Nevertheless, owing to the increase in expenses on cost of
goods sold as a result of increase in sales orders together with
exchange loss, segment loss surged 212.8% from HKD9,437,982
in 2013 to HKD29,521,729 in 2014.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

THBFRE S

The Smelter has obtained all major/material licences, approvals
and permits in respect of its operation and such licenses,
approvals and permits are still valid as at the date of this report.

Exploration for Iron Ore, Coal and Manganese

On 3 April 2014, the Company completed the disposal of its
subsidiary, CVMIL. Immediately after the completion of the
disposal, the Company did not hold any equity interests in
CVMIL. The remaining investment of the Company in Indonesia
is the exploration of manganese resources in Yogyakarta
Province.

In 2011, the Company acquired the controlling interests in
PTLM, which is the holder of an exploration mining permit for
manganese in an area of 195 hectares at Jatimulyo Village,
Girmulyo Subdistrict, Kulon Progo Regency, Daerah Istimewa
Yogyakarta Province, Indonesia. The exploration activities had
commenced since our acquisition but were ceased in 2012 due
to conflicts between the directors and the legal representative
of PTLM while the legal representative could no longer be
contactable after all reasonable enquiries made by the board. In
accordance with the Indonesian laws, the legal representative
is responsible for the daily operation and exploration activities
of PTLM and consequently, the operation of PTLM (including the
exploration project) was suspended.

In order to reinstate the operation and exploration activities of
PTLM, the Company decided to dismiss the current board of
directors of PTLM and re-nominate and re-elect new directors
and legal representative in accordance with the articles of
PTLM. For such purposes, two extraordinary general meetings
were called but adjourned due to insufficient quorum. PTLM
had applied to the Court in Yogyakarta for court ruling on the
appointment of re-nominated directors and replacement of
legal representative. The Group was unable to re-nominate a
replacement until the court in Indonesia makes its decision in
the third hearing which was finally conducted on 30 September
2014. In accordance with the legal opinion dated 15 March 2015
obtained from the lawyer of PTLM in Indonesia, the court has
granted judgment on 19 November 2014 principally to stipulate
PTLM to organise an extraordinary general meeting properly.
PTLM is in the process of (i) identifying a legal firm to organise
the extraordinary general meeting in accordance with the
Indonesian laws and (i) identifying suitable candidates with the
appropriate experience and qualification to fill the vacancies as
the legal representative and directors.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Extraction and Bottling of Mineral Water

In 2012, the Group acquired the controlling interests in Victory
Dragon Holdings Limited and its subsidiary, 2)||F+EfE R AR A 7
(Long Chuan Shen Long Mineral Water Co. Ltd.) (“Long
Chuan”). Long Chuan is engaged in the manufacturing, sale
and distribution of bottled mineral water in the PRC which
obtained the mining permit and water permit of the Longchuan
Spring water (“Longchuan Spring”) located at Longmu Town,
Longchuan County, Guangdong Province, PRC, covering an
aggregate mining area of approximately 0.3956km?. Long Chuan
is currently branding and marketing bottled mineral water in
PRC under the brand name Jenbo.

During the year, the business of Long Chuan was adversely
affected by the keen competition in bottled water market in
PRC. In order to build up brand awareness and strengthen
sales, it is imperative for the Company to put considerable
investment into this segment. Nevertheless, the limited cash
resources available for the Group forbid Long Chuan from
developing the business in 2014 and accordingly, turnover of
this segment fell 80.3% to HKD948,213 (2013: HKD4,802,700)
and segment loss decreased 29.5% to HKD7,793,872 (2013:
HKD11,048,162). At the same time, the original plan of
investment in a new production line for sparkling water upon
the acquisition of Long Chuan was also hindered. In order to
cope with these challenges, directors of the Company
("Directors”) shall put their emphasis on modifying the
marketing strategy by engaging sizeable chain stores or
supermarkets in 2015. Currently, the Company is under
negotiation with certain convenient stores, fuel stations and
supermarkets in PRC to make our bottled mineral water to their
shelves.

Save as disclosed elsewhere in the accompanying notes, Long
Chuan has obtained all major/material licences, approvals and
permits in respect of its operation and such licenses, approvals
and permits are still valid as at the date of this report.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

THBFRE S

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Turnover

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group's audited
consolidated turnover increased by 89.8% to HKD39,678,262
(2013: HKD20,901,439) as compared to last year. Turnover
attributable to (i) mining of dolomite and manufacture of
magnesium ingots; (ii) exploration for iron ore, coal and
manganese; and (iii) extraction and bottling of mineral water
were 97.6%, 0% and 2.4% respectively (2013: 77%, 0% and
23.0% respectively).

During the year, the Group successfully secured orders from a
major customer for magnesium ingots. As a result, sales of
magnesium ingots and other related materials surged 140.6% to
HKD38,730,049 (2013: HKD16,098,739) for the year ended 31
December 2014.

The limited cash resources to market the bottled mineral water
affected the performance of the segment of extraction and
bottling of mineral water. Accordingly, sales of bottled mineral
water fell 80.3% to HKD948,213 (2013: HKD4,802,700).

Cost of sales

The cost of sales amounted to HKD60,591,754 (2013:
HKD47,066,090) which mainly includes staff costs,
manufacturing overhead, depreciation and amortisation. The
increase in the cost of sales is mainly due to the increase in
production activities throughout the financial year.

Other Revenue and Other Net Gains

During the year, other revenue of the Group amounted to
HKD370,277 (2013: HKD432,344) was primarily derived from
interest income from bank deposits, rental income from drilling
machines and sundry income.

Other net gains of the Group recorded a substantial decrease of
76.7% to HKD10,490,395 (2013: HKD44,990,813) which was
mainly due to the net effect of the gain on disposal of
subsidiaries of HKD10,471,934 in current year and a one-off fair
value change in contingent consideration receivable at the
amount of HKD44,879,766 included in 2013.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Finance Costs

The finance costs of the Group for the year mainly consisted of
effective interest of HKD19,467,369 (2013 HKD19,362,417) for
convertible bonds issued by the Company and interest on bank
loans of HKD30,402,027 (2013: HKD40,225,089).

Other Operating Expenses

During the year ended 31 December 2014, other operating
expenses of the Group was HKD243,810,022 (2013:
HKD345,687,059), comprised wholly the impairment losses on
exploration and evaluation assets ("E&E Assets”) of
HKD108,208,053 (2013: HKD207,562,580), other receivable and
prepayments of HKD1,767,649 (2013 HKD25,899) and property,
plant and equipment ("PPE") of HKD130,976,015 (2013:
HKD26,195,379).

Net Foreign Exchange Gains

The net gain of approximately HKD18,000 (2013: approximately
HKD110,000) on foreign exchange mainly represented the net
realised gain on sales receipts net off against payments to
suppliers and creditors in Malaysia and Indonesia.

Looking forward, the Group will be exposed to foreign currency
risk primarily through exposures in sales and purchases that are
denominated in foreign currencies (e.g. US dollars ("USD"),
Malaysian Ringgit (‘/RM"), Chinese Yuan ("RMB") and Indonesian
Rupiah) other than the Group’s functional currency of Hong
Kong Dollars ("HKD"). The Group did not use any financial
instruments for any hedging purposes during the financial year
of 2014.

Loss before Taxation

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group incurred a
loss before taxation of HKD349,837,025 (2013: HKD453,153,873)
mainly resulting from the charging of finance costs of
HKD50,952,015 (2013: HKD84,144,735), staff costs of
HKD9,238,703 (2013: HKD10,267,507) and impairment losses
and write-offs of HKD243,810,022 (2013: HKD345,687,059).

Loss per Share

The loss per share for the financial year ended 31 December
2014 decreased substantially to HK14.27 cents (2013: HK22.80
cents) as the loss attributable to owners of the Company
dropped 13.2% to approximately HKD279,820,000 (2013:
approximately HKD322,360,000).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

THBFRE S

Bank Loans — Secured
As at 31 December 2014, the Company had secured bank loans
of HKD381,392,173 (2013: HKD406,331,729).

During the years 2008 and 2009, CVMSB obtained secured
interest-bearing bank loans with an aggregate principal amount
of RM178,228,353 (equivalent to approximately HKD408,125,379)
(“Loan”) from Bank Kerjasama Rakyat Malaysia Berhad (“Bank
Rakyat").

The Loan was restructured by Bank Rakyat on 25 July 2011. In
accordance with the restructured bank loan agreement, the
Group was required to repay the Loan by monthly installments
of RM670,000 (equivalent to approximately HKD1,586,032) with
effect from August 2011 to December 2013 and was
subsequently increased to RM4,200,000 (equivalent to
approximately HKD9,942,287) from January 2014 to the second
last repayment of the Loan in 2018. On 24 February 2014, Bank
Rakyat further agreed to extend a 1-year grace period without
executing legal proceeding against the Company and CVMSB
until 31 December 2014 for default repayment of the Loan. The
Group was required to continue repaying the monthly
installments of RM670,000 (equivalent to approximately
HKD1,586,032) to 31 December 2014.

As at 15 December 2014, the outstanding principal amounts of
the Loan was approximately RM171,803,239 (equivalent to
approximately HKD393,412,501) (“Reduced Loan”) and Bank
Rakyat agree to further restructure the repayment of the
Reduced Loan (“Proposal”). Pursuant to the Proposal, the full
and final settlement sum by CYMSB shall be reduced to
RM113,040,000 (equivalent to approximately HKD258,850,469)
which is repayable to Bank Rakyat on or before 30 June 2015, in
which (i) an amount of RM4,020,000 (equivalent to
approximately HKD9,205,404) must be settled to Bank Rakyat on
or before 31 December 2014, (ii) a monthly sum of RM200,000
(equivalent to approximately HKD457,980) shall be repayable to
Bank Rakyat on the last day of each calendar month
commencing from January 2015 to June 2015 and the final
installment of RM2,820,000 (equivalent to approximately
HKD6,457,522) will be paid as bullet payment latest by 30 June
2015; and (jii) a full and final settlement sum of RM105,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HKD240,439,661) be repayable by
CVMSB to Bank Rakyat on 30 June 2015.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

On 12 January 2015, CVMSB has further negotiated with Bank
Rakyat and Bank Rakyat has agreed to defer the repayment by
CVMSB of the bank loan amounting at RM4,020,000 (equivalent
to approximately HKD9,205,404) to 16 January 2015. According
to Bank Rakyat, such deferral is final and Bank Rakyat shall not
allow any further delay and/or failure on the part of CVMSB to
meet its payment obligation.

Bank Rakyat issued a letter (the “Letter”) dated 17 March 2015
to the Company indicating that the continued failure of CYMSB
to fulfill the repayment obligations as set out in the Proposal
constituted a breach of terms and therefore the Proposal was
terminated and/or allowed to be terminated. Accordingly, the
total amount owed and repayable to Bank Rakyat by CVMSB
was restored to RM203,141,864 (equivalent to HKD465,174,866)
(the "Outstanding Loan") as at 28 February 2015 which was
required to be settled by CYMSB within 14 days from the date
of the Letter (i.e. 31 March 2015). According to Bank Rakyat,
legal actions will be commenced against CVMSB including all its
corporate guarantors if CVMSB failed, neglected or refused to
settle the Outstanding Loan within the given period.

As at the date of this report, CVMSB has not settled the
Outstanding Loan due to limited cash resources available in the
Group. Bank Rakyat has the right to commence any litigation
against the Company and CVMSB. As at to date, neither the
Company nor CVMSB has received further notice from Bank
Rakyat. The Company and CVMSB are using our best efforts to
(i) arrange to pay the overdue interests to Bank Rakyat in due
course and (ii) further negotiate with Bank Rakyat for the
repayment terms of the Outstanding Loan.

Convertible Bonds
As at 31 December 2014, convertible bonds of the Company
was HKD94,278,123 (2013: HKD83,644,788).

During the year ended 31 December 2014, a principal amount
of HKD43,000,000 in the convertible bonds matured. Upon
exercise of the conversion rights attached to these matured
convertible bonds, a maximum number of 107,500,000
conversion shares would be allotted and issued, representing
approximately 4.3% of the number of issued shares of the
Company.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

THBFRE S

Subsequent to the balance sheet date, a principal amount of
HKD37,000,000 in the convertible bonds matured. Upon
exercise of the conversion rights attached to these matured
convertible bonds, a maximum number of 92,500,000
conversion shares would be allotted and issued, representing
approximately 3.7% of the number of issued share of the
Company.

As at the date of this report, none of these outstanding
convertible bonds is redeemed by the Company. The Company
is in the course of arm’s length negotiations with the holders of
these outstanding convertible bonds in relation to, among
others, the possible extension of the outstanding convertible
bonds and other possible alteration of terms of the outstanding
convertible bonds. Any proposed alteration of terms of the
outstanding convertible bonds shall be subject to the approval
of the Stock Exchange and the availability of the issue mandate
granted by the shareholders of the Company.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2014, net current liabilities of the Group
stood at HKD577,355,794 (2013: HKD695,957,811). Included in
current liabilities were secured bank loans and finance lease
creditors of HKD381,707,629 (2013: HKD406,745,701). The bank
loans from Bank Rakyat bear an interest rate of 8.6% per annum
as at 31 December 2014 (2013: 8.6% per annum) based on the
floating rate of Bank Rakyat’s base financing rate plus 2% per
annum. The Group had negative gearing ratio (which is
calculated on the basis of total finance leases, borrowings from
Bank Rakyat, convertible bonds and unsecured loans from third
parties over total deficit attributable to owners of the Company)
of approximately 1.56 times (2013: 2.50 times) as at 31
December 2014 due to the substantial increase in total equity
by way of loan capitalisation and placing of new shares under
general mandate during the year.

The Group's pledged deposits, bank and cash balances as at 31
December 2014 was HKD381,670 (2013: HKD426,492). The
Group’s prepayments, deposits and other receivables amounted
to HKD1,567,332 (2013: HKD10,860,759).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Directors have taken and/or will take the following actions
to mitigate the liquidity issues faced by the Group:

() The Directors review the Group’s cash position regularly.

(i) On 21 March 2014, the Company and each of the
unsecured loan lenders (“Lenders”) entered into
conditional capitalisation agreements respectively in
relation to, among others, the setting-off of each Lenders’
outstanding sum by way of (i) issue and allotment of
capitalisation shares; and (ii) issue of convertible
preference shares (“Loan Capitalisation”). The
outstanding sum to the Lenders comprised the
outstanding principal sum and unpaid interest amounted
to HKD181,037,242. The Loan Capitalisation was
completed on 14 August 2014.

(i) On 30 July 2014, the Company has allotted and issued
321,636,000 placing shares to Bright New Global Limited
(“Bright New Global”) at HKDO0.15 per placing share.
Bright New Global and its ultimate beneficial owner are
parties independent to the Company. The proceeds of
placing was HKD48,245,400 and was used for improving
the operation in CVMSB and as the working capital of
Long Chuan.

(iv)  The Group seeks potential investors or strategic partners
for various projects of the Group.

Capital expenditure

The carrying amount of the Group’s property, plant and
equipment, and interests in leasehold land held for own use
under operating leases as at 31 December 2014 had decreased
by 41.65% and 36.76% respectively to HKD239,763,035 and
HKD5,508,271 respectively (2013: HKD410,903,897 and
HKD8,710,104 respectively) mainly due to annual depreciation
charge and impairment of assets.

THEWES

EEEHRRE /ISR TITEREARE M@
Rz mEETME

0]

(iii)

EETHENAEBEZRESANN -

RZE—WMF=A=+—H ' ARE)HEZEKE
BERHFHEAEREBAD DRI L EGKHGE
ez NABBR(EFEE)BEBROETR
RBEERNCEG  R()ETAIEBRELR(E
RER ) KIS BRI A ZKRERRIE -
REBEFBEAFBREREELRSELK
A E 181,037,242 0 - EREARELER =
T—mFENA+TEAETER °

R-Z—MELA=+H  ARAIERERAES
B 17 0.15 8 ST MABIFTR IR B R A 7] ([ BIFTRER )
Bt 3% I 3% 77 321,636,000 BL AL & B% 1 » AT IR R
MESEREDEBAYBIRNARAR - BEME
FRIE £ 48,245,4007%8 7T © JH A 2 ZE CVMSB 2
LBNPEE)IZREES o

FEERES AT Y EEREERERE
P o

BEXRX

RZF-—NE+ZA=+—H AEEVX  BER
R 2 BRE(ER D 41.65% = 239,763,035 /8 TLIA R AR 1%
REHERER AR L 2 REERD 36.76%
E5508271B T (= F— =% : 5 54%410,903,_897 %
TT]8710,1048 L) - W T EMNFREFEI LR
BEREH

ANNUAL REPORT £} 2014 21



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

THBFRE S

Charge on Assets
The bank loans are granted to CVMSB and secured by way of:

(i) alegal charge over the land and factory building to be
erected thereon held by CVMSB;

(i) assignment of trade receivables;

(i) a debenture creating fixed and floating legal charge over
all present and future assets of CYMSB excluding the
performance bonds;

(iv) assignment of all CYMSB's rights, entitlement and interest
in and to all building contracts, design drawings and other
contracts pertaining to the magnesium ingot project (the
"Project”),

(v)  an assignment of all CVMSB's rights, benefits and interest
under insurance undertaken by CVMSB as part of its
operations for the Project;

(viy an assignment over the existing revenue accounts
maintained at HSBC Amanah Malaysia Berhad and monies
standing to the credit of the revenue account in favour of
the bank, the revenue accounts shall be operated solely
by the bank;

(vii) afirst fixed charge/assignment over the retorts of CVMSB;

(viii) an assignment over the insurance policies of the retorts
of CVMSB; and

(iX)  corporate guarantee by the Company.

Share Capital
As at 31 December 2014, the share capital of the Company is
HKD989,710,234 (2013: HKD160,818,427).

On 30 July 2014, the Company has allotted and issued
321,636,000 placing shares, represents approximately 20% of
the entire issued share capital of the Company at the time
being, to Bright New Global at HKDO0.15 per placing share. Bright
New Global and its ultimate beneficial owner are parties
independent to the Company. The fund raised was used for
improving the operation in CVMSB and as the working capital of
Long Chuan.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

On 14 August 2014, the Company allotted and issued an
aggregate of 565,631,172 capitalisation shares and an aggregate
of 565,631,177 convertible preference shares to the respective
Lenders in accordance with the loan capitalisation agreements
(“Loan Capitalisation Agreements”) entered into between
the Company and each Lender on 21 March 2014. The Loan
Capitalisation Agreements and the transactions contemplated
thereunder were approved, confirmed and ratified by the
shareholders of the Company at an extraordinary general
meeting held on 18 July 2014.

Human Resources

As at 31 December 2014, the total number of employees of the
Group was approximately 80 (2013: 148). Total staff costs
(including Directors’ remuneration) for the financial year ended
31 December 2014 were approximately HKD9,240,000 (2013:
approximately HKD10,270,000) representing approximately 9.2%
(2013: 12.5%) of the Group’s total cost of sales and
administrative expenses. Employees are remunerated based on
their performance, experience and industry practice. Bonuses
are rewarded based on individual staff performance and in
accordance with the Group's overall remuneration policies. The
Group’s management reviews the remuneration policies and
packages on a regular basis.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2014, the Company has issued a corporate
guarantee totaling RM850,000 (equivalent to approximately
HKD1,887,000) (2013: RM850,000 (equivalent to approximately
HKD2,012,000) to a supplier in respect of the purchase of
liquefied petroleum gas made by CVMSB.

As at 31 December 2014, the Company has issued corporate
guarantees totaling RM133,004 (equivalent to approximately
HKD300,000) (2013: RM222,768 (equivalent to approximately
HKD530,000)) for finance lease creditors in respect of the
purchase of motor vehicles and equipment by CVMSB.

As at the date of this report, CVMSB has not yet settled the
outstanding loans from Bank Rakyat. Bank Rakyat has the right
to commence litigation against CVMSB and its corporate
guarantors (i.e. the Company) to recover the loans. The
Company and CVMSB are using their best effort with an
intention to further negotiate with Bank Rakyat to restructure
the repayment term. It is expected that in the event a proposal
cannot be reached between CVMSB and Bank Rakyat, there
would be material adverse impact on the financial position of
the Group as a whole.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

THBFRE S

The non-redemption of the matured convertible bonds by the
Company when they fall due and payable at its principal amount
subsequent to 1 December 2014 constituted an event of
default. Pursuant to the terms of the subscription agreements
of the convertible bonds, the holders of the convertible bonds
have the right to serve a notice on the Company at any time
after the convertible bonds have become payable and may
(without any further notice) institute such proceedings as they
may think fit to enforce the repayment of the monies due.

PROSPECTS

The year 2014 was a year of challenges. Considering the current
situation of the Group and the uncertainties in the economy,
the Directors determined to impose more stringent cost control
strategy and simultaneously, broaden sources of our income.
The Group further strives to resolve the issues of the
outstanding loans and non-redemption of the matured
convertible bonds to minimise the disruption on our operations.

During the year, the world magnesium price remained low. We
have adopted a conservative approach to operate only the
refining section of our Smelter instead of full manufacturing
line. The Company shall continue to observe the trend of the
magnesium price and adjust the operational scale of the
Smelter. Taking into account the defaulted repayment of bank
loan by CVMSB, the Company, as the corporate guarantor shall
keep close monitoring of any possible legal actions to be taken
by Bank Rakyat and consider to take appropriate actions to
safeguard the interests of the Company and the shareholders
as a whole. At the same time, the Board shall use our best
efforts with an intention to further negotiate with Bank Rakyat
to ease the repayment term.

In 2014, the results of the bottled mineral water segment was
unsatisfactory due to the tight cash position of the Company.
Given that the consumption of bottled mineral water recorded
continuous growth in the past years in the PRC market, we shall
shift our marketing strategy by engaging and marketing our
bottled water with sizeable chain stores or supermarkets in
2015. In order to achieve this goal, Long Chuan is currently
negotiating with certain supermarkets, fuel stations and
convenient stores in China.

In the meantime, the Company is exploring various avenues to
raise its working capital and funds to repay the bank loans and
redeem the matured bonds.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Ding He Mining Holdings Limited (the “"Company”, together
with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) is committed to enhancing
the corporate governance and transparency of the Group by
applying the principles in the code provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code (“CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) (“Listing Rules”).
The board (“Board”) of directors ("Directors”) of the Company
reviews its corporate governance practices from time to time in
order to meet the rising expectations of shareholders and
comply with increasingly stringent regulatory requirements and
to fulfill its commitment to maintain a high standard of
corporate governance. To the best knowledge and belief of the
Directors, the Company has applied the principles of the CG
Code and complied with all applicable code provisions of the
CG Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2014, save
and except for the deviations from code provisions A.1.1, A.4.1
and A.6.7.

Code provision A.1.1 stipulates that the Board should meet
regularly and board meeting should be held at least four times
a year at approximately quarterly intervals. During the year, only
two regular Board meetings were held to review and discuss
the annual and interim results. The Company does not
announce its quarterly results and hence does not consider the
holding of quarterly meetings as necessary. Board meetings of
the Company are held on the occasions when material board
decisions are required.

Code provision A.4.1 provides that non-executive directors
should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election.
The independent non-executive Directors of the Company
("Independent Non-executive Directors”) were not
appointed for a specific term but are subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election at the annual general meetings of the
Company in accordance with the provisions of the articles of
association of the Company (“Articles of Association”). As
such, the Company considers that sufficient measures have
been taken to ensure that the corporate governance practices
of the Company are no less exacting than those in the CG Code.

Under code provision A.6.7 of the CG Code, independent non-
executive directors and other non-executive directors should
attend general meetings and develop a balanced understanding
of the views of shareholders. Certain Independent Non-
executive Directors were unable to attend the annual general
meeting and extraordinary general meeting of the Company
held on 13 June 2014 and 18 July 2014 respectively due to their
other business engagements.
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (“Model Code") as the code of
practice for carrying out securities transactions by the Directors.
After specific enquiry with all members of the Board, the
Company confirmed that all Directors have fully complied with
the relevant standards stipulated in the Model Code during the
year ended 31 December 2014.

THE BOARD

The Board guides and monitors the business and affairs of the
Company to enhance long-term shareholders’ value. It is the
responsibility of the Board to determine the appropriate
corporate governance practices applicable to the Company’s
circumstances and to ensure processes and procedures are in
place to achieve the Company's corporate governance
objectives.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The positions of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of
the Company are held by separate individuals with a view to
maintain effective segregation of duties between the
management of the Board and the day-to-day management of
the Group's business and operations. One of the important
roles of the Chairman is to provide leadership to the Board to
assure the Board acting in the best interests of the Group. The
Chairman shall ensure the Board working effectively and fully
discharging its responsibilities, and that every key issue is
discussed by the Board in a timely manner. All Directors have
been consulted about any matters proposed for inclusion in the
agenda. With the support of the Chief Executive Officer and the
company secretary of the Company (“Company Secretary”),
the Chairman seeks to ensure all Directors are properly
informed on issues arising at any Board meeting and have
received adequate and reliable information in a timely manner.

Board Composition

The Board Currently consists of ten Directors (including the
Chairman), amongst which seven are Executive Directors and
three are Independent Non-executive Directors.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The members of the Board are set out as below:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Du Jian Jun (Chairman)

Mr. Ji Kuang (Vice Chairman)

Mr. Fan Weipeng

Mr. Leung Wai Kwan (Chief Executive Officer)
Dato’ Lim Ooi Hong

Ms. Meng Xiao Ying

Mr. Zheng Changxing

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Cheung Ning

Mr. Chan Kin Ho Philip

Ms. Tian Jinghua

The composition of the Board is reviewed regularly to ensure
that it has a good balance of expertise, skills and experience
which can meet the requirements of the business of the
Company. The Board includes three Independent Non-executive
Directors, in which Mr. Chan Kin Ho Philip is a certified public
accountant in Hong Kong. Mr. Chan possesses extensive
experience in the accountancy profession and has appropriate
accounting and related financial management expertise. The
biographical details of the Directors are set out under the
section “Board of Directors” on pages 47 to 51.

During the year, the Executive Directors and the Independent
Non-executive Directors provided the Group with wide range of
valuable business experience, knowledge and professionalism.
The active participation of the Independent Non-executive
Directors in the Board and committee meetings brought
independent judgement on issues relating to the Group’s
strategy, performance and management process, taking into
account the interests of the shareholders of the Company
("Shareholders”).
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Responsibilities of the Board

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the
Company. The Board determines the overall strategies,
monitors and controls operating and financial performance,
sets objectives and business development plans and makes key
decisions of the Company. The day-to-day management and
operation are delegated to the Executive Directors and senior
management. The delegated functions are closely supervised
by the Board to ensure effectiveness and alignment with the
overall strategies of the Company. Approval has to be obtained
from the Board prior to any significant transactions to be
entered into by the senior management.

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant
information in relation to the Company as well as the advices
and services of the Company Secretary, if and when required,
with a view to ensuring that Board procedures and all applicable
rules and regulations are followed.

There are established procedures for directors to seek
independent professional advices for them to discharge their
duties and responsibilities, where appropriate at the expenses
of the Company.

There is no financial, business, family or other material
relationships among members of the Board.

Regular Board meetings each year are scheduled in advance to
facilitate maximum attendance of Directors. At least 14 days’
notice of a Board meeting is normally given to all Directors who
are given an opportunity to include matters for discussion in the
agenda. The Company Secretary assists the Chairman in
preparing the agenda for meetings and ensures all applicable
rules and regulations are complied with. The agenda and the
accompanying Board papers are normally sent to all Directors
at least three days before the intended date of a regular Board
meeting (and so far as practicable for such other Board
meetings). All minutes and/or resolutions are kept by the
Company Secretary and are open for inspection at any
reasonable time on reasonable notice by any Director.
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Whereas a substantial shareholder of the Company or Director
have conflict of interest in a matter to be considered by the
Board and the Board has determined it is material, such matter
will then be dealt with by the Board at a duly convened Board
meeting. The Articles of Association stipulates that save for the
exceptions as provided therein, a Director shall abstain from
voting and not be counted in the quorum at meetings for
approving any contract or arrangement in which such Director
or any of his associates have a material interest.

Each Director is entitled to have access to Board papers and
other related materials and have access to the advice and
services of the Company Secretary. The Board and individual
Director also have separate and independent access to the
senior management of the Company. Directors are continuously
updated with the major developments of the Listing Rules and
other applicable regulatory requirements so as to ensure the
Company’s compliance and upkeep good corporate governance
practices. In addition, Directors are allowed to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances
for discharging their duties at a expense of the Company.

Major responsibilities of the Board include but not limited to:

o develop and review the corporate governance policies
and practices of the Company;

o review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior
management;

o review and monitor the policies and practices of the
Company for the compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

o develop, review and monitor the code of conduct
applicable to directors and employees; and

o review the Company’s compliance with CG Code and
disclosure in the corporate governance report.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

The Company has received from each Independent Non-
executive Director an annual confirmation of his/her
independence pursuant to rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Board and the Nomination Committee have reviewed the
independence of the Independent Non-executive Directors and
considered all Independent Non-executive Directors are
independent within the definition of the Listing Rules.

All Independent Non-executive Directors were not appointed
with specific term but are subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election at annual general meetings of the Company in
accordance with the Articles of Association. Accordingly, the
Board considers that sufficient measures have been taken to
ensure corporate governance practices of the Company are of
no less exacting than those in the CG Code.

Directors Commitments and Continuous
Professional Development

The Company has received confirmation from each Director
that he/she has given sufficient time and attention to the affairs
of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2014.
Directors have disclosed to the Company the number and
nature of offices held in Hong Kong and overseas listed public
companies or organisations.

Each newly appointed Director receives an induction on his/her
appointment to ensure that he/she has proper understanding
of the operations and business of the Group and is fully aware
of his/her responsibilities and obligations under the Listing
Rules, applicable laws and other relevant statutory
requirements. Directors are continually provided with updates
on statutory and regulatory developments, evolution of the
business environment so as to facilitate them to discharge their
duties.
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According to the records maintained by the Company, Directors
received continuous professional development with an
emphasis on the roles, functions and duties of being a director
of a listed company in compliance with code provision A.6.5 of
the CG Code during year ended 31 December 2014:

Executive Directors BITES

Du Jian Jun MHES

Ji Kuang HE

Dato’ Lim Ooi Hong EEMELE

Leung Wai Kwan 2R

Meng Xiao Ying EES

Chong Cha Hwa REREE

Independent Non-executive Director By k#HITES

Cheung Ning RE

Chan Kin Ho Philip PREER

Tian Jinghua H&E

Chong Lee Chang Y

Wong Choi Kay =EEH

Tan Tony e

Note:

1. Mr. Du Jian Jun was appointed the Chairman of the Board and Executive
Director on 16 June 2014.

2. Ms. Meng Xiao Ying was appointed the Executive Director on 26 February
2014.

3. Mr. Chong Cha Hwa was appointed the Executive Director on 26 February

2014 and resigned as an Executive Director on 30 October 2014.

4. Mr. Cheung Ning was appointed the Independent Non-executive Director
on 17 June 2014.

5. Mr. Chan Kin Ho Philip was appointed the Independent Non-executive
Director on 22 July 2014.

6. Ms. Tian Jinghua was appointed the Independent Non-executive Director
on 23 July 2014.

7. Mr. Chong Lee Chang resigned as an Independent Non-executive Director
on 23 July 2014.

8. Ms. Wong Choi Kay and Mr. Tan Tony resigned as Independent Non-
executive Directors on 22 April 2015.

ERELIHRSE

REARANRE BE_T—NF+_HA=+—H
FE BEFEREBEOEREATHTRMGRNEASLS
ff EXBEEXER ATEPRERLTRRE
EMAE - BENBE

Corporate Accounting/

governance/ financial/

updates on laws, management or

rules and other professional

regulations skills

Note TEER EM - B BB EES

Bt e #5851 B9 B # H SR 8
1 v
v
v

v v
2 v/
3 v

4 v v

5 v v
6 v/
7 v

8 v v
8 v

BisE

1. HRELENR-_F-—MFERAATAARZEREESIRERY
TEE-

2. FPELETRZE-MFE-_A-+NEEZERRITES -

3. RREFER-E-—NF-_A-F A HEZTRRTESE T
RIZE—MOF+A=+BEHERITES -

4. REAEN-_FB-MFEAATLABRTERBEILIFRTES -

5. REZGAENR-E-—NEFL AT ARSI ABIIENTE
=o

6. HRELTN T -NF+ A+ =ZHEZTRBUIFRTE
=o

7. RAREER -_Z—NFLA-T=ABEBLFRITES -

8. EERZLTRREREEN T -AFNA -+ HETEL
FMITES -

ANNUAL REPORT %k 2014 31



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

EREIWE

Directors and Officers Policy

During the year ended 31 December 2014, appropriate
insurance coverage on directors’ and officers’ liabilities has
been in force to protect the directors and officers of the Group
from their risk exposure arising from the business of the Group.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company (“Audit Committee”)
was established with written terms of reference specifying its
authority and duties which is available on the websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company. The Audit Committee
comprises three members who are Independent Non-executive
Directors, namely,

o Mr. Chan Kin Ho Philip (Chairman)

o Mr. Cheung Ning

o Ms. Tian Jinghua

The primary terms of the Audit Committee are as follows:

On external audit:

o make recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
re-appointment and removal of the external auditor and
approve the remuneration and terms of engagement of
the external auditor;

o review and monitor the external auditor’'s independence
as well as the objectives and effectiveness of the audit
process in accordance with applicable standards;

o discuss with the external auditor before the audit
commences, the nature and scope of the audit and
reporting obligations and ensure co-ordination where

more than one audit firm is involved; and

o develop and implement policy on the engagement of the
external auditor to provide non-audit services.
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On annual financial results:

monitor integrity of the interim and annual financial
statements and interim and annual reports and accounts,
and review significant financial reporting judgements
contained therein before submission to the Board;

review the Group's financial and accounting policies and
practices;

review external auditor's management letter, any material
queries raised by the auditor to the management in
respect of accounting records, financial accounts or
system of control and management response; and

consider any significant or unusual items that are, or may
need to be, reflected in the interim and annual reports
and accounts and give due consideration to any matters
that have been raised by the Group.

On internal control and risk management:

review the Group’s financial controls and its internal
control and risk management systems;

discuss with management the system of internal control
and ensure that management has discharged its duty to
have an effective internal control system including the
adequacy of resources, gualifications and experience of
staff of the Group’s accounting and financial reporting
function, and its training programmes and budget;

consider any findings of major investigation of internal
control matters as delegated by the Board or on its own
initiative and management’s responses thereto;

ensure co-ordination between the internal and external
auditors and that the internal audit function is adequately
resourced and has appropriate standing within the Group;
and

report to the Board on the matters raised in the CG Code.
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The Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources to
discharge its responsibilities. For the year ended 31 December
2014, the Audit Committee held two meetings to review with
external auditor and senior management the interim and annual
results of the Group as well as the accounting principles and
practices being adopted and financial reporting matters. The
senior management and the external auditor of the Company
attended the meetings to respond to any queries raised by the
Audit Committee.

During the year, the Audit Committee had considered, reviewed
and/or discussed the following matters:

o audit and financial reporting matters;

o continuing connected transactions of the Group;

o re-appointment of Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited as the
Company’s external auditor for the financial year ended

31 December 2014;

° review the terms of reference of the Audit Committee and
make recommendation to the Board;

o interim and annual financial results;

o report on the Group's internal audit and audit activity
status prepared by independent professional parties; and

o appointment of an independent internal control auditor
including the terms of engagement.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee of the Company (“Remuneration
Committee”) was established with written terms of reference
specifying its authority and duties which is available on the
website of the Company. The Remuneration Committee
comprised three members who are Independent Non-executive
Directors, namely,

o Mr. Chan Kin Ho Philip (Chairman)
o Mr. Cheung Ning

o Ms. Tian Jinghua
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The roles and functions of the Remuneration Committee are set
out in its terms of reference which are posted on the websites
of Stock Exchange and the Company. Primary terms include:

o making recommendations to the Board on policy and
structure of remuneration of the Directors and senior
management whereby the Board has the final authority to
approve the remuneration of Directors and senior
management;

o determining the remuneration packages of each Director
and member of the senior management by reference to
corporate goals; and

o ensuring no Directors or any of their associates are
involved in deciding their own remuneration packages
and objectives and compensation arrangements relating
to dismissal or removal of Directors.

The remuneration package of each Director is determined by
reference to the prevailing market conditions, his/her duties
and responsibilities to the Company and the Company’s
remuneration policy.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Remuneration
Committee had held one meeting to discuss the remuneration
policy and review the remuneration of the Board, and make
recommendations to the Board having taken into consideration
of the current situation of the economy and the results of the
Group.

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the
remuneration of the members of senior management by band
for the year ended 31 December 2014 is set out below:

Remuneration (by band)
Frif (REEE 5)

HKD500,001 — HKD600,000

Further particulars in relation to Directors’ remuneration and
the five highest paid employees as required to be disclosed
pursuant to Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules are set out in note
10 to the consolidated financial statements.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The nomination committee of the Company (“Nomination
Committee”) was established with written terms of reference
specifying its authority and duties which is available on the
website of the Stock Exchange and the Company. The
Nomination Committee comprised four members, amongst
which three are Independent Non-executive Directors and one
is Executive Director, namely,

o Mr. Chan Kin Ho Philip (Chairman)
o Dato’ Lim Ooi Hong

o Mr. Cheung Ning

o Ms. Tian Jinghua

With the aim to build up a strong and diverse Board, the
Nomination Committee would identify suitable and qualified
individuals, in particular those who can add value to the
management through their expertise in relevant strategic
business areas, to be the board members, and would
recommend the Board on relevant matters relating to the
appointment or re-appointment of Directors, if necessary.
Details of the procedure for Shareholders to propose a person
for election as a Director are outlined in the “Procedure for
Shareholders to Propose a Person for Election as a Director”
which is available on the website of the Company.

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Nomination
Ccommittee had held one meeting to review the structure and
diversity of the Board, the policies applicable to the board
composition and nomination, the term of appointment of Non-
executive Directors and to assess the independence of
Independent Non-executive Directors and to make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment and re-
appointment of Directors taking into account their experience
and qualifications.
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The primary terms of the Nomination Committee include:

o review and supervise the structure, size and composition
of the Board;

o develop the criteria for identifying and assessing the
qualification of and evaluating candidates for directorship;
and

o make recommendations to the Board on the selection of
nominated directorship and matters related to
appointment or re-appointment of Directors.

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, any Director appointed
to fill a casual vacancy should be subject to re-election by the
shareholders of the Company at the next general meeting of
the Company after their appointments, but shall not be taken
into account in determining the Directors who are to retire by
rotation at such meeting. In addition, at each annual general
meeting of the Company, one-third of the Directors shall retire
from office by rotation (but will be eligible for re-election) such
that all Directors should be subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years.

The Nomination Committee follows a set of procedures when
recommending candidates for the directorship. The primary
criteria of selecting a candidate include assessing his:

J integrity, objectivity, and intelligence of the person, with
reputations for sound judgement and open mind, and a
demonstrated capacity for thoughtful group decision
making;

o qualification and career experience; and

o understanding of the Company and its Group mission.
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When a candidate is proposed for a directorship, he/she shall
be evaluated on the basis of the aforementioned criteria.
Selection of the suitable candidate is based on a majority vote
and the view of each committee member will be sought before
voting commences. The Chairman of the Nomination
Committee will present the proposal (with the voting results)
and recommendations to the Board.

During the year under review, the Nomination Committee had
considered and recommended the following changes of the
Board:

38

appointment and resignation of Mr. Chong Cha Hwa as
the Executive Director,

appointment of Ms. Meng Xiao Ying as the Executive
Director;

appointment of Mr. Du Jian Jun as the Chairman of the
Board and the Executive Director;

re-designation of Mr. Ji Kuang from the Chairman of the
Board to Vice Chairman of the Board;

resignation of Dato” Lim Ooi Hong as the Vice Chairman of
the Board,

appointment of Mr. Cheung Ning as the Independent Non-
executive Director,

appointment of Mr. Chan Kin Ho Philip as the Independent
Non-executive Director, the chairman of the Nomination
Committee, member of each of the Audit Committee and
the Remuneration Committee;

appointment of Ms. Tian Jinghua as the Independent Non-
executive Director, member of each of the Audit
Committee, Nomination Committee and Remuneration
Committee; and

resignation of Mr. Chong Lee Chang as the Independent
Non-executive Director and ceasing to act as the
chairman of the Nomination Committee and member of
each of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration
Committee.
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Subsequent to the balance sheet date, the Nomination
Ccommittee had considered and recommended the following
change of the Board:

. appointments of Mr. Fan Weipeng and Mr. Zheng
Changxing as the Executive Directors.

o resignations of Ms. Wong Choi Kay and Mr. Tony Tan as
the Independent Non-executive Directors.

Board Diversity

The Nomination Committee adopted the board diversity policy
of the Company which sets out the approach to achieve
diversity on the Company’s Board of Directors. The Company
recognises the benefits of board diversity and endeavours to
ensure that the Board has the appropriate balance and level of
skills, experience and perspectives required to support the
execution of its business strategies. The Company seeks to
achieve board diversity through the consideration of a number
of factors, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of service. The ultimate decision
will be based on the candidates’ merits and contributions to the
Board. The Nomination Committee reviews the board diversity
policy, as appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness from time to
time. The Company considers that the current Board
composition is characterised by diversity, whether considered
in terms of gender, professional background, skills and
knowledge.
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BOARD AND COMMITTEES MEETINGS EEERTEEER
During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Company held #HZE_Z—WE+_A=+—HILFE KA TILE
three Board meetings, two Audit Committee Meetings, one  {T=XEZEE &% MABERZESSH - —XHH

Remuneration Committee Meeting, one Nomination Committee ZE&€ &% —NIEZRZECLHEMMABREAS -
Meeting and two general meetings. The individual attendance &R SZEEHFEEEE L BEEZECCHL
record of each Director at the Board meetings, Board MREAXSHNERIDESIINAT - BHREREERRFR
Committees meetings and general meetings during the year is  S#{TH &% HmM 275

set out below and is presented by reference to the number of

meetings held during their tenure:

Number of meetings attended/held

HE/ BTEENRY
Audit Remuneration  Nomination General
Note Board  Committee = Committee  Committee meeting
Name of director EEng FitzE =g EVEES FHEES REZES BRAE
Executive Directors HTES
DU Jian Jun HEE 1 2/3 N/ANE A N/AZNE F N/ATNE A Al
JiKuang HE 1/3 N/AE A N/ANER N/ANER 172
Dato’ Lim Ooi Hong SEMEE 23 N/ATRER N/ATER 1”1 112
Leung Wai Kwan RUE 2/3 N/ATE A N/ATE R N/ANER 2/2
Meng Xiao Ying FN: 2 3/3 N/AT i N/ATEF N/A i A 2/2
Chong Cha Hwa REKE 3 3/3 N/ATiE 1/1 N/A i A 2/2
Independent Non- BIYFHTES
executive Directors
Wong Choi Kay BEEH 1/3 2/2 1/1 1/1 12
Tan Tony (e 13 112 N/ATNEF N/ATNE 112
Cheung Ning RE 4 " N/ATNEF N/ANE A N/ATNEF 01
ChanKin Ho Philip HEZ 5 m”n 7 0/0 0/0 0/0
Tian Jinghua & 6 m”n il 0/0 0/0 0/0
Chong Lee Chang RAR 7 13 12 11 11 0/2
Note: st

1. Mr. Du Jian Jun was appointed the Chairman of the Board and Executive 1. MEERER-T—NENA+ A AEZEAEFTSEFERN
Director on 16 June 2014. TES -

2. Ms. Meng Xiao Ying was appointed the Executive Director on 26 February 2. HANRETRZE—NE_A=Z+ R AREZEARTES -
2014.

3. Mr. Chong Cha Hwa was appointed the Executive Director on 26 February 3. RREFANR T —NF AT "BEEERNTES I
2014 and resigned as an Executive Director on 30 October 2014. RIZE-—MOF+A=THEHERITES -

4. Mr. Cheung Ning was appointed the Independent Non-executive Director 4. REEERZE-—NFANATLARETRBEIINTES -
on 17 June 2014.

5. Mr. Chan Kin Ho Philip was appointed the Independent Non-executive 5. RESHEN-T—NEL AT BT ABIIENTE

Director on 22 July 2014. S
6. Ms. Tian Jinghua was appointed the Independent Non-executive Director 6. HRELTHR - Z-—NFLtA-+=ERZERBIUIFNTE
on 23 July 2014. EXS

7. Mr. Chong Lee Chang resigned as an Independent Non-executive Director 7. RRAREER -Z—NEL A+ = ABABIIFRITES -
on 23 July 2014.
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Minutes of the Board and Board Committees meetings have
been recorded in sufficient details including any matters
considered in the meetings, decisions reached and concerns or
gueries raised by the Directors or dissenting views expressed.
Draft and final versions of minutes of the Board and Board
Committees are sent to all Directors or Committee members for
comments and records respectively within a reasonable time
after the meeting.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Chu Lai Shan Sammie was appointed as the Company
Secretary of the Company on 16 June 2014. Pursuant to rule
3.29 of the Listing Rules, Ms. Chu has taken no less than 15
hours of relevant professional training during the year ended 31
December 2014.

The Company Secretary is responsible to the Board for ensuring
that board procedures are followed and the board is fully
briefed on all legislative, regulatory and corporate governance
developments and that it has regard to them when making
decisions.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for maintaining a
sound and effective internal control system for the Company to
safeguard investments of the Shareholders and assets of the
Company at all times.

The Board has conducted a review of the effectiveness of the
system of internal control of the Group in 2014. The Board has
not taken a different view from that of the Audit Committee
regarding the selection, resignation or dismissal of the external
auditors.

The system of internal control aims to help achieving the
business objectives of the Company, safeguarding assets and
maintaining proper accounting records for the provision of
reliable financial information. The system is designed to provide
reasonable, but not absolute assurance against material
misstatement in the financial statements or loss of assets and
to manage rather than eliminate risks of failure when business
objectives are being sought.
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The following are the key processes which the Board has
adopted in reviewing the adequacy and integrity of the system
of internal control for the Company:

o Monitoring mechanisms and management style —
Directors attend periodic meetings of the Board. The
Board Committees and the management of the Company
represent the main platform by which the performance
and conduct of the Company are monitored. The daily
operations of business are entrusted to the Chairman, the
Chief Executive Officer and the management team. Under
the purview of the Chairman and the Chief Executive
Officer, the respective heads of each operating
department of the Company are empowered with the
responsibility to manage their respective operations. The
Board is responsible for setting the business direction and
overseeing the conduct of the operations of the Company
with the aid of various Board Committees.

o Enterprise risk management framework — The Board
recognises that an effective risk management framework
will allow the Company to identify, evaluate and manage
risks that affect the achievement of business objectives of
the Company within defined risk parameters in a timely
and effective manner. Through scheduled periodic
meetings, the Board identifies the risks affecting the
Company and evaluates the effectiveness of the existing
controls to determine whether any mitigation action plans
need to be formulated accordingly. The risk management
framework of the Company is progressively being built up
as the operations of the Smelter are rammed up.

The Company's internal control audit function is outsourced to
professional internal control audit service providers to ensure
its independency without involvement in the operations of the
Company. The outsourced internal control auditors are
responsible for reviewing and appraising the effectiveness of
risk management, internal control and corporate governance
processes in the Company and reports directly to the Audit
Committee.

The Audit Committee has full and direct access to the
outsourced internal control auditors, reviews the reports on all
audits performed and monitors the audit performance. The
Audit Committee also reviews the adequacy of the scope,
functions, competency and resources of the outsourced
internal control audit functions.
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The outsourced internal control auditors will carry out internal
control audits on various operating units within the Company
based on the audit plan approved by the Audit Committee.
Based on these audits, they will provide the Audit Committee
with periodic reports highlighting observations,
recommendations and management action plans to improve
the system of internal control.

There were no material losses incurred during the current
financial year as a result of weaknesses in internal control. The
management will continue to take adequate measures to
strengthen the control environment in which the Company
operates.

The improvement of the system of internal control is an on-
going process and the Board maintains an on-going
commitment to strengthen the control environment and
processes of the Company.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHT

Procedures for Shareholders to Convene an
Extraordinary General Meeting

Pursuant to Section 566 of the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622
of the Laws of Hong Kong), the Shareholder(s) representing at
least 5% of the total voting rights of all the members having a
right to vote at general meetings may request the Board to
convene an extraordinary general meeting. The related
requisition must state the general nature of the business to be
dealt with at the meeting and may include the text of a
resolution that may properly be moved and is intended to be
moved at the meeting. The request(s) must be signed by the
Shareholder(s) who requested to convene the meeting and
deposited at the registered office of the Company or sent to the
Company via email at info@dinghemining.com.hk.
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Procedures for Directing Shareholders’ Enquiries
and Proposals to the Board

To foster regular and contribute two-way communications
amongst the Company, its Shareholders and potential investors,
the Chief Executive Officer is designated to respond to enquiries
and proposals from Shareholders as well as the public.
Enquiries and concerns of the Shareholders and other
stakeholders can be made in writing to the Chief Executive
Officer via the following contact details:

By mail Flat B, 21st Floor,
Neich Tower,
128 Gloucester Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong

By fax (852) 2598 0188

By email info@dinghemining.com.hk

Shareholders may also make enquiries to the Board at the
general meetings of the Company.

Communications with Shareholders

The Board recognises the importance of effective
communication with Shareholders. Information in relation to the
Group is disseminated to Shareholders in a timely manner
through a number of formal channels including interim and
annual reports, announcements and circulars. Such published
documents together with the latest corporate information and
news are also made available on the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange.
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The annual general meeting and extraordinary general meetings
of the Company are valuable platforms for the Board to
communicate directly with the Shareholders. The Chairman
actively participates at annual general meeting(s) and personally
chairs the meeting to answer any question to ensure effective
communication with the Shareholders. The chairman of the
Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee or in their absence, another member of the
respective committees or failing that their respective duly
appointed delegate, are also available to answer Shareholders’
gueries at annual general meeting(s) and extraordinary general
meetings. The chairman of any independent board committee
formed as necessary or pursuant to the Listing Rules (or if no
such chairman is appointed, at least a member of the
independent board committee) will also be available to answer
guestions at any general meeting(s) to approve a connected
transaction or any other transactions that are subject to
independent Shareholders' approval. Separate resolutions are
proposed at the general meetings for each substantial issue,
including the re-election of retiring Directors. The notice to
Shareholders is to be sent in the case of an annual general
meeting at least 20 clear business days before the meeting and
to be sent at least 10 clear business days before the meeting in
the case of all other general meetings. An explanation on the
detailed procedures for conducting a poll is provided to the
Shareholders at the commencement of the meeting and the
Chairman will answer any questions from Shareholders
concerning poll vote. The poll results are published in the
manner prescribed under the requirements of the Listing Rules.

AUDITOR’'S REMUNERATION

An analysis of the remuneration payable to the independent
auditor of the Company, Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited, to
perform audit and non-audit services for the year ended 31
December 2014 is as follows:

Services rendered FriR AR %%
Audit service =R
Non-audit service IERZERTS
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For the year ended
31 December

BE+-—A=+—HLEE

2014 2013
—E-mE —F—=F
870,000 870,000
120,000 235,000
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The non-audit services include professional services in relation
to the Company’s interim results and preliminary
announcements.

OTHER SPECIFIC DISCLOSURES

Pursuant to a special resolution passed at the extraordinary
general meeting of the Company held on 18 July 2014 and the
approval granted by the Registrar of Companies in Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region on 1 August 2014, the name of
the Company has been changed from “CVM Minerals Limited &
SIEE AR /A A" to “Ding He Mining Holdings Limited & FlfE 2
ERRBR AT

Pursuant to a special resolution passed at the extraordinary
general meeting of the Company held on 18 July 2014, the
Company has adopted the new Articles of Association to (a)
facilitate the creation of the new class of convertible preference
shares as contemplated under the capitalisation agreements in
accordance with the loan capitalisation as detailed in the
circular of the Company dated 24 June 2014; and (b) bring the
Articles of Association into the line with the position of the new
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) which took effect on 3 March
2014. The Articles of Association was published on the websites
of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

Each Director understands and acknowledges his/her
responsibility for the preparation and the true and fair
presentation of the financial statements in accordance with the
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes
designing, implementing and maintaining internal control
relevant to the preparation and the true and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying
appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting
estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances. The
statement of auditors about their reporting responsibilities on
the financial statements is set out in the Independent Auditor’s
Report.
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DU JIAN JUN, Chairman

Mr. Du Jian Jun, aged 58, is the Chairman and Executive Director
of the Company. He has over 30 years of working experience in
managing various businesses in the People’s Republic of China.
Mr. Du is currently an executive director of Sing Pao Media
Enterprises Limited, a company listed on the Growth Enterprise
Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. He is also
the vice-manager of Halls China Strategies Company Limited,
which is specialised in the provision of venture capital service.

JI KUANG, Vice Chairman

Mr. Ji Kuang, aged 54, is the Vice Chairman and Executive
Director of the Company. He graduated from Nanjing University
of Chinese Medicine with a Bachelor Degree of Chinese
medicine in 1989. Mr. Ji has 20 years of experience in corporate
management, property development, construction
management and marketing. He was the chief manager of
Federation of Returned Overseas Chinese Industry and Trade
Group in Wuxi County and Federation of Returned Overseas
Chinese Real Estate Development Company Limited in Wuxi City
during the period from 1992 to 1999. He was then promoted as
the chairman of Federation of Returned Overseas Chinese Real
Estate Development Company Limited in Wuxi City during the
period from April 1999 to November 2009. He is the current
chairman of the Wuxi Yugi Datang Real Estate Company Ltd. Mr.
Jiis also the chairman of presidium of World Chinese-Overseas-
Trade Union General Attestation ("WCUGA") and a minister of
the investment department of WCUGA. WCUGA is founded in
1986, which unites Chinese elites and Oversea-Chinese.

FAN WEIPENG

Mr. Fan Weipeng, aged 44, graduated from Guangzhou Normal
School (E/NET#EE24%). He has been the chairman of Guangzhou
Luyin Investment Co., Ltd. (EM BRI EBR A F]) and Beijing
Zhongcai Ronghe Culture Media Co., Ltd. (It XA & S0t 1%
EAHEBRAA]) since 2006. Mr. Fan has been engaged in financial
assets and capital management for many years with extensive
experience in restructuring, mergers and acquisitions,
investment in and financing for initial public offering and leasing
of real estate in China.
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LEUNG WAI KWAN, Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Leung Wai Kwan, aged 51, is the Executive Director, Chief
Executive Officer and Authorised Representative of the
Company. Mr. Leung has been the Vice President, Business
Development (Asia) of the Company since 1 March 2010. He
continues in a business development role for the Company. Mr.
Leung holds a Bachelor Degree of Business Administration in
Finance from The Queen’s University of Brighton, United States
of America. Prior to joining the Company in March 2010, he was
a principal of a local audit firm and the managing director of a
consulting firm providing services of secretarial, taxation and
corporate finance consultancy. Mr. Leung was an executive
director of two companies listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) for
more than seven years until 2004 and 2005 respectively, and
has extensive experience in merger and acquisition activities,
financial management and corporate compliance. Mr. Leung is
currently an independent non-executive director of Yi Hua
Department Store Holdings Limited, the shares of which are
listed on the Stock Exchange.

DATO’ LIM OOl HONG

Dato’ Lim Ooi Hong, aged 38, is the Executive Director of the
Company. Dato’ Lim graduated from RMIT University with a
Bachelor’ Degree in Business (Business Administration) in 1998.
Dato’ Lim's contribution to the development of the Company
began from inception, as he was a member of the task force
established in February 2004 to develop the magnesium
business. He was conferred with the title of Dato’ on 26
December 2013. Prior to joining the Company, Dato’" Lim was
involved in special projects relating to the exploration and
processing of zircon and kaolin, both non-ferrous metals, in
Kalimantan, Indonesia and a tin mining project in Bentong,
Pahang, Malaysia. Dato’ Lim was appointed as managing
director and chief executive officer of Ho Wah Genting Berhad
on 30 August 2012, a public limited company incorporated
under Malaysian law in Malaysia and listed on the Main Market
of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad.
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MENG XIAO YING

Ms. Meng Xiao Ying, aged 45, is the Executive Director of the
Company. She is a lawyer and the founding partner of
Guangdong Huishang Law Firm (& 3 2= 75 12 &l 2= 75 Fr). She
graduated from the Department of Law of Xiangtan University in
Hunan. She was assigned to work in Hunan Heshan Justice
Bureau in 1990. She was admitted as a lawyer with excellent
results in 1992 and was sent by Justice Bureau for the formation
of Heshan Second Law Firm (i LI [& 28 = 2 A1 = 7 F7) in the
same year. Since then, she started her career as a professional
lawyer. Afterwards, she worked as a professional lawyer in
Hunan Zhenli Law Firm (3 55 & 3% 2 8 =8 75 F7) from 1994 to
2000 and co-founded Guangdong Huishang Law Firm (&R =
2 A0 = % AT) in 2000 and founded Guangdong Huanding Law
Firm (B 3 38 5 12 B0 = 7% F7) in 2014. Her distinct style and
characteristic of effectiveness in case handling has been
established in the practice for law for over 20 years. She has
extensive working experience as a lawyer, and has handled
numerous non-litigation legal affairs, such as economical, civil
and criminal cases and issuance of legal opinion and feasibility
studies reports. Since the practice of law in Shenzhen, she has
assisted in the successful listing of several units who sought for
legal advice and received their appreciations. Ms. Meng is
currently an executive director of Sing Pao Media Enterprises
Limited, a company listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

ZHENG CHANGXING

Mr. Zheng Changxing, aged 52, holds his bachelor and master
degrees from Sun Yat-sen University. He previously worked as
senior management for NEC Guangzhou Representative Office
and Siemens China Limited and chief representative and
president of Marconi China Limited. He was also the chief
operation officer of China Netcom Corporation Co. Ltd., founder
and chief executive officer of China Netcom Broadband Co Ltd.,
founder and vice president of Beijing Financial Assets Exchange
Co. Ltd., chairman of Strait Financial Assets Exchange Co. Ltd.,
secretary general of Beijing Private Equity Association, and
secretary general of China Venture Capital Association, founder
and chief executive officer of United Platform Technology
(China) Co. Ltd., venture partner of SAIF Partners and partner of
SAIF RMB Fund. Mr. Zheng is currently the independent director
of Yunnan Tin Company Limited, the shares of which are listed
on Shenzhen Stock Exchange. He is also the chairman of Beijing
China Sky Investment Holdings Co. Ltd., China Overseas
Investment Co. Ltd. and chairman of PKU PE Investment Union.
Mr. Zheng has many years of experience in corporate
management, investment management and corporate
financing.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
CHAN KIN HO PHILIP

Mr. Chan Kin Ho Philip, aged 37, was appointed the Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company on 22 July 2014. He was
graduated from the University of Hong Kong with a bachelor’s
degree in business administration in accounting and finance.
Mr. Chan is a certified public accountant under the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a member of The
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. Mr. Chan is
also a chartered financial analyst. Mr. Chan has over 15 years of
experience in finance, accounting, external and internal auditing
in both Hong Kong and the People’s Republic of China. Mr.
Chan had worked in the assurance and advisory department of
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited and KPMG and as a business
area controller in the financial controlling division of Deutsche
Bank AG. Mr. Chan was the group financial controller of Xinhua
Sports & Entertainment (HK) Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of Xinhua Sports & Entertainment Limited, the shares of which
are currently traded on the American over-the-counter (pink
sheets) market and was the vice president — finance for Tiger
Media, Incorporation (formerly known as SearchMedia Holdings
Limited), a company listed on American Stock Exchange. He
was also an independent non-executive director of China
Machinery Engineering Corporation. Mr. Chan is currently an
executive director of Willing International Capital (Shanghai)
Company Limited and a company secretary of China Digital
Culture (Group) Limited.

CHEUNG NING

Mr. Cheung Ning, aged 35, was appointed the Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company on 17 June 2014. He
has been the Vice President of Atlas Global Oil and Gas Group
Limited since 2010. He is mainly responsible for business
management and has extensive experience in mergers and
acquisitions as well as corporate financing. Since 2008, Mr.
Cheung has been the Marketing Manager of Shenyin Wanguo
Securities (H.K.) Limited, an investment bank in Hong Kong. Mr.
Cheung has over five years of practical experience in Hong
Kong capital market and corporate financing. During 2009 and
2010, Mr. Cheung was an Operations Assistant of Sino Union
Energy Investment Group Limited (currently known as Yanchang
Petroleum International Limited), a company listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) and had
solid experience in China market and business operation
management. Mr. Cheung is also currently an independent non-
executive director of Sing Pao Media Enterprises Limited, a
company listed on the Stock Exchange.
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TIAN JINGHUA

Ms. Tian Jinghua, aged 53, is a member of All China Lawyers
Association and Beijing Lawyers Association. Ms. Tian was
awarded a master degree in Law from Jilin University in 1992.
She also served successive terms as committee member of the
Professional Committee of Civil Procedure Law under Beijing
Lawyers Association (It R TR HREFEZEEEXZET).
Ms. Tian has over 20 years' experience in the legal profession,
and served as a legal advisor in Beijing Vanke Real Estate
Development Company (£ £} = #b 2= 1t ;= [ 8 A 7)), a state-
owned enterprise. Ms. Tian is currently a committee member of
the 9th Professional Committee of Civil Procedure Law under
Beijing Lawyers Association (It R TR HENEREFREE
¥Z 8%)and a committee member of Beijing Women Lawyers
Association (3L R Z 2 RMEEEE ). At the same time, she also
serves as a lawyer of China Capital First Fifty Women Volunteer
Corps (TR H#EERT% MIEEFE), the first lawyer of
Beijing Municipal People’s Government 148 Legal Aid (3t =R A
R B F1487% 2 18 B)), a legal advisor for women's rights of
Fengtai District, Beijing, a volunteer lawyer of Beijing Municipal
Government 96156 Community (1t &= ™1 X fF961564t &), a
lawyer of Women's Federation of Beijing, a volunteer lawyer of
Federation of Trade Unions, as well as a lawyer for legal
services of Wangjing District and legal services of Beijing
Wwomen's Prison.
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The directors ("Directors”) of Ding He Mining Holdings Limited
(“Ding He" or the “"Company”, together with its subsidiaries,
the "Group”) hereby present their report together with the
audited financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2014.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 17 to
the financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014
are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on
page 75.

FINAL DIVIDENDS
The Board did not recommend the payment of any dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2014 (2013: Nil).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Additions to property, plant and equipment of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2014 amounted to HKD6,252,098
(2013: HKD666,207). Details of the movements in property, plant
and equipment of the Group during the year are set out in
note 13 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company
during the year are set out in note 30(b) to the financial
statements.

INTEREST CAPITALISED

No interest on bank loans have been capitalised for the year
ended 31 December 2014 (2013: Nil).

RESERVES

Details of the movements in reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and note 30(a) to the financial
statements respectively.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2014, the Company's reserves calculated
under the provisions of Part 6 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622), were represented by accumulated losses
of HKD1,199,894,544 (2013: HKD1,120,200,345). At 31 December
2014 and 2013, there are no distributable reserves available to
owners of the Company.

DIRECTORS
The Directors during the year and up to 23 April 2015 are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Du Jian Jun (Chairman) (appointed on 16 June 2014)

Mr. Ji Kuang (Vice Chairman) (re-designated on 16 June 2014)

Mr. Fan Weipeng (appointed on 16 March 2015)

Mr. Leung Wai Kwan (Chief Executive Officer)

Dato’ Lim Ooi Hong (re-designated on 16 June 2014)

Ms. Meng Xiao Ying (appointed on 26 February 2014)

Mr. Zheng Changxing (appointed on 16 March 2015)

Mr. Chong Cha Hwa (appointed on 26 February 2014 and
resigned on 30 October 2014)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Cheung Ning (appointed on 17 June 2014)

Mr. Chan Kin Ho Philip (appointed on 22 July 2014)
Ms. Tian Jinghua (appointed on 23 July 2014)

Mr. Chong Lee Chang (resigned on 23 July 2014)
Ms. Wong Choi Kay (resigned on 22 April 2015)
Mr. Tony Tan (resigned on 22 April 2015)

The biographical details of the Directors are set out under the
section “Board of Directors” of this report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors has any existing or proposed service
contract with the Company or its subsidiaries which is not
determinable by the employing company within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.
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INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his/her
independence pursuant to rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Stock Exchange”) (“Listing Rules”).

The Company considers all Independent Non-executive
Directors to be independent.

EMOLUMENTS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the five highest
paid individuals of the Group during the year are set out in
notes 9 and 10 to the consolidated financial statements
respectively.

DIRECTOR’S AND CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDER'S INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS
Save as disclosed under the headings “Continuing Connected
Transactions” in the Report of the Directors and “Material
Related Party Transactions” in note 37 to the financial
statements, no Directors or controlling shareholder of the
Company or their respective subsidiaries had a material
interest, either directly or indirectly, in any contract of
significance to the business of the Group and to which the
Company, its subsidiaries, its fellow subsidiaries or its holding
company was a party, subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year and up to the date of this report, to the best
knowledge of the Directors, none of the Directors and their
respective associates was considered to have any interests in
the businesses which compete or were likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group, other
than those businesses where the Directors were appointed as
Directors to represent the interests of the Company and/or the
Group.

CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No contract of significance, to which the Company, the
Company’s subsidiaries or holding companies, or fellow
subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
or at any time during the year.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the year.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company, the Company’s
subsidiaries or holding companies, or fellow subsidiaries, a
party to any arrangements to enable Directors to acquire
benefits by means of acquisition of shares in, or debentures of,
the Company or any other body corporate.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had a total of approximately
80 employees (2013: 148 employees). Total staff costs (including
Directors’ emoluments), incurred for the year ended 31
December 2014 amounted to approximately HKD9,240,000
(2013: approximately HKD10,270,000). Remuneration packages
of the Directors are recommended by the Remuneration
Committee and approved by the Board. Employee remuneration
will be determined by the management with reference to the
performance, experience and industry practice.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme (“Scheme”) on
14 October 2008. The purpose of the Scheme is (i) to attract and
retain the best quality personnel for the development of the
Company’s businesses; (i) to provide additional incentives to
the employees; (iii) to provide eligible participants with the
opportunity to acquire proprietary interests in the Company;
and (iv) to promote the long term financial success of the
Company by aligning the interests of grantees to the
Shareholders. Under the Scheme, the Board shall be entitled at
any time (except for the period as defined under the Listing
Rules whereby price sensitive event or a price sensitive matter
has been the subject of a decision) within 10 years commencing
on the date of adoption of the Scheme to make an offer for the
grant of an option to any employee (including any officer or
director, whether executive or non-executive, of the Company
or its subsidiaries), and any consultant, adviser, supplier,
customer or subcontractor of the Company or any other person
determined by the Board as appropriate.
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The shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the
Scheme and any other schemes must not exceed 10% of the
shares of the Company in issue from time to time. The
maximum number of shares available for issue under options
which may be granted under the Scheme and any other
schemes of the Company must not in aggregate exceed 10% of
the issued shares of the Company. The total number of shares
of the Company issued and to be issued upon exercise of
options (whether exercised or outstanding) in any 12-month
period granted to each grantee must not exceed 1% of the
shares of the Company in issue, such further grant shall be
subject to separate approval by the Shareholders in general
meeting with the relevant grantee and his associates abstaining
from voting.

The subscription price in respect of any particular option shall
be such price as the Board may in its absolute discretion
determine at the time of grant of the relevant option but the
subscription price shall not be less than whichever is the higher
of (i) the closing price of the shares of the Company as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of
grant; (ii) the average closing prices of the shares of the
Company as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheets for the five business days immediately preceding the
date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of a share of the
Company. An offer shall remain open for acceptance for a
period of 28 days from the date of offer (or such longer period
as the Board may specify in writing). HKD1.00 is payable by the
grantee to the Company on acceptance of the offer of the
option. The period within which the shares of the Company
must be taken up under an option shall be determined by the
Board in its absolute discretion at the time of grant, but such
period must not exceed 10 years from the date of grant of the
relevant option.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, no option has been
granted or agreed to be granted under the Scheme.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2014, the interests and short positions of
each Director and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO")) which were required
to be (i) notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which the Directors and the chief
executive have taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of the SFO); (ii) recorded in the register kept by the Company
under section 352 of the SFO; or (iii) notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of the Company (“Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules, were as
follows:

Director

Capacity
= 51

Leung Wai Kwan 1 Beneficial owner and
RUE interest of spouse
ERBs AR BRER
Note:
1. Mr. Leung Wai Kwan is legally and beneficially interested in 725,000 shares

of the Company and his spouse owns 3,324,500 shares of the Company.
By virtue of SFO, Mr. Leung is deemed to be interested in the same block
of shares in which his spouse is interested.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2014, none of the
Director nor chief executive of the Company had any interests
or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associate corporations
which were required to be () notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests and short positions which the Directors
and the chief executive have taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO); (i) entered in the register kept by
the Company under section 352 of the SFO; or (iii) notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.
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At no time during the year ended 31 December 2014 was the
Company or its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to
enable the Directors and the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company (including their spouse and children under 18 years of
age) to acquire benefits by an acquisition of shares or
underlying shares in, or debentures of the Company or its
subsidiaries.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS

As at 31 December 2014, each of the following persons and
entities, other than a Director or chief executive of the
Company, had or were deemed to have interests or short
positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
under section 336 of the SFO:

BE_ZT-NMF+_A=1+—BILFE AaazxH
MERARBER AR EARAESRITHA
H(BRERBRFHEARRT/\RFR) TEEEAR
B EMBARRNIEEBR N REFMEE

FERFER

R-ZE—NFE+_A=+—8 TIATLEE(ES
RAAREBITRABRIN & BRER ARG S IERE
PeAn R A SR B A IR IR R 5 R HA G (515 58 336 1§
LENARTBETEEZ Bz ERHARMT

Goldrush Venture Limited
("Goldrush Venture”)
Goldrush Venture Limited

(Goldrush Venture])

Chan Ping Che

BRRE

Lam Shiu May

AR

Bright New Global Limited
(“Bright New Global")

Bright New Global Limited
([Bright New Global )

Gu Zhuoheng

ARE

Jade Investment Limited
(“Jade Investment”)

Jade Investment Limited
([Jade Investment |)

Angeleslao Jocelyn O

Bt

Total number of
ordinary shares

Approximate

interested or percentage
deemed to be of total issued
interested share capital
(Long positions)  of the Company
BERER ERDRZE
Capacity BREEERZ ERITRAZ
54 ERRAY (FR) BABDE
Beneficial owner 369,413,033 14.80%
E=EAA
Interest of controlled corporation 369,413,033 14.80%
K EE R
Interest of spouse 369,413,033 14.80%
[igiEr e
Beneficial owner 321,636,000 12.89%
ExEEA
Interest of controlled corporation 321,636,000 12.89%
ZEnEEER
Beneficial owner 190,462,329 7.63%
ExBEBA
Interest of controlled corporation 190,462,329 7.63%

REtlEE R
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Capacity
27

Ng Kin Nam 4 Beneficial owner
Rigd EnBlBEA
Chan Ping Yan 5 Beneficial owner
RS- EnEEA
Lui Si Hing 6 Beneficial owner
EE EnlAA
wong Yung Mun 7 Beneficial owner
VIR EnEEA
Note:

As at 31 December 2014, Mr. Chan Ping Che was legally and beneficially
interested in 100% of the entire issued share capital of Goldrush Venture.
Accordingly, Mr. Chan was deemed to be interested in 369,413,033 shares
of the Company, in which 184,706,517 shares were unlisted derivatives.

Ms. Lam Shiu May is the spouse of Mr. Chan. By virtue of SFO, Ms. Lam is
deemed to be interested in the same block of shares in which Mr. Chan is
interested.

Mr. Gu Zhuoheng was legally and beneficially interested in 100% of the
entire issued share capital of Bright New Global. Accordingly, Mr. Gu was
deemed to be interested in 321,636,000 shares of the Company.

As at 31 December 2014, Jade Investment was beneficially interested in
190,462,329 shares of the Company, in which 95,231,165 shares were
unlisted derivatives. Each of Ms. Angeleslao Jocelyn O and Mr. Ng Kin Nam
was legally and beneficially interested in 50% of the entire issued share
capital of Jade Investment. By virtue of SFO, each of Ms. Jocelyn and Mr.
Ng is deemed to be interested in 190,462,329 shares of the Company.

As at 31 December 2014, Chan Ping Yan was beneficially interested in
190,462,329 shares of the Company, in which 95,231,165 shares were
unlisted derivatives.

As at 31 December 2014, Lui Si Hing was beneficially interested in
190,462,329 shares of the Company, in which 95,231,165 shares were
unlisted derivatives.

As at 31 December 2014, Wong Yung Mun was beneficially interested in
190,462,329 shares of the Company, in which 95,231,165 shares were
unlisted derivatives.

DIRECTORS REPORT
EFEHE

Total number of
ordinary shares
interested or
deemed to be

Approximate
percentage
of total issued

interested share capital

(Long positions)  of the Company
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190,462,329 7.63%
190,462,329 7.63%
190,462,329 7.63%

s -

1 RZE-—ME+ZA=+—0 BRELLELEREXES
Goldrush Venture 2 EF 2 8 1THR AR 2 100% 4 o E It - FREAE
AR A R369,4130B3 A AR BB REAES &R
184,706,517 R &3 EmiTAETE -

2. MAOBR T BREEZIRE - RIBFSFRIAEGI - ML
BRNREEB AR 2 F— IRt h A -

3. ABEEEAERE A Bright New Global 2 282 #7174
2 100%# & o Ik - A5 AR A 321,636,000 A% A 2 7] it
DL -

4. RZZT—ME+=H=+—8 " Jade Investment & %5 # &
190,462,329 AN R B 15 2 M e+ & R 95,231,165 B R 15 B IE
FHTAETR - BeR Lt RARMAESEAERESER
Jade Investment 2 #8 2 B 1TAR AN 2 50% #Ew o IRIEFEF R HE
Bl - B+ RREEEBWR AR 190,462,329 A A & B9
R AR ©

5. RZZ—ME+ZA=+—B RECEZHEE 190,462,329 f%
RATR 2 #zm - & 95,231,165 BRI LHITETA -

6. R-TZ—NFE+-F=+—H EHLEEZES 190,462,329 %
ANATIRD 2 #E2S &5 95,231,165 D BIELTHTETA -

7. RZZ—MFE+=A=+—0  S5XERFEE 190,462,329 I
KRABRD 2 e - £ 95,231,165 A0 BIELTITET A -

ANNUAL REPORT %k 2014 59



DIRECTORS REPORT
EFEHE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintain high standard of
corporate governance. Details of the corporate governance
practices adopted by the Company are set out in the Corporate
Governance Report on pages 25 to 46 of this Annual Report.

BORROWINGS
Details of the Group’s borrowings are set out in notes 26, 27
and 28 to the consolidated financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor its subsidiaries has
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

During the year, the largest and top five customers of the Group
accounted for approximately 96% and 98% of the total revenue
of the Group, respectively (2013: 62% and 77% respectively).

The aggregate purchases during the year attributable to the
Group's largest and top five suppliers were approximately 85%
and 98% of the Group'’s total purchase respectively (2013: 68%
and 68% respectively).

During the year, to the best of the Directors’ knowledge, none
of the Directors, senior management or their respective
associates or any shareholders of the Company who holds
more than 5% of the issued share capital of the Company had
any interest in the five largest customers or the five largest
suppliers of the Group.

RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS

Details of related parties transactions and continuing related
parties transactions of the Group are set out in note 37 to the
consolidated financial statements. Those related parties
transactions and continuing related parties transactions that
constituted connected transactions and continuing connected
transactions as defined in the Listing Rules had complied with
the relevant disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
Certain related party transactions as disclosed in note 37 to the
financial statements also constituted continuing connected
transactions of the Group within the meaning of the Listing
Rules. These continuing connected transactions which the
Group had entered into with Ho Wah Genting Berhad (“HWGB"),
Ho Wah Genting Poipet Resorts Sdn. Bhd. ("HWGP"), Majuperak
Energy Resources Sdn. Bhd. (“MERSB”) and HWG Tin Mining
Sdn. Bhd. ("HWGTM") in 2014 were for the following purposes:

° Renting of office premises for operations by CVYMSB from
HWGB;

o On demand purchase of air tickets from HWGP, an
associate of HWGB in which HWGB has 40% equity
interest;

o Maintenance fee payment to MERSB for mining of
dolomite; and

Renting of drilling machines by HWGTM from PTLM.

Although these transactions were “continuing connected
transactions” as defined in the Listing Rules, all of them were
either in relation to consumer goods or consumer Services, or
sharing of administrative services or de-minimis transactions
exempted under rules 14A.33(1) to 14A.33(3) of the Listing Rules
from reporting, announcement and independent Shareholders’
approval requirements.

The Company has complied with the disclosure requirements in
accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules during the
year.
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Our Independent Non-executive Directors have reviewed the
continuing connected transactions and are of the view that the
continuing connected transactions have been entered into
under the following circumstances:

(@ inthe ordinary and usual course of business,

(b)y on normal commercial terms or on terms no less
favourable to the Group than terms offered to/by
independent third parties; and

() in accordance with the relevant agreements governing
those transactions on terms that are fair and reasonable
and in the interest of the Shareholders as a whole.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the
latest practicable date prior to the issue of this Annual Report,
the Company maintained a sufficient public float of not less
than 25% of the Company’s total issued share capital held by
the public.

AUDITOR

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2014
have been audited by Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited. A
resolution will be submitted at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company to re-appoint Baker Tilly Hong Kong
Limited as auditors of the Company. There has been no change
in the auditors of the Company in the recent three years.

On behalf of the Board

Ding He Mining Holdings Limited
Du Jian Jun

Chairman and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 31 March 2015
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

=

BAKER TILLY
HONG KONG K7 its

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Ding He Mining Holdings Limited

RAMBEEZRERAT

(formerly known as CVM Minerals Limited)

(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We were engaged to audit the consolidated financial statements
of Ding He Mining Holdings Limited (formerly known as CVM
Minerals Limited) (the “"Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”), set out on pages 75 to
220 which comprise the consolidated and company statements
of financial position as at 31 December 2014, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’' RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the "HKICPA") and the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit. This
report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
section 80 of Schedule 11 to the new Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622), and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. Except for the inability to
obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence as explained below,
we conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the HKICPA. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether
the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement. However, because of the matters described in
the basis for disclaimer of opinion paragraphs, we were not
able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a
basis for an audit opinion.

BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION
1. Opening balances and corresponding figures
The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2013, which forms the basis for
the corresponding figures presented in the current year's
consolidated financial statements, was qualified because
of the significance of the possible effect of the limitations
on the scope of the audit in relation to the (a) valuations
of exploration and evaluation assets, goodwill and
property, plant and equipment and associated deferred
tax liabilities; (b) turnover, trade receivables, cost of
inventories sold, inventories and accumulated losses
derived by the mineral water operation in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC"); and (c) valuations of the
Company's investments in subsidiaries and amounts due
from subsidiaries and the material fundamental
uncertainty in relation to going concern. Details of the
qualified audit opinions were set out in the independent
auditor’s report dated 28 March 2014 and included in the
Company’s annual report for the year ended 31 December
2013.
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We were unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit
evidence to enable us to assess the limitation of scope for
the year ended 31 December 2013. Any adjustments
found to be necessary to the opening balances as at 1
January 2014 may affect the balance of accumulated
losses as at 1 January 2014 and the operating results and
related disclosures in the notes to the consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2014. The comparative figures showed in the
consolidated financial statements may not be comparable
with the figures for the current year.

Scope Limitation: valuations of exploration
and evaluation assets, goodwill and property,
plant and equipment and associated deferred
tax liabilities

During the year 2014, the principal operations of the
Group included: (a) mining of dolomite and manufacture
of magnesium ingots in Malaysia; (b) exploration for iron
ore, coal and manganese in the Republic of Indonesia
("Indonesia”); and (c) extraction and bottling of mineral
water in the PRC. Due to various material fundamental
uncertainties faced by the Group, as disclosed in notes
2(b), 15 and 17 to the consolidated financial statements,
these principal operations, except for the disposal of a
number of subsidiaries involved in exploration for iron
ore, coal and manganese in Indonesia on 3 April 2014 and
operation of extraction and bottling of mineral water, are
effectively suspended for various reasons. At the same
time, the extraction and bottling of mineral water
operation is not generating positive cash flow for the
Group as anticipated by the management of the
Company. Included in the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2014 are: (a)
exploration and evaluation assets with an aggregate
carrying value of HKD41,660,400 (2013: HKD151,770,300);
(b) goodwill arising from business combinations with an
aggregate carrying value of HKDNil (2013: HKDNil); (c)
property, plant and equipment, including the interest in
leasehold land, with an aggregate carrying value of
HKD245,271,306 (2013: HKD419,614,001); and (d) deferred
tax liabilities associated with the fair value adjustment on
the exploration and evaluation assets of HKD8,568,647
(2013: HKD32,061,574).
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As required by Hong Kong Accounting Standard 36
“Impairment of assets” ("HKAS 36”) issued by the HKICPA,
at the end of the reporting period, the Group has identified
that there were certain indications of impairment of the
above named assets, and therefore, the Group appointed
an independent valuer, GC Appraisals Services Company
Limited ("GC Appraisals” or “the Valuer”) to perform
valuations to assess the recoverable amounts of these
assets as at the end of the reporting period. As defined in
HKAS 36, the recoverable amount of an asset is the higher
of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use.
The Valuer was unable to find comparable recent
transactions in similar extractive assets to determine the
fair value less cost of disposal of these assets. As an
alternative, the Valuer estimated the value in use as the
recoverable amount of these assets. The estimation is
prepared using an income-based approach and is based
on the estimated reserves of these extractive sites from
outdated technical reports prepared in prior years
(“Technical Reports”) and assumptions as to the Group'’s
ability to explore for these mineral resources, particularly
exploration for manganese in Indonesia and to operate
the plants for production of magnesium ingots and bottled
mineral water in Malaysia and the PRC, respectively. As a
result, impairment losses on (a) exploration and evaluation
assets of HKD108,208,053 (2013: HKD207,562,580); (b)
goodwill of HKDNil (2013: HKD111,180,501); and (c)
property, plant and equipment, including the interest in
leasehold land, of HKD133,834,320 (2013: HKD26,767,044)
have been recognised and included in other operating
expenses in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
for the year.

Taking into consideration that the Group has not incurred
any exploration and evaluation expenditures on these
extractive operations since 2012 due to financial
constraints and still unable to obtain up-to-date technical
data for those remaining extractive operations in the
current year and that the Group does not have sufficient
working capital to finance these extractive operations, we
are unable to assess the reliability of these valuations
prepared for financial reporting purposes. In addition, we
consider that the technical data in the Technical Reports
used to prepare the valuations are not up-to-date and we
are unable to verify the Group's ability, both financially
and technically, to undertake exploration for or
exploitation of any of the resources under the relevant
mining permits and to operate the plants for production
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of magnesium ingots and bottled mineral water in
Malaysia and the PRC, respectively. As further disclosed
in note 15(c) to the consolidated financial statements, PT.
Laksbang Mediatama (“PTLM") holds a production
operation mining permit for manganese (“Mining Permit”)
and PTLM lost contact with its legal representatives in
2012. On 21 August 2014 and 13 October 2014
respectively, PTLM received warning letter from Trade
and Energy Industries of Resource of Minerals Office
Government of Kulon Progo Regency reminding PTLM to
immediate implement its obligations as the holder of
Mining Permit by submitting the tax form and reporting of
PTLM's status to the relevant Indonesian authority with
the legal representatives’ signatures, not later than one
month from the date of the letter. On 22 September 2014
and 4 November 2014 respectively, the management of
the Company reiterated that it is currently undergoing
management restructuring and therefore all activities are
currently being suspended temporarily until the
management restructuring is completed. Besides, once
the management restructuring has been completed, PTLM
will resume with investment and other mining activities.
Due to previous failure in calling for extraordinary
meetings for appointing new directors and legal
representatives to the board of PTLM, PTLM had applied
to the Court in Yogyakarta for a court ruling on the
appointment of re-nominated directors and replacement
of legal representatives. Nevertheless, the third hearing
was further postponed by the court to 30 September
2014. On 19 November 2014, court judgement stipulated
that the holding company of PTLM could organize an
Extraordinary General Meeting of shareholders to undergo
the re-nomination of the legal representative (“EGM”). The
EGM and the re-nomination of the legal representative
according to the relevant legal requirement of Indonesia
are still in process as at the approval date of the
consolidated financial statements.
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Accordingly, we are unable to assess whether the
recoverable amounts of these assets at the end of the
reporting period are reliably measured and the feasibility
of these operations. There are no alternative audit
procedures that we could perform to satisfy ourselves as
to whether the impairment losses should be recognised in
the current year, whether any further impairment losses
should be recognised on these assets and whether the
carrying amounts of the exploration and evaluation assets
and property, plant and equipment and associated
deferred tax liabilities are free from material
misstatement. Any adjustments found to be necessary in
respect thereof, had we obtained sufficient appropriate
audit evidence, would have had a consequential effect on
the net liabilities of the Group and on its loss for the
current year.

Scope limitation: fair value and/or carrying
amounts of the liability component and the
convertible bond equity reserve of the
convertible bonds

As disclosed in note 26(a) to the consolidated financial
statements, the maturity date of the five principal
amounts of convertible bonds of HKD26,000,000 (“First
Tranche Bonds"”), HKD17,000,000 (“Second Tranche
Bonds"”), HKD10,000,000 (“Third Tranche Bonds"),
HKD10,000,000 (“Fourth Tranche Bonds"”) and
HKD17,000,000 (“Fifth Tranche Bonds”) is 1 December
2014, 29 December 2014, 9 January 2015, 4 March 2015
and 22 March 2015 respectively. The above aggregate
principal amount of HKD80,000,000 is collectively referred
to as the “Matured Bonds”. The directors of the Company
represented that (i) the Company is currently in the
course of arm’s length negotiations with the holders of
the Matured bonds in relation to, among others, the
possible extension of the Matured Bonds and other
possible alteration of terms of the Matured Bonds
("Proposed Alteration”); (i) as negotiated with the holders
of the Matured Bonds, they verbally agreed not to redeem
the Matured Bonds until the Proposed Alteration is
confirmed; and (jii) the interest on the Matured Bonds will
continue to be payable by the Company until the date of
redemption pursuant to the terms of the Matured Bonds.
As at the approval date of the consolidated financial
statements, the Proposed Alteration of these Matured
Bonds have not been fixed and confirmed yet.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

As disclosed in note 26(b) to the consolidated financial
statements, the maturity of the principal amount of
convertible bonds of HKD16,680,682 (“Victory Dragon
Bonds") at 31 December 2014 is due in 2017.

The non-redemption of First Tranche Bonds on 1
December 2014 technically constitutes an event of default
on the part of the Company and can lead to a mandatory
redemption of the Second Tranche Bonds, Third Tranche
Bonds, Fourth Tranche Bonds, Fifth Tranche Bonds and
Victory Dragon Bonds (the “Non-redemption”). Therefore,
the Matured Bonds and Victory Dragon Bonds have
become due and payable at their principal amounts if any
of their holders serves a notice on the Company
subsequent to 1 December 2014. As at the approval date
of the consolidated financial statements, the Company
represented that no mandatory redemption request has
been received from any of the bondholders of the
Matured Bonds and Victory Dragon Bonds.

The directors of the Company appointed Valuer to
perform valuations to assess the fair value of the Third
Tranche Bonds, Fourth Tranche Bonds, Fifth Tranche
Bonds and Victory Dragon Bonds as at 31 December 2014.
The valuations of Third Tranche Bonds, Fourth Tranche
Bonds, Fifth Tranche Bonds and Victory Dragon Bonds are
determined assuming redemption on 9 January 2015, 4
March 2015, 22 March 2015 and 17 April 2017
respectively. The valuations do not take into consideration
of the Proposed Alteration and the Non-redemption as at
31 December 2014. As at 31 December 2014, the fair
value of the liability component of Third Tranche Bonds,
Fourth Tranche Bonds, Fifth Tranche Bonds and Victory
Dragon Bonds is approximately HKD10,931,000,
HKD10,525,000, HKD17,669,000 and HKD12,013,000
respectively. In respect of the fair value of the First
Tranche Bonds and Second Tranche Bonds, the directors
of the Company consider it approximates to its principal
amount as at 31 December 2014.
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During our audit of the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2014, we were not
provided with sufficient appropriate audit evidence that
we considered necessary for the assessment of the fair
value and/or carrying amount of the Matured Bonds and
Victory Dragon Bonds and we were unable to satisfy
ourselves as to whether:

(i)

As defined in Hong Kong Accounting Standard 39
“Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement” ("HKAS 39”) issued by the HKICPA,
an exchange between an existing borrower and
lender of debt instruments with substantially
different terms shall be accounted for as an
extinguishment of the original financial liability and
the recognition of a new financial liability, of which
the difference between the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in profit or loss. Similarly, a
substantial modification of the terms of an existing
financial liability or a part of it (whether or not
attributable to the financial difficulty of the debtor)
shall be accounted for as an extinguishment of the
original financial liability and the recognition of a
new financial liability, of which the difference
between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in profit or loss. In respect of the First
Tranche Bonds, they have been defaulted since 1
December 2014. In respect of the Second Tranche
Bonds, Third Tranche Bonds, Fourth Tranche Bonds,
Fifth Tranche Bonds and Victory Dragon Bonds, the
maturity dates thereof have been changed in
substance because they have become due and
payable at their principal amounts on 1 December
2014 if any of the holders serves a notice on the
Company as a result of the Non-redemption.
Therefore, extinguishments and/or modifications of
the Matured Bonds and Victory Dragon Bonds have
occurred on 1 December 2014. Since the Proposed
Alteration have not been fixed and confirmed up to
the approval date of the consolidated financial
statements, we have not been able to obtain
sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a
basis for an audit opinion. In addition, taking into
consideration that the valuations exclude the
assumptions as to the Proposed Alteration and the
Non-redemption as at 31 December 2014, the fair
value of the liability components together with the
gain/loss arising from the extinguishment of the
original financial liability and the recognition of a
new financial liability (if any) of the Matured Bonds
and Victory Dragon Bonds as required by HKAS 39
are unable to be reliably measured;
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(ii)

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

As at 31 December 2014, the carrying amount of the
convertible bond equity reserve in respect of First
Tranche Bonds, Second Tranche Bonds, Third
Tranche Bonds, Fourth Tranche Bonds, Fifth Tranche
Bonds and Victory Dragon Bonds is HKD9,643,725,
HKD6,553,950, HKD1,640,925, HKD1,783,275,
HKD2,789,475 and HKD6,920,516 respectively. As
stated in the agreements of the Matured Bonds and
Victory Dragon Bonds, the bondholders shall have
the right to convert these bonds into shares of the
Company (the “Conversion Right"), at any time from
the date of issue of these bonds up to the maturity
date of these bonds. Since the Proposed Alteration
have not been fixed and confirmed up to the
approval date of the consolidated financial
statements, we are unable to ascertain the
existence of the Conversion Right and the carrying
value thereof in relation to the Matured Bonds and
Victory Dragon Bonds as at 31 December 2014.

Accordingly, we are unable to assess whether the
fair value and/or carrying amounts of the liability
component and convertible bond equity reserve of
the Matured Bonds and Victory Dragon Bonds at the
end of the reporting period are reliably measured.
There are no alternative audit procedures that we
could perform to satisfy ourselves as to whether the
fair value and/or carrying amounts of the liability
component and the convertible bond equity reserve
of the Matured Bonds and Victory Dragon Bonds are
free from material misstatement. Any adjustments
found to be necessary in respect thereof, had we
obtained sufficient appropriate audit evidence,
would have had a consequential effect on the net
liabilities of the Group and on its loss for the current
year.

(ii)
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Scope Limitation: material fundamental
uncertainties relating to the going concern
basis of presentation of the consolidated
financial statements

As disclosed in note 2(b) to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group and the Company have
encountered a number of circumstances giving rise to
material fundamental uncertainties. The Group and the
Company are principally sustained in their daily
operations by bank loans, convertible bonds and placing
of shares. The Group and the Company are pursuing
certain finance measures set out in note 2(b) to the
consolidated financial statements, including, among
others, actively negotiating with potential investors in
respect of possible capital injection arrangements into the
Group and in process of on-going negotiations with its
holders of the Matured Bonds and principal bank for
possible restructuring proposals of the Non-redemption of
the Matured Bonds and the repayment of secured bank
loans respectively to maintain the Group as a going
concern (the “Measures”). The directors are of the opinion
that should the Measures be successfully implemented,
the current severe financial position of the Group could
be turnaround. Consequently, the directors of the
Company have prepared the consolidated financial
statements on a going concern basis, the validity of which
depends upon the successful outcome of the Measures
to be undertaken as soon as possible in order to satisfy
the Group's working capital needs, improve its cash flow
position and address its capital deficiency.
Notwithstanding negotiations were being actively
conducted, the Measures had yet to give rise to any
conclusion as at the approval date of the consolidated
financial statements. Accordingly, we are unable to obtain
sufficient appropriate audit evidence for us to assess the
validity of the going concern assumption which depends
on the continuing financial support of the Group’s bankers
and creditors and the Group’s ability to generate adequate
working capital in near future. The existence of these
material fundamental uncertainties casts significant doubt
on the Group’s and the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern.

DING HE MINING HOLDINGS LIMITED SFiE£ZERERAR

EREERS  UREACEEEZIEGRS
BHRBROEARESTHPRE

B EMBRERMEA2DAEE EEE
F BERREEZEEREAENTHARERZN
BRe BEER BERRIBURITER A
BEESFREERNBELEEAEEE - B
KB BRRIERITEHRE W HRERMEE20) AT
HOETHE HPRERREEREENRE &
SEFREETIE L HFEERER - U LEBHE
FRBARIZRITORHARTER@IEES
2R EHERZENEERRMRITETIEL
THER MME EREARELL2(ZEE
Ml) EERA - WKMETZEER &EF
BB 2 BRI EIRRATEERE - Bt &
NAEFCRBELEEEREGAMBRE
HEEB MR TR HEIT 2 % FHREREEER
BERR  Nine BEXEZZEESHF K
ZHREREMRALBRESTR - BE &R
B —ERRETTRER - R A MR AR
Hi - ZEEESRBUSERRR - Bt - &%

BEMBRREE 2 ERRBANGRERLE
BRECEE(HRY BESBERRITRIER
AZEBUHE AN BEEERHANELRH
BEEZZET) FEEREATHPARES
B BEEER BERRZHELERINE -



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Should the going concern assumption be inappropriate,
adjustments may have to be made to reflect a realisation
basis which includes, where appropriate, writing down
the Group's and the Company’s assets to net realisation
value, and providing for any contractual commitments
that become effective at the end of the reporting period.
In addition, the Group and the Company may have to
provide for further liabilities that might arise, and to
reclassify non-current assets and non-current liabilities as
current assets and current liabilities, respectively.

Scope Limitation: valuation and impairment
assessment of the Company’s investments in
subsidiaries and amounts due from
subsidiaries

Included in the Company’s statement of financial position
are gross investments in subsidiaries of HKD337,898,800
(2013: HKD457,898,800), amounts due from subsidiaries of
HKD640,501,508 (2013: HKD610,636,881) and an
impairment provision in aggregate of HKD914,190,648
(2013: HKD996,599,680), respectively. As required by
HKAS 36 issued by the HKICPA, at the end of the reporting
period, the Company should assess whether there are
any indications of impairment on the carrying amounts of
these balances. As reported in the aforesaid basis for
disclaimer of opinion, there are material fundamental
uncertainties that may affect our ability to assess the
validity of the going concern assumption and operations
of these subsidiaries. We are unable to satisfy ourselves
as to whether any further impairment losses should be
recognised on these balances and whether the carrying
amounts of investments in subsidiaries and amounts due
from these subsidiaries are fairly stated at the end of the
reporting period. Any adjustments found to be necessary
in respect thereof, had we obtained sufficient appropriate
audit evidence, would have had a consequential effect on
the net liabilities of the Company and on its loss for the
current year.
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DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

Because of the significance of the matters described in the
basis for disclaimer of opinion paragraphs, we have not been
able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a
basis for an audit opinion. Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements as to whether
they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company and the Group as at 31 December 2014 and of the
Group’s loss and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards. In
all other respects, in our opinion the consolidated financial
statements have been prepared in accordance with the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

REPORT ON MATTERS UNDER SECTION 80 OF
SCHEDULE 11 TO THE NEW HONG KONG
COMPANIES ORDINANCE (CAP. 622) WITH
REFERENCE TO SECTION 141(4) AND 141(6) OF
THE PREDECESSOR HONG KONG COMPANIES
ORDINANCE (CAP. 32)

In respect alone of the inability to obtain sufficient appropriate
audit evidence on the multiple matters described in paragraphs
from 1 to 5 above:

— we have not obtained all the information and explanations
that we considered necessary for the purpose of our
audit; and

— we were unable to determine whether proper books and
records had been kept.

Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong

Choi Kwong Yu

Practising certificate number P05071

31 March 2015
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
FERER

For the year ended 31 December 2014 # = —F—F+=-A=+—HIFFE

Turnover EEE 4 39,678,262 20,901,439
Cost of sales HEMA (60,591,754) (47,066,090)
Gross loss EE5E (20,913,492) (26,164,651)
Other revenue E A 5 370,277 432,344
Other net gains Ho s 55 6 10,490,395 44,990,813
Selling and distribution expenses HE MDA (5,462,225) (7,561,245)
Administrative expenses ITER S (39,559,943) (35,019,340)
Loss from operations KEER (55,074,988) (23,322,079)
Finance costs Bh& B AN 7(a) (50,952,015) (84,144,735)
Other operating expenses HE&E 2 7(c) (243,810,022) (345,687,059)
Loss before taxation BB ATE B 7 (349,837,025) (453,153,873)
Income tax credit FriS T e 8 23,351,259 40,170,824
Loss for the year FREE (326,485,766) (412,983,049)
Attributable to: LN AT FE4G -

Owners of the Company ZIN/NEIEZE N (279,819,910) (322,357,788)

Non-controlling interests FEIE AR AR (46,665,856) (90,625,261)
Loss for the year FREER (326,485,766) (412,983,049)
Loss per share BEREE 11

Basic and diluted EARN S (14.27 centsfli)  (22.80 centsfill)

The notes on pages 84 to 220 form part of the consolidated

financial statements.

FEBAZE 220 EFEMM R A M HmR —#k1) -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FERREMEEERR

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #Z—F—F+=-A=+—HIFFE

Loss for the year FREIER (326,485,766) (412,983,049

Other comprehensive loss FREMEZEER
for the year

Items that have been reclassified or B HEr e EF DA
may be reclassified subsequently FEmMIER -
to profit or loss:
— Exchange differences on translation ~ — ®E /GINEB A )
of financial statements of overseas BTG RaR A IE H,
subsidiaries, net of tax =& HBRHIEAE 3,027,119 (641,532)
— Reclassification of other — LEGINGI B A B
comprehensive income upon EEHIHEEAM
disposal of overseas subsidiaries ENEIE 33 (1,522,118) -
Total comprehensive loss FRZEBEERE
for the year (324,980,765) (413,624,581)
Attributable to: LR AT :
Oowners of the Company ViN/NEIEZ =N (277,777,582)  (322,414,014)
Non-controlling interests FEIEAR M 2 (47,203,183) (91,210,567)
Total comprehensive loss FRAZEBEAE
for the year (324,980,765)  (413,624,581)

The notes on pages 84 to 220 form part of the consolidated % 84 = 220 B Fr#ifit it A4 & B 53R E — 2010 -
financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
FaEMBERKAR

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment

— Property, plant and equipment

— Interests in leasehold land held for

own use under operating leases

Goodwill
Exploration and evaluation assets
Mining deposit

Current assets

Inventories

Trade receivables

Prepayments, deposits and
other receivables

Amount due from a related party

Pledged deposits

Cash and cash equivalents

Assets classified as held for sale

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables
Obligations under finance leases
Amount due to a director
Amounts due to related parties
Convertible bonds

Bank loans — secured

Unsecured loans from third parties
Tax payable

Liabilities associated with assets
classified as held for sale

Net current liabilities

Total assets less current liabilities

FRBEE

ERN N

R/ ER S
— REKEHEERE

mE
HREHEEE
RigRE

EREE R

REBEE

e

R AR
ANFR - Be RhEA
JEUR IR

e — 2 BT IR
ERLER A
RehReFEY

NPRFERERE

REEE

FEASS BRR B EL At B A9 RIR
MERERE

RN —REEFA
PR 77 50R
AR SR
AEMIRITER
KEFE=7EEMER
eI

BOBBFERERE
ARMBRIR

REBEEFE

REERRBAR

13(a)

14
15
16

18(a)
19

20
25
21

22

23
24(a)
25
25
26
27
28

22

2014
—s-mE

HKD
BT

At 31 December 2014 R=-—E—pE+—-F=+—H

239,763,035 410,903,897
5,508,271 8,710,104
41,660,400 151,770,300
199,778 213,049
287,131,484 571,597,350
3,714,563 5,388,773
2,854,282 434,787
1,567,332 10,860,759
36,391 9,476
2,735 2,968
378,935 423,524
8,554,238 17,120,287

= 340,070

8,554,238 17,460,357
105,108,868 110,430,866
315,456 413,972
138,000 628,790
4,398,961 6,341,020
94,278,123 36,080,198
381,392,173 406,331,729
= 150,000,000

278,451 372,501
585,910,032 710,599,076
= 2,819,092
585,910,032 713,418,168
(577,355,794) (695,957,811)
(290,224,310) (124,360,467)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
maEMERLR

At 31 December 2014 R-—ZE—mE+-H=+—H

2014
—E—NF
HKD
BT
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Obligations under finance leases R AT EAIE 24(a) 260,030 596,532
Convertible bonds AIARRE S 26 - 47,564,590
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIBEEE 29 8,568,647 32,061,574
8,828,677 80,222,696
Net liabilities BERE (299,052,987) (204,583,157)
Capital and reserves EXRRFHE 30
Share capital & A 989,710,234 160,818,427
Convertible preference shares AR B TR 90,500,988 -
Reserves ] (1,384,778,295) (416,855,294)
Total deficit attributable to owners RATEE AEL
of the Company EEEEE (304,567,073) (256,036,867)
Non-controlling interests IR 5,514,086 51,453,710
Total deficit EEAEE (299,052,987) (204,583,157)

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directorson  EEHER - T—HF=F=+—BH#bERIFETZE -
31 March 2015.

Lim Ooi Hong Leung Wai Kwan
WERE RER
Director Director
e Ed

The notes on pages 84 to 220 form part of the consolidated 2584 % 220 & P&t s A& B &k — 2015 -
financial statements.

78 DING HE MINING HOLDINGS LIMITED & HfiE£ZRBERAF



STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

MR E

At 31 December 2014 R=-—E—pE+—-F=+—H

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Investments in subsidiaries

Current assets

Prepayments, deposits and
other receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

Current liabilities

Other payables and accrued expenses
Obligations under a finance lease
Amount due to a director

Convertible bonds

Unsecured loans from third parties

Net current liabilities

Total assets less current liabilities

FRBEE
WmE - BB &RE
RETBABRERE

REEE
ANFR - BE R EA
JEUR IR
RehReFEY

REBEE

Hfth e 0B R B,
A EAIE

e — 2B EFHIE
ARRES
KAF=ZHEEHER

REBREFE

REERRBAR

20

23
24(b)
25
26
28

2014

—B-mE

HKD

BT
1,068,540 1,217,927
63,947,078 71,673,419
65,015,618 72,891,346
84,166 2,406,803
24,713 154,477
108,879 2,561,280
25,538,038 45,386,654
181,314 175,236
138,000 628,790
94,278,123 36,080,198
= 150,000,000
120,135,475 232,270,878
(120,026,596)  (229,709,598)
(55,010,978) (156,818,252
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
MR E

At 31 December 2014 R-—ZE—mE+-H=+—H

2014
—E-mEF
HKD
BT
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Obligations under a finance lease R AT EAIE 24(b) 77,342 258,655
Convertible bonds AR E 26 - 47,564,590
77,342 47,823,245
Net liabilities BEFHE (55,088,320) (204,641,497)
Capital and reserves EXR#E 30
Share capital [N 989,710,234 160,818,427
Convertible preference shares A EEHRB SRR 90,500,988
Reserves ] (1,135,299,542) (365,459,924)
Total deficit EiEAE (55,088,320) (204,641,497)

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on ~ KEE@R -—E—RE= A =+—BH0E RIFRETIZ -
31 March 2015.

Lim Ooi Hong Leung Wai Kwan
WERE REE
Director Director
= EF

The notes on pages 84 to 220 form part of the consolidated
financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FeEREER

For the year ended 31 December 2014 # = —F—F+=-A=+—HIFFE

Attributable to owners of the Company
ANARE AR
Convertible Convertible Non- Total
Share  preference Share  Exchange Capital ~ bond equity Other Accumulated controlling equity/
capital shares  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve losses interests (deficit)

GL TRRES BREE
s EiffE  GAGE  EEEE  AMER  EREE 8 FBRER  (BRAR)
HKD ( { HKD HKD HKD HKD
# B T 7L gD BT # o
(Note 30(d

At 1 January 2013 RZE-=%-f-A 125317014 - 63530688 0309947 1338136 66737350 0856527  (BI6LBTY) 12666487 142664277 155,330,764
Changes inequity for 2013:  —F-=FRE#E
Loss for the year FREE - - - - - - - (322357788)  (322357788)  (90625261)  (112,983,049)
Other comprehensive loss Ef2EER - - - (56,226) - - - - (56,206) (585,306) (641,532)

Total comprehensive loss ENZEERLE

for the year - - - (56,226) - - - (32357788) (3244014 (91,21057)  (413624,581)
Sharesissued pursuant BEROEER
toa share plecing B 30b) 26,803,000 - 17100314 - - - - - 43903314 - 43903314
Conversion of convertible bonds S A ARk E% 300) 8698413 - 35147 - - (18188430) - - H0440 - 902400
Repayment of convertiblebonds ~ EET#RES 20) - - - - - (19217,054) - - (19217054) - (19217054)
At31December 2013 WZF-=E+Zf=+-B 160818427 - 60145419 30253721 133813 29331866 30856527 (1198780963 (296,036867) 51453710  (204,583157)
At January 2014 RZ5-ME-A-R 160818427 - 690145419 30253721 1338136 29331806  308%527 (1198780963 (256,036867) 51453710  (204583,157)
Changes in equity for 2014 —F-DEERSEH:
Loss forthe year PR - - - - - - - 39910 Q9819910 (46,6658%)  (326,485,766)
Other comprehensive oss At2EEE - - -0 - - - - 2038 B3 150500
Total comprehensive ERZEERLE
Jogs for the year - - - 200038 - - - 989910 17 77158)  (47.203183)  (324980,765)
Disposal o subsidiaries LEHBAR 3 - - - - - - - - - 12359 1263559
Transition to no-par value R-E-ME=A=R
regime on 3March 2014 AEEERENE 0 690,145,419 - (690,145419) - - - - - - - -
Shares ssued pursuant REROEER
toa share placing kb 300) 48,245,400 - - - - - - - 18245400 - 18245400
Shares issued pursuant REERERA
t0 loan capitalisation kb 30b) 90500988 90,500,988 - - - - - - 181001976 - 181001976
At31December 2014 RZ5-mETZR=1-R 989,710,234 90,500,988 - 302089 133813 29331866 30856527 (1478600873  (304,567,073) 5514085 (299,052.987)

o

The notes on pages 84 to 220 form part of the consolidated 5 84 Z= 220 B Fr& i i1 A4 A IS HREK — 56 )
financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FeEleaRE

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #Z—F—F+=-A=+—HIFFE

Operating activities

Loss before taxation
Adjustments for:

— Amortisation of interests in
leasehold land held for own use
under operating leases

— Depreciation

— Fair value change in contingent
consideration receivable

— Finance costs

— Foreign exchange losses

— Gain on disposal of subsidiaries

— Impairment on exploration and
evaluation assets

— Impairment on goodwill

— Impairment on interests
in leasehold land

— Impairment on other receivables
and prepayments

— Impairment on property, plant and
equipment

— Interest income

— Net loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

— Write down of inventories

— Write offs:

Property, plant and equipment
Inventories

Operating loss before changes in
working capital

Decrease in inventories

(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables

Decrease in prepayments, deposits and
other receivables

Increase in trade and other payables

Increase in accounts with
related parties

(Decrease)/increase in amount
due to a director

Cash used in operating activities

Tax paid

Net cash used in operating activities

FEdF S
MR ATE 1R
FEIEF -
— REBLETHERFE

ERHHEE T

MR gH 7(d)
— e 7(d)
— EREHARED

NEEESD 6
— BB KA 7(a)
—EREE
— HEHB AR /RS 6
— R R EERE

7(c)
— EERE 7(c)
— HE+HERRE
7(0)

— Hib U GRIE &

FE SRR E 7(C)
— W - BB NEE

DERIE] 7(c)
— FBHWA 5
—HEDE  BEK

REBEEFRE 7(d)
— FEMUR 18(b)
— 8y -

W - BB MR 7(c)

T8 7(0)
BEESHEA
BB
FERL

FEUBR SR (15:00), R
FENFR - 1E MEAM
& Yo R T Rk D
FEF BR R M At
&N FRIRIE AN
SRERE DT BR B 48N

BN —RESFR
CRiA) /HEhn

REXBHRRE
EBE

REXBDRRS TR
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(349,837,025) (453,153,873)
129,465 142,916
23,572,035 25,538,212
= (44,879,766)
50,952,015 84,144,735
2,996,273 825,724
(10,471,934) -
108,208,053 207,562,580
= 111,180,501
2,858,305 571,665
1,767,649 25,899
130,976,015 26,195,379
(4,619) (10,164)

- 786,486
1,082,237 952,452

= 15,525

- 135,510
(37,771,531) (39,966,219)
591,973 3,981,466
(2,419,495) 1,453,615
7,525,778 1,532,654
10,362,335 9,078,956
117,591 1,097,316
(490,790) 628,790
(22,084,139) (22,193,422)
(212,856) -
(22,296,995) (22,193,422)




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
%'F ﬁﬁl)“’;

For the year ended 31 December 2014 &=

ZE-mFEF A= —HIFE

Investing activities

Decrease in pledged deposits

Deposit received from disposal
of assets held for sale

Increase in deposits for purchase of
property, plant and equipment

Payment for purchase of property,
plant and equipment

Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Interest received

Net cash used in investing activities

Financing activities

Capital element of finance lease
rentals paid

Proceeds from the issue of shares,
net of expenses incurred

(Decrease)/increase in amounts due
to related parties

Proceeds from the disposal of
subsidiaries

Interest on finance lease rentals paid

Interest paid

Net cash generated from
financing activities

Net decrease in cash
and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents
at beginning of the year

Effect of foreigh exchange
rate changes

Cash and cash equivalents
at end of the year

Represented by:
Cash and cash equivalents
Assets classified as held for sale

REXH®
EWEFFRD
HEREHEEE
[RY¢:76
BAME - BB M
REE IR
BAME - BB M
ESANEN
HEME - BE K
REPTIEFR
EUHE

REXBBRRS TR

ENREREHESH
B D
BT TSR
(R EERIX)
& 1 BRSE 75 5R0R
CRi ) /HEhn
& A RIS TR

ENREHERSHFE

ERFE

MEXBREREFE

REeRBEEEY
D R R

FORERAEEEY

ERESH IR

FRAGRAESEEN

B
R RASEEY
PRARIESEAE

The notes on pages 84 to 220 form part of the consolidated

financial statements.

233 10,885

= 762,521
= (1,411,226)
(6,252,098) (666,207)

= 1,172,536

5 4,619 10,164
(6,247,246) (121,327)
(435,018) (1,383,906)

30(b) 48,245,400 43,903,314
(2,086,565) 3,699,116

33 7,756,820 -
(42,653) (111,053)
(24,954,259) (24,404,764)
28,483,725 21,702,707

(60,516) (612,042)

430,130 1,081,207

9,321 (39,035)

378,935 430,130

378,935 423,524

22 = 6,606
378,935 430,130

F/AE 220 EFTEMIFE RER A MR — 61D ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fr & M| R EE

84

COMPANY INFORMATION

Ding He Mining Holdings Limited (formerly known as CVM
Minerals Limited) (the "Company”) is a company
incorporated and domiciled in Hong Kong. The address of
its registered office is Flat B, 21/F., Neich Tower, 128
Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong. The address of its
principal place of business is 3/F., Wisma Ho Wah Genting,
No. 35, Jalan Maharajalela, 50150 Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia.
The Company’s shares are listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

The consolidated financial statements comprise the
Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the
“Group”). The principal activity of the Company is
investment holding. The principal activities of its
subsidiaries are set out in Note 17 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Statement of compliance
The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSS"),
which collective term includes all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the "HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong.

These consolidated financial statements also
comply with the applicable requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, which for this
financial year and the comparative period continue
to be those of the predecessor Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32), in accordance with
transitional and saving arrangements for Part 9 of
the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.
622), "Accounts and Audit”, which are set out in
sections 76 to 87 of Schedule 11 to that Ordinance.

DING HE MINING HOLDINGS LIMITED SFiE£ZERERAR

ARER
SANBEZERERAFTNTARARFTDR—HEARE
B R ERR AT o Rt sEibit &
BEBEBFETITB128RFEERNE2IEBE - &
* E & ¥ #b B 4k A 3/F, Wisma Ho Wah
Genting, No. 35, Jalan Maharajalela, 50150 Kuala
Lumpur, Malaysia * " ABRDIEE B ER S
FrER AR ([EEAZAT D) FR 7T -

REPBRERBREARRRENE QR (G A
SE )  ARBEBNEREEBRER - MEM
BARIZ EREBHNGEMBRKRMET -

EXEFTHE

(@) EHIEH
FAEMBHRRDIBREEEEFMAS(E
BEE AR ) RMHAEERERY
BHREEN(EFBHMBHRESER ] DHE
EAREERNENEEMBREER &
BEENRRE  BALREH RN
BN REL -

HEEAMBHRRTTEBBRAEDN
ERRE  EPREFEERFRM(E
622%) E 980 [#k B MERT | Prigen @RIt
RRB LB (BRZIGHIMER115E76 =87
G - AN IREE R L R IRE A S
EEBERRAKRN(FRE) -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance (continued)

The consolidated financial statements also comply
with the applicable disclosure provisions of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”).

A summary of the significant accounting policies
adopted by the Group and the Company is set out
below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised
HKFRSs that are first effective or available for early
adoption for the current accounting period of the
Group and the Company. Note 3 provides
information on any changes in accounting policies
resulting from initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are relevant to
the Group and the Company for the current and
prior accounting periods reflected in the
consolidated financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the consolidated
financial statements

The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars ("HKD"), which is the
Company’s functional currency.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements is the
historical cost basis except for non-current assets
classified as assets/liabilities held for sale is stated
at the lower of their carrying amounts and fair
values less costs to sell (see note 2(v)).

e BRI

2 BARETBEM#)

(@

(b)

BHIRH (&)
FAMBERRNTEMRIAES LTHARA
(TEMRADEREERE

A R A A TR EA B B R
e

BRI AGEBRME TH R REERT
HEMBHREEL  RFEARTEE R
AR B ARG ET I EOR AR AR R
e ESIRH AR BEAMBRERP
PTRBREMET R ES - MBS RS
REMBEANRAEERARBRA G H
B R AE S IR AL F 2R FTE R -

REMBBRNVEREE

BAPBHRRALRRNINEEEET
(MBI 275 °

RAMBREDNERELRAELERH -
D ERHHEGEEE ARNIFRBE
ERAEmESEATEREEXNEAMmEDN
BIREDIRR (RHEE2V)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fr & M| R EE

2

86

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(b) Basis of preparation of the consolidated

financial statements (continued)

The preparation of consolidated financial statements
in conformity with HKFRSS requires management to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and various other
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis
of making the judgements about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects
both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the
application of HKFRSs that have significant effect on
the consolidated financial statements and major
sources of estimation uncertainty are discussed in
Note 38.

DING HE MINING HOLDINGS LIMITED & HfiE£ZRBERAF

2

EXREEE®)

(b)

REMBEBERNEREE (&)

ERAUTEBEV B RS LRGSR
WmRE - BREFFELHE - G5 RE
®EBZERRNER  ULRHEE -
BE BARIHOBREHRBEBRTE
ZEGEF RABERRIDRBAELERIE
BEERERBEARB/AENSEEMAR
fEHR  HERBKT ERERRAKE
Hi g E LB EMEERR BNKREER
Fr{EH A BT EL7E - ERRARATAEB BIR
fhET8EE

B E & TE =B SR MARRE R o
HEH A BT R ERX MR - &E
FIRISEZIEAER « fWEr]HE &
ARBEHAFE - MEFELETHHRE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the consolidated
financial statements (continued)
In preparing the consolidated financial statements,
the directors of the Company have given careful
consideration to the future liquidity and
performance of the Group and the Company in light
of the fact that:

0)

(iii)

The Group incurred a loss for the year
attributable to owners of the Company of
HKD279,819,910 (2013: HKD322,357,788) for
the year ended 31 December 2014 and, as of
that date, the Group’s current liabilities
exceeded its current assets by
HKD577,355,794 (2013: HKD695,957,811) and
the Company’s current liabilities exceeded its
current assets by HKD120,026,596 (2013:
HKD229,709,598);

At 31 December 2014, the Group has cash and
cash equivalents of HKD378,935 (2013:
HKD423,524) which is insufficient to settle
accrued salaries of HKD2,800,027 (2013:
HKD2,190,413) payables due in the immediate
month, certain committed repayment
instalments and interests payable of
HKD70,901,665 (2013: HKD86,574,486) in the
Group's borrowings; and committed to
contract for of HKD17,526,584 (2013:
HKD18,690,853) in the Group's capital
commitments,

As explained in Note 13(d) to the consolidated
financial statements, the production plant in
Malaysia was suspended since the year ended
31 December 2012;

As detailed in Notes 15(b) and 15(c) to the
consolidated financial statements, there were
no exploration activities conducted in the year
ended 31 December 2014 for coal and
manganese. This was because the Group is
trying to reallocate its limited cash resources
to other prospective business segments;

e BRI

2 EBEXEHBE@#E)

(b)

ma

MBMERNRMBEE ()

MBHEE - ARREFER

BEEEREERARANRETDES X
RIB AR

(iii)

rEEHEZ-_Z—WNF+=A
“t+t—HLEFERRZABBELR
AEIBEBEAEGTEEBRB
279,819,910 (= & — = &
322,357,788/ 7T) « ANEBREEE
B ERB B ES77,355,794 B T(—
T— =4 1 695957,811%ETT) « AR
AABABEREE RS EE
120,026,596 7L( = & — = & :
229,709,598 87T ) :

RZEBE—NFE+=ZA=+—H ' &
SEEHRSRESEEMITS, 935,%%5
TL(ZZE—=F:423524870) * &
TR E AR B R R &
2,800,027 L( = &F — = F:
2,190,413%70) « ARBEERPET

EAESHEFTEREMNF S
70,901,6657% jw( = & — = F:
86,574,486 70) ¢ R AN B & A
EEAEDRT#17,526,584 %8 7L (=
T— =4 :18,690,853) :

AN AR A B S R 5% MY RE13(d) AT R

MR RAEMEEREE B
HE-_Z——-—F+=ZA=+—HLt
FERYEEE

FHANER A B 75 R 2R T 7 15(b) K 15(0)
Frefal - 2T —WF+=A
T+ BLEFETERERRIGE
THFRES - WIIHRANEEIESE
EREMOREARNEASERSE
HEBERNERDER

ANNUAL REPORT £} 2014 87



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fr & M| R EE

2

88

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the consolidated
financial statements (continuead)

V)

DING HE

As explained in Notes 15(c) and 17 to the
consolidated financial statements, the Group
lost contact with the legal representatives of
PT. Laksbang Mediatama ("PTLM") in prior
years and the re-nomination of the legal
representatives has not yet been completed.
PTLM holds a production operating mining
permit for manganese in Indonesia. This
brought to a halt to the daily operations and
mining activities of PTLM and might impact the
fulfillment of the obligations of PTLM in
respect of its production operation mining
permit for manganese and any other
government regulations it would be subject to.
The operations and future profitability of the
Group might be affected by the loss of contact
with the PTLM's legal representatives;

MINING HOLDINGS LIMITED S fEXEZERER QA
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EXREEE®)

(b)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the consolidated
financial statements (continuead)

(Vi)

As detailed in Note 26(a) to the consolidated
financial statements, the aggregate principal
amount of convertible bonds of
HKD80,000,000 (the “Matured Bonds")
following the non-redemption of the earlier
First Tranche Bonds on 1 December 2014
technically constitutes an event of default on
the part of the Company and can lead to a
mandatory redemption of the Second Tranche
Bonds, Third Tranche Bonds, Fourth Tranche
Bonds and the Fifth Tranche Bonds. Up to the
approval date of the consolidated financial
statements, all the Matured Bonds were
defaulted. The directors of the Company
represented that (i) the Company is currently
in the course of arm’s length negotiations with
the holders of the Matured Bonds in relation
to, among others, the possible extension of
the Matured Bonds and other possible
alteration of terms of the Matured Bonds
("Proposed Alteration”); (ii) as negotiated with
the holders of the Matured Bonds, they
verbally agreed not to redeem the Matured
Bonds until the Proposed Alteration is
confirmed; and (iii) the interest on the Matured
Bonds will continue to be payable by the
Company until the date of redemption
pursuant to the terms of the Matured Bonds.
The interest thereon is approximately
HKD1,627,000 up to the approval date of the
consolidated financial statements. As at the
approval date of the consolidated financial
statements, the Proposed Alteration have not
been fixed and confirmed yet;

e BRI

2 EBEXEHBE@#E)

(b)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2

90

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the consolidated
financial statements (continuead)

(vii)

DING HE

As detailed in Note 26(b) to the consolidated
financial statements, the principal amount of
convertible bonds of HKD16,680,682 (the
“Victory Dragon Bonds”) are maturing in 2017.
As explained in Note 26(a) of to the
consolidated financial statements, the non-
redemption of convertible bonds of First
Tranche Bonds on 1 December 2014
technically constitutes an event of default on
the part of the Company and can lead to a
mandatory redemption of the Victory Dragon
Bonds. Therefore, the Victory Dragon Bonds
have become due and payable at their
principal amounts if any of their holders
serves a notice on the Company subsequent
to 1 December 2014. As at the approval date
of the consolidated financial statements, the
Company represented that no mandatory
redemption request has been received from
any of the bondholders of the Victory Dragon
Bonds;

MINING HOLDINGS LIMITED S fEXEZERER QA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the consolidated
financial statements (continuead)

(viii)

As detailed in Note 27 to the consolidated
financial statements, secured bank loans of
HKD381,392,173 (2013: HKD406,331,729) are
already due for repayment as the Company’s
wholly-owned subsidiary, CYM Magnesium
Sdn. Bhd. ("CVMSB”) is unable to fulfill the
covenants set out in the facilities agreement.
On 15 December 2014, the Group accepted
the restructuring proposal offered by Bank
Kerjasama Rakyat Malaysia Berhad (“Bank
Rakyat"), but the Group is still unable to fulfil
the revised covenants set out in the
restructuring proposal as at the approval date
of the consolidated financial statements. On
17 March 2015, the Group received a letter
issued by Bank Rakyat indicating that the
continued failure of CYMSB to fulfil the
repayment obligations as set out in the
restructuring proposal constituted a breach of
terms and therefore the restructuring proposal
was terminated and/or allowed to be
terminated. Accordingly, the total amount
owed and repayable to Bank Rakyat by CVMSB
was restored to RM203,141,864 (equivalent to
HKD465,174,866) as at 28 February 2015 which
was required to be settled by CVMSB within
14 days from the date of that letter. According
to Bank Rakyat, legal actions will be
commenced against CVMSB including all its
corporate guarantors if CVMSB failed,
neglected or refused to settle the outstanding
loans within the given period. The operations
of the Group might be affected if legal
proceeding against the Group is executed by
the Bank Rakyat for the default repayment of
the secured bank loans,

e BRI
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the consolidated
financial statements (continuead)

(ix)

As detailed in Note 36(a) to the consolidated
financial statements, the Company has
corporate guarantees totalling approximately
RM184,600,000 (equivalent to approximately
HKD409,767,000) (2013: RM184,600,000
(equivalent to approximately HKD436,987,000))
to Bank Rakyat in respect of bank loan
facilities granted to CVMSB. As explained in
Note 27 to the consolidated financial
statements, CYMSB has defaulted repayment
of the bank loan facilities. Therefore, a
possible claim might be made against the
Company under the corporate guarantees if
no remedial action is taken by the Company;
and

As detailed in Note 36(b) to the consolidated
financial statements, the bondholders of the
Matured Bonds and Victory Dragon Bonds
may without further notice institute such
proceedings as it may think fit to enforce
repayment of the Matured Bonds and Victory
Dragon Bonds which theoretically become
due and payable on 1 December 2014.

The directors of the Company have taken the
following actions to mitigate the liquidity issues
faced by the Group and the Company:

0]

As at the date of the Company's
announcement dated 31 March 2015, CVMSB
has not settled the Outstanding Loan as
detailed in Note 27. As such, the Company is
exposed to potential litigations. The Company
and CVMSB are using their best efforts to (i)
arrange to pay the overdue interests to Bank
Rakyat in due course and (ii) further negotiate
with Bank Rakyat for the repayment terms of
the Outstanding Loan,
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(b) Basis of preparation of the consolidated

financial statements (continued)

(i) As detailed in Notes 26(a) and 36(b), the
Company is exposed to potential litigations.
The Company is using their best efforts to (i)
arrange to continue to pay the overdue
interests to the bondholders in due course
and (i) further re-negotiate with bondholders
for the extension of maturity dates and
Proposed Alteration of terms of these
convertible bonds; and

(i)  The Group is seeking investors or strategic
partners for the Group’s projects in Indonesia
and People’s Republic of China (the “"PRC").

The directors of the Company consider that taking
into account of the above, the cash requirements of
the Group for the next twelve months from the end
of the reporting period and the Group's ability to
attain future profitable operations in CVMSB and its
indirectly owned subsidiary, geJI| FEER R B R A A
(Long Chuan Shen Long Mineral Water Co., Ltd.)
("Long Chuan”) and all existing banking facilities will
be continuously available for the Group's use, the
Group and the Company will have sufficient working
capital to meet in full their financial obligations as
they fall due for the foreseeable future. Accordingly,
the consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on a going concern basis.

Should the Group be unable to operate as a going
concern, adjustments would have to be made to
write down the value of all assets to their
recoverable amounts, to provide for any further
liabilities which might arise and to reclassify non-
current assets and liabilities as current assets and
liabilities, respectively. The effects of these potential
adjustments have not been reflected in the
consolidated financial statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(c) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group.
The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power, only
substantive rights (held by the Group and other
parties) are considered.

Investments in subsidiaries are consolidated into
the consolidated financial statements from the date
that control commences until the date that control
ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions, cash
flows and any unrealised profits arising from intra-
group transactions are eliminated in full in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but
only to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to
the Company, and in respect of which the Group
has not agreed any additional terms with the
holders of those interests which would result in the
Group as a whole having a contractual obligation in
respect of those interests that meets the definition
of a financial liability. For each business
combination, the Group can elect to measure any
non-controlling interests either at fair value or at
their proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net
identifiable assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(c)

(d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from equity attributable to the
owners of the Company. Non-controlling interests in
the results of the Group are presented on the face
of the Consolidated statement of profit or loss and
the Consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income as an allocation of the
total profit or loss and total comprehensive income
for the year between non-controlling interests and
the owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in
that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss.

In the Company's statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment losses (see Note 2(i)(iii)), unless the
investment is classified as held for sale (see Note
2(V)).

Business combination

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using
the acquisition method. The consideration
transferred in a business combination is measured
at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the
acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred
by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to the
former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs
are generally recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(d) Business combination (continued)

96

At the acquisition date, the acquiree’s identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities that meet
the conditions for recognition under HKFRS 3
(Revised), Business combinations, are recognised at
their fair values, except that:

o deferred tax assets or liabilities and assets or
liabilities related to employee benefit
arrangements are recognised and measured
in accordance with HKAS 12, Income Taxes
and HKAS 19, Employee Benefits respectively;,

o liabilities or equity instruments related to the
replacement by the Group of an acquiree’s
share-based payment awards are measured
in accordance with HKFRS 2, Shared-based
payment; and

o assets (or disposal groups) that are classified
as held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5,
Non-current assets held for sale and
discontinued operations, are measured in
accordance with that standard.

Where the consideration the Group transfers in a
business combination includes assets or liabilities
resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement, the contingent consideration is
measured at its acquisition-date fair value and
considered as part of the consideration transferred
in a business combination. Changes in the fair value
of the contingent consideration that qualify as
measurement period adjustments are adjusted
retrospectively, with the corresponding adjustments
being made against goodwill or gain on bargain
purchase. Measurement period adjustments are
adjustments that arise from additional information
obtained during the measurement period about
facts and circumstances that existed as of the
acquisition date. Measurement period does not
exceed one year from the acquisition date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(d) Business combination (continued)

(e)

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair
value of the contingent consideration that do not
qualify as measurement period adjustments
depends on how the contingent consideration is
classified. Contingent consideration that is classified
as equity is not re-measured at subsequent
reporting dates and its subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity. Contingent
consideration that is classified as an asset or a
liability is re-measured at subsequent reporting
dates in accordance with HKAS 39, Financial
instruments: Recognition and measurement, or
HKAS 37, Provisions, contingent liabilities and
contingent assets, as appropriate, with the
corresponding gain or loss being recognised in profit
or loss.

Non-controlling interests may be initially measured
either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the fair value of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice of
measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-
transaction basis.

Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of

()  the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree and
the fair value of the Group’s previously held
equity interest in the acquiree; over

(i) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable
assets and liabilities measured as at the
acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a gain on
a bargain purchase.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(e)

)

Goodwill (continued)

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill arising on a business
combination is allocated to each cash-generating
unit, or groups of cash-generating units, that is
expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination and is tested annually for impairment
(see Note 2(i)iii)).

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses (see Note 2(i)iii)).

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of
property, plant and equipment, less their estimated
residual value, if any, using the straight line method
over their estimated useful lives as follows:

—  Buildings 10-40 years
—  Plant and machinery 4-10 years
—  Motor vehicles 4-10 years
—  Furniture and fittings 10 years

—  Office equipment 4-10 years
—  Computer equipment 3-5years
—  Retorts 25 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost of
the item is allocated on a reasonable basis between
the parts and each part is depreciated separately.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

()

(®

Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Depreciation method, useful life of an asset and its
residual value, if any, are reviewed annually and
adjusted if appropriate.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or
disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment
are determined as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
item and are recognised in profit or loss on the date
of retirement or disposal.

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a
series of transactions, is or contains a lease if the
Group determines that the arrangement conveys a
right to use a specific asset or assets for an agreed
period of time in return for a payment or a series of
payments. Such a determination is made based on
an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement
and is regardless of whether the arrangement takes
the legal form of a lease.

(i) Classification of assets leased to the

Group

Assets that are held by the Group under
leases which transfer to the Group
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as being held under
finance leases. Leases which do not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the Group are classified as
operating leases.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(g) Leased assets (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

DING HE

Assets acquired under finance leases
Where the Group acquires the use of assets
under finance leases, the amounts
representing the fair value of the leased asset,
or, if lower, the present value of the minimum
lease payments, of such assets are included
in property, plant and equipment and the
corresponding liabilities, net of finance
charges, are recorded as obligations under
finance leases. Depreciation is provided at
rates which write off the cost of the assets
over the term of the relevant lease or, where
it is likely the Group will obtain ownership of
the asset, the life of the asset, as set out in
Note 2(f). Impairment losses are accounted for
in accordance with the accounting policy as
set out in Note 2(i)(iii). Finance charges implicit
in the lease payments are charged to profit or
loss over the period of the leases so as to
produce an approximately constant periodic
rate of charge on the remaining balance of the
obligations for each accounting period.

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held
under operating leases, payments made
under the leases are charged to profit or loss
in equal instalments over the accounting
periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be
derived from the leased asset. Lease
incentives received are recognised in profit or
loss as an integral part of the aggregate net
lease payments made.

The cost of acquiring land held under an

operating lease is amortised on a straight line
basis over the period of the lease term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(h) Exploration and evaluation assets

)

Exploration and evaluation assets
Exploration and evaluation assets comprises
costs which are directly attributable to:
researching and analysing existing exploration
data; conducting geological studies,
exploratory drilling and sampling; examining
and testing extraction and treatment methods;
and compiling prefeasibility and feasibility
studies. Exploration and evaluation assets also
includes the costs incurred in the entry
premiums paid to gain access to areas of
interest and amounts payable to third parties
to acquire interests in existing projects.

Exploration and evaluation expenditure is
capitalised if the project is technically and
commercially feasible and the Group has
sufficient resources and the intention to
complete the project. If a project does not
prove viable, all irrecoverable costs associated
with the project are expensed in profit or loss.
Capitalised exploration and evaluation
expenditures are stated in the statement of
financial position at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses (see Note
2()(i).

Upon the commencement of quarrying
activities, the capitalised exploration and
evaluation expenditure is amortised using the
straight line method over its estimated useful
life of 20 years. Both the useful life of an asset
and amortisation method are reviewed
annually.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(h) Exploration and evaluation assets
(continued)

(i)

(iii)

DING HE

Exploration mining permits acquired in
business combinations

Exploitation mining permits acquired in a
business combination and recognised
separately from goodwill are initially
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date
(which is regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, exploitation
mining permits are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment
losses (see Note 2(i)(ii)). Exploitation mining
permits are amortised on a unit-of-production
basis. The units of the exploitation mining
permits are reviewed annually in accordance
with the production plans of the Group and
the proved and probable reserves.

Water and mining permits acquired in
a business combination

Water and mining permits acquired in a
business combination and recognised
separately from goodwill are initially
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date
(which is regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, water and
mining permits are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment
losses (see Note 2(i)(ii)). Water and mining
permits are amortised on a unit-of-production
basis. The units of the water and mining
permits are reviewed annually in accordance
with the production plan of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(i) Impairment of assets

)

Impairment of receivables

Receivables that are stated at cost or
amortised cost are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period to determine whether
there is objective evidence of impairment.
Objective evidence of impairment includes
observable data that comes to the attention of
the Group about one or more of the following
loss events:

— significant financial difficulty of the
debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal
payments;

— it becoming probable that the debtor will
enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; and

— significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment
that have an adverse effect on the
debtor.

If any such evidence exists, any impairment
loss is determined, recognised and measured
as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e. the
effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition of these assets), where the effect
of discounting is material. This assessment is
made collectively where these financial assets
carried at amortised cost share similar risk
characteristics, such as similar past due
status, and have not been individually
assessed as impaired. Future cash flows for
financial assets which are assessed for
impairment collectively are based on historical
loss experience for assets with credit risk
characteristics similar to the collective group.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

)

Impairment of assets (continued)

)

Impairment of receivables (continued)

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be linked objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised, the
impairment loss is reversed through profit or
loss. A reversal of an impairment loss shall not
result in the asset’'s carrying amount
exceeding that which would have been
determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years.

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for
impairment losses recognised in respect of
receivables whose recovery is considered
doubtful but not remote. In this case, the
impairment losses for doubtful debts are
recorded using an allowance account. When
the Group is satisfied that recovery is remote,
the amount considered irrecoverable is
written off against receivables directly and any
amounts held in the allowance account
relating to that debt are reversed. Subseguent
recoveries of amounts previously charged to
the allowance account are reversed against
the allowance account. Other changes in the
allowance account and subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off directly are
recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fn & M m R

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(i) Impairment of assets (continued)

(ii)

Impairment of exploration and
evaluation assets

The carrying amount of the exploration and
evaluation assets is reviewed annually and
adjusted for impairment whenever one of the
following events or changes in circumstances
indicates that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable:

— the period for which the Group has the
right to explore in the specific area has
expired during the period or will expire
in the near future, and is not expected
to be renewed;

— substantive expenditure on further
exploration for and evaluation of mineral
resources in the specific area is neither
budgeted nor planned;

— exploration for and evaluation of mineral
resources in the specific area have not
led to the discovery of commercially
viable guantities of mineral resources
and the Group has decided to
discontinue such activities in the specific
area; or

— sufficient data exist to indicate that,
although a development in the specific
area is likely to proceed, the carrying
amount of the exploration and
evaluation asset is unlikely to be
recovered in full from successful
development of by sale.

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or
loss whenever the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

)

Impairment of assets (continued)

(iii)

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information
are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period to identify indications that the following
assets may be impaired or, except in the case
of goodwill, an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased:

—  property, plant and equipment;

— pre-paid interest in leasehold land
classified as being held under an
operating lease;

— investments in subsidiaries, except for
those classified as held for sale; and

—  goodwill.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. For
goodwill, the recoverable amount is estimated
annually whether or not there is any indication
of impairment.

—  Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is
the greater of its fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. Where an asset
does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets,
the recoverable amount is determined
for the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows independently
(i.e. a cash-generating unit).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fn & M m R

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EBEAEFEE@
(continued)
(i) Impairment of assets (continued) () EERE®E)
(iii) Impairment of other assets (continued) (i) HtEEREE)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in
profit or loss if the carrying amount of an
asset, or the cash-generating unit to
which it belongs, exceeds its
recoverable amount. Impairment losses
recognised in respect of cash-generating
units are allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the cash-generating unit (or
group of units) and then, to reduce the
carrying amount of the other assets in
the unit (or group of units) on a pro rata
basis, except that the carrying value of
an asset will not be reduced below its
individual fair value less costs of disposal
(if measurable), or value in use (if
determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill,
an impairment loss is reversed if there
has been a favourable change in the
estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount. An impairment loss
in respect of goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is
limited to the asset’s carrying amount
that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised in
prior years. Reversals of impairment
losses are credited to profit or loss in
the year in which the reversals are
recognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

)

(k)

Inventories
Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost
formula and comprises all costs of purchase, costs
of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing
the inventories to their present location and
condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of
those inventories is recognised as an expense in the
period in which the related revenue is recognised.
The amount of any write down of inventories to net
realisable value and all losses of inventories are
recognised as an expense in the period the write
down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of
any write down of inventories is recognised as a
reduction in the amount of inventories recognised
as an expense in the period in which the reversal
occurs.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised
at fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less allowance
for impairment of doubtful debts (see Note 2(i)(i)),
except where the receivables are interest-free loans
made to related parties without any fixed repayment
terms or the effect of discounting would be
immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are stated
at cost less allowance for impairment of doubtful
debts, if any.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

U]

Convertible bonds

Convertible bonds that can be converted to equity
share capital at the option of the holder, where the
number of shares that would be issued on
conversion and the value of the consideration that
would be received at that time do not vary, are
accounted for as compound financial instruments
which contain both a liability component and an
equity component.

At initial recognition the liability component of the
convertible bonds is measured as the present value
of the future interest and principal payments,
discounted at the market rate of interest applicable
at the time of initial recognition to similar liabilities
that do not have a conversion option. Any excess of
proceeds over the amount initially recognised as the
liability component is recognised as the equity
component. Transaction costs that relate to the
issue of a compound financial instrument are
allocated to the liability and equity components in
proportion to the allocation of proceeds.

The liability component is subsequently carried at
amortised cost. The interest expense recognised in
profit or loss on the liability component is calculated
using the effective interest method. The equity
component is recognised in the convertible bond
equity reserve until either the bond is converted or
redeemed, and net of any tax effects.

If the bond is converted, the convertible bond equity
reserve, together with the carrying amount of the
liability component at the time of conversion, is
transferred to share capital and share premium as
consideration for the shares issued. If the bond is
redeemed, the convertible bond equity reserve is
released directly to accumulated losses.

A financial liability is derecognised when the
obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled, or expires.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

)

(m)

(n)

(0)

Convertible bonds (continued)

When an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and a recognition of a new liability,
and the difference between the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in profit or loss.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially
at fair value less attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, interest bearing
borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any
difference between the amount initially recognised
and redemption value being recognised in profit or
loss over the period of the borrowings, together
with any interest and fees payable, using the
effective interest method.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at
fair value and subsequently stated at amortised cost
unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost
using the effective interest method.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and cash
equivalents and deposits with banks that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value, having been within three months of maturity
at acquisition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(p) Employee benefits

(i)

(i)

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans and the cost of non-
monetary benefits are accrued in the year in
which the associated services are rendered by
employee. Where payment or settlement is
deferred and the effect would be material,
these amounts are stated at their present
values.

Contributions to Mandatory Provident Funds
as required under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance and
contributions to the retirement schemes
operated by the relevant authorities for
employees of the subsidiaries in the Malaysia
and PRC are recognised as an expense in
profit or l0ss as incurred, except to the extent
that they are included in the cost of
inventories not yet recognised as an expense.

Termination benefits and share-based
payments

Termination benefits are recognised when,
and only when, the Group demonstrably
commits itself to terminate employment or to
provide benefits as a result of voluntary
redundancy by having a detailed formal plan
which is without realistic possibility of
withdrawal.

Share-based payments (the Group may issue
equity-settled and cash-settled share-based
payments to certain employees. Equity-settled
share-based payments are measured at fair
value (excluding the effect of non market-
based vesting conditions) of the equity
instruments at the date of grant. The fair value
determined at the grant date of the equity-
settled share-based payments is expensed on
a straight line basis over the vesting period,
based on the Group’s estimate of shares that
will eventually vest and adjusted for the effect
of non market-based vesting conditions).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(a)

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities.
Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets
and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss except
to the extent that they relate to business
combinations or items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case the relevant amounts of tax are
recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect
of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from
deductible and taxable temporary differences,
respectively, being the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
losses and unused tax credits.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(a)

Income tax (continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred
tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profits
will be available against which the asset can be
utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that
may support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences
include those that will arise from the reversal of
existing taxable temporary differences, provided
those differences relate to the same taxation
authority and the same taxable entity, and are
expected to reverse either in the same period as the
expected reversal of the deductible temporary
difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising
from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or
forward. The same criteria are adopted when
determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax
assets arising from unused tax losses and credits,
that is, those differences are taken into account if
they relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in
a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit
can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary
differences arising from goodwill not deductible for
tax purposes, the initial recognition of assets or
liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable
profit (provided they are not part of a business
combination), and temporary differences relating to
investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in the
case of taxable differences, the Group controls the
timing of the reversal and it is probable that the
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future, or in the case of deductible differences,
unless it is probable that they will reverse in the
future.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(a)

Income tax (continued)

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred
tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and is
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such
reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from
each other and are not offset. Current tax assets are
offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax
assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company
or the Group has the legally enforceable right to set
off current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and the following additional conditions are met:

— inthe case of current tax assets and liabilities,
the Group or the Company intends either to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously; or

— in the case of deferred tax assets and
liabilities, if they relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority on either:

— the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in each
future period in which significant
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled or
recovered, intend to realise the current
tax assets and settle the current tax
liabilities on a net basis or realise and
settle simultaneously.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

r

(s)

Provision and contingent liabilities
Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group or the Company
has a legal or constructive obligation arising as a
result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.
Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the amount
cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will
only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable. Provided it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can
be measured reliably, revenue is recognised in profit
or loss as follows:

(i) sale of goods
Revenue is recognised when significant risks
and rewards of ownership of the goods are
transferred to the buyer. Revenue excludes
value added tax and is after deduction of any
trade discounts.

(ii) Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues
using the effective interest method.

e BRI
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(s)

(t)

(u)

Revenue recognition (continued)

(iii) Rental income from operating leases
Rental income receivable under operating
leases is recognised in profit or loss in equal
instalments over the periods covered by the
lease term, except where an alternative basis
is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the use of the
leased asset.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the relevant exchange rates ruling at
the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at
the relevant exchange rates ruling at the end of the
reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are
measured in terms of historical cost in foreign
currencies are translated using the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the transaction dates.

The results of relevant operations in other
jurisdictions are translated into HKD at the exchange
rates approximating the relevant exchange rates
ruling at the dates of the transactions. Statement of
financial position items, including goodwill arising
on consolidation of foreign operations acquired on
or after 1 January 2005, are translated into HKD at
the closing foreign exchange rates at the end of the
reporting period. The resulting exchange differences
are recognised directly in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in equity in the
exchange reserve.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset
which necessarily takes a substantial period of time
to get ready for its intended use or sale are
capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which
they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(V)

Non-current assets held for sale

A non-current asset (or disposal group) is classified
as held for sale if it is highly probable that its
carrying amount will be recovered through a sale
transaction rather than through continuing use and
the asset (or disposal group) is available for sale in
its present condition. A disposal group is a group of
assets to be disposed of together as a group in a
single transaction, and liabilities directly associated
with those assets that will be transferred in the
transaction.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan
involving loss of control of a subsidiary, all the
assets and liabilities of that subsidiary are classified
as held for sale when the above criteria for
classification as held for sale are met, regardless of
whether the Group will retain a non-controlling
interest in the subsidiary after the sale.

Immediately before classification as held for sale,
the measurement of the non-current assets (and all
individual assets and liabilities in a disposal group) is
brought up-to-date in accordance with the
accounting policies before the classification. Then,
on initial classification as held for sale and until
disposal, the non-current assets (except for certain
assets as explained below), or disposal groups, are
recognised at the lower of their carrying amount
and fair value less costs to sell. The principal
exceptions to this measurement policy so far as the
financial statements of the Group and the Company
are concerned are deferred tax assets, financial
assets (other than investments in subsidiaries) and
investment properties. These assets, even if held for
sale, would continue to be measured in accordance
with the policies set out elsewhere in Note 2.

Impairment losses on initial classification as held for
sale, and on subsequent remeasurement while held
for sale, are recognised in profit or loss. As long as a
non-current asset is classified as held for sale, or is
included in a disposal group that is classified as held
for sale, the non-current asset is not depreciated or
amortised.

e BRI
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(w) Related parties
A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

0)

()

has control or joint control over the
Group;

has significant influence over the Group;
or

is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group’s
parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

()

)

(V1)

The entity and the Group are members
of the same group (which means that
each parent, subsidiary and fellow
subsidiary is related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a member
of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of
either the Group or an entity related to
the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in ().

A person identified in (i)(I) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(w) Related parties (continued)
Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that person in their dealings
with the entity.

(X) Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the consolidated financial
statements, are identified from the financial
information provided regularly to the Group’s most
senior executive management (being the chief
operating decision maker) (“CODM") for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing
the performance of, the Group’s various lines of
business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless
the segments have similar economic characteristics
and are similar in respect of the nature of products
and services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used to
distribute the products or provide the services, and
the nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segment which are not individually materials may
be aggregated if they share a majority of these
criteria.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The HKICPA has issued several amendments to HKFRSS
that are first effective for the current accounting period of
the Group. Of these, the following development is relevant
to the Group's consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 27, Investment entities

The amendments provide consolidation relief to those
parents which qualify to be an investment entity as
defined in the amended HKFRS 10. Investment entities are
required to measure their subsidiaries at fair value
through profit or loss. These amendments do not have an
impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements
as the Group does not qualify to be an investment entity.
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CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Amendments to HKAS 32, Offsetting financial
assets and financial liabilities

The amendments to HKAS 32 clarify the offsetting criteria
in HKAS 32. The amendments do not have an impact on
the Group's consolidated financial statements as they are
consistent with the policies already adopted by the Group.

Amendments to HKAS 36, Recoverable
amount disclosures for non-financial assets
The amendments to HKAS 36 modify the disclosure
requirements for impaired non-financial assets. Among
them, the amendments expand the disclosures required
for an impaired asset or cash-generating unit whose
recoverable amount is based on fair value less costs of
disposal. The disclosures required by the amendments
are generally more extensive than those previously
required by the respective standards. To the extent that
the requirements are applicable to the Group, the Group
has provided those disclosures in Note 2().

HK(IFRIC) 21, Levies

The interpretation provides guidance on when a liability to
pay a levy imposed by a government should be
recognised. The interpretation does not have an impact
on the Group’s consolidated financial statements as it is
consistent with the policies already adopted by the Group.

The Group has not applied any new standard or

interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period (see Note 40).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TURNOVER

Turnover represents the sales value of magnesium ingots
and related materials, and bottled mineral water supplied
to customers. The amount of each significant category of
revenue recognised in turnover during the year is as
follows:

e BRI

BXEE

BEBEFRMRS HESEERARIHIAR
ARBR AN HEEE - NENERREEEL
FEARANEFISEMT -

Sales of bottled mineral water
Sales of magnesium ingots
and related materials

OTHER REVENUE

S E AR R K
HEBRTE BB

Interest income FEWA
Rental income from drilling machines REBRENES KA
Sundry income FETEWA

OTHER NET GAINS

2014

—E—-NF

HKD

BT
948,213 4,802,700
38,730,049 16,098,739
39,678,262 20,901,439

H g A

2014

—E-NF

HKD

BT
4,619 10,164
28,186 27,273
337,472 394,907
370,277 432,344

2014
—EF-nmFE

HKD
BT

Fair value change in contingent
consideration receivable

Net foreign exchange gains b W a5 558

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (Note 33) H&MB A a8 as (X 33)

FER K ARER A FEE

- 44,879,766

18,461 111,047
10,471,934 -
10,490,395 44,990,813
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e BRI

7 LOSS BEFORE TAXATION 7 BRE A 18
Loss before taxation is arrived at after charging/ BREAIEIBE MR (GEA)
(crediting):
(@) Finance costs: (@) WERA:
2014
—E-NF
HKD
BT
Interest on bank loans *: IRITERFE
— wholly repayable within 5 years — HRAFRNEEEE 30,402,027 9,356,279
— wholly repayable after 5 years — HRAFETBEER = 30,868,810
30,402,027 40,225,089
Effective interest on convertible bonds I EFEE FI E 19,467,369 19,362,417
Interest on unsecured loans from KEE=HERAFR
third parties wholly repayable BEEENEER
within 5 years BERRFE - 24,034,565
Amortisation of loan transaction BERRZ S A (M 5E27)
costs (Note 27) 372,904 411,611
Finance charges on obligations BVE TR E RN % E A
under finance leases 42,654 111,053
Other borrowings costs BB EMmEEK AR
to financial institutions 698,158 -
Others Eh (31,097) -
20,549,988 43,919,646
50,952,015 84,144,735
* The analysis shows the finance costs on bank loans, * AMINRBITER (BEHARERER RN
including terms loans which contain a repayment on BHER) WBER A TRIBEE BT E
demand clause, in accordance with the agreed scheduled BEEEAHET BE_T-ONFR=-F
repayment dates set out in the loan agreements. For the —ZF+Z A=t -HLFE HBEREKRE
years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013, the interest on BIERERITEZRF B 5 B 430,402,027 % T
bank loans which contain a repayment on demand clause 240,225,089 7T ©
amounted to HKD30,402,027 and HKD40,225,089,
respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

LOSS BEFORE TAXATION (continued) 7 BREATEIE®)
(b) Staff costs (including directors’ (b) BEINAX(BIEEEHM) (ME9) :
remuneration) (Note 9):

2014
—E—NF
HKD
BT
Salaries, wages, bonuses e 1B ek
and other benefits H A iEF| 8,700,502 9,764,426
Contributions to defined M5 H TR RET B
contribution retirement plan 538,201 503,081
9,238,703 10,267,507
(c) Other operating expenses (c) H&Em%:

Impairment losses: BEEE
— exploration and evaluation assets ~ — ¥ RS EEE
(Note 15) (BF5E15) 108,208,053 207,562,580
— goodwill (Note 14) — g2 (fsE14) = 111,180,501
— interests in leasehold land — e RS
(Note 13(a)) (MF3E13()) 2,858,305 571,665
— other receivable and — E b FEUEIE &
prepayments SCENE S 1,767,649 25,899
— property, plant and equipment — W - BB KRB
(Note 13(a)) (M45E13(@)) 130,976,015 26,195,379
243,810,022 345,536,024
Write offs: s
— inventories (Note 18(b)) — FE (FisE18(h) = 135,510
— property, plant and equipment — W BB RE = 15,525

= 151,035

243,810,022 345,687,059
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e BRI

7 LOSS BEFORE TAXATION (continued) 7 MRELAIE IS (&)
(d) Other items: (d H#bmEH :

2014
—E-mE

HKD
BT

Amortisation of interests in leasehold  IRIBLEL T EHE

land held for own use under BAMNHEE T
operating leases (Note 13(a)) FERR S (MHEE13(@)) 129,465 142,916
Auditors’ remuneration ZEE S 1,175,496 1,243,855
Cost of inventories sold# (Note 18(b)) BEFERA (FIFE18(0) 59,509,517 46,113,638
Depreciation (Note 13(a)) P& (M3E13(@)) 23,572,035 25,538,212
Operating lease charges in respect of. BB 7| ZIEAKEZ
MEZH :
— equipment and machinery — AR Nt EE - 1,403
— office equipment | VNE L 34,173 197,796
— office premises — WREYE 1,506,399 2,117,238
— staff housing —BIES - 10,831
Net loss on disposal of property, HEWE - BEMEEN
plant and equipment E18 558 - 786,486
# The cost of inventories sold includes HKD25,141,265 (2013: # HETRA  TEREERZBERNEESEFE
HKD27,742,894) relating to staff costs, depreciation and B 7R 25,141,265 T ( =T — = 4F : 27,742,894
amortisation expenses, which amount is also included in T INED AR _E XM EE7(0) S BRI X
the respective total amounts disclosed separately above or DRRBENEEREES

in Note 7(b) for each of these types of expenses.
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8 INCOME TAX
(@) Taxation in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss represents:

e BRI

8 BB
(a) HEBEBIRPIBIANAR:

2014
—E-mE

HKD
BT

Current tax — Malaysian

RYHIE — FRAR

Income Tax Frig®i
Provision for the year FEEE 138,017 387,359
under-provision in respect of prior year B FEEE TR 3,651 -
141,668 387,359
Deferred tax BN IE
Reversal of temporary differences B o e = (FRE29)
(Note 29) (23,492,927) (40,558,183)
Total income tax credit Frig il e fa ke (23,351,259) (40,170,824)

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity
basis on profits arising in or derived from the
jurisdictions in which members of the Group are
domiciled and operated. The directors of the
Company determine the effective tax rate of the
Group is 16.5% (2013: 16.5%).

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% (2013:
16.5%) of the estimated assessable profits for the
year ended 31 December 2014. No provision for
Hong Kong Profits Tax had been made as the Group
did not have assessable profit which is subject to
Hong Kong Profits Tax for the years ended 31
December 2014 and 2013.

Malaysian Income Tax is calculated at 25% (2013:
25%) of assessable profits for the year ended 31
December 2014. The provision of Malaysian Income
Tax is calculated at 25% of the estimated assessable
profits for the years ended 31 December 2014 and
2013.

AEBEARNAEERKE R F) ML REE
RSP RDAE R FTE £ B REF) - R EE
FEEMMFTISR - NARESHTALEEZ B
FREE165%(ZF—=4F : 16.5%) °

EAFNESR BB EE—_T—NFEF+-_A=+—
BIEFEZ G ERREFIZ165% (T —=
F165%) T8 - ARAEEEEZE T —TF
T =+ A=Z+—BLFEIERR
BB G ERTURF - BERES
MBS -

BRAEHMERIBEHE-_T—OF+=A
=+ —BIEFEZERBAFIZ25% (2T —=
& 25%)FTE - BARARATSH A BE R E
HE T NFER-_ZE—=F+=-A=+—H
LIEFE G ERBURFIZ 25% 51 E -
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8

126

INCOME TAX (continued)
(@) Taxation in the consolidated statement

of profit or loss represents: (continued)

In accordance with the tax laws of Indonesia,
companies engaged in metal, mineral and coal
mining are governed by a particular contract of
work and this is used for computation of the
domestic income tax relating to that contract of
work. Since the natural resources located in
Indonesia are still in a preliminary exploration phase,
the management of the Company was unable to
ascertain from the local tax authorities the tax rate
that should be applied to its mining operations for
the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013. No
provision for Indonesian Income Tax has been made
as the Group did not have assessable profit which is
subject to Indonesian Income Tax for the years
ended 31 December 2014 and 2013.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax
(the “EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of
the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiary is
25% (2013: 25%) for the year ended 31 December
2014. No provision for PRC Enterprise Income Tax
has been made as the Group did not have
assessable profit which is subject to the PRC Income
Tax for the years ended 31 December 2014 and
2013.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the British
Virgin Islands (the “BVI"), the Group is not subject to
any income tax in this jurisdiction.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fn & M m R

8 INCOME TAX (continued) 8 MmBHw®w
(b) The reconciliation between tax credit and (b) REAMEHEHEECHESHTE
accounting loss at applicable tax rates is BHHEROT :
as follows:

Loss before taxation

Notional tax on loss before tax,
calculated at the rates applicable
to profits in the tax jurisdictions
concerned

Tax effect of non-taxable income

Tax effect of non-deductible expenses

Tax effect of unused tax losses
not recognised

Tax effect of utilised tax losses
not recognised

Tax effect of reversal of temporary
differences previously recognised

Tax effect of temporary differences
not recognised

Under-provision in previous year

Actual income tax credit

B 15 Al 5 18

BA R R AR R G T
ERARERE 2
BB R R ENIR

BERVRAZ BRI E
PRMBHAX 2 RGEFE
RERZ REABIAEE
ZHRGHE
AR 2 D BAHIARR
2R E
BOBECHALRER
ZRBHE
AEREREEL
D2
BEFERETR

ERPIEHE SR

2014
—E—NF

HKD
BT

(349,837,025)  (453,153,873)
(80,487,807)  (100,379,217)
(1,777,998) (15,809,450)
65,848,573 88,519,487
2,370,475 21,704,628

= (2,489)
(23,492,927) (40,558,183)
14,184,774 6,354,400
3,651 -
(23,351,259) (40,170,824)
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9 DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION 9 E=EMS
Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 78 BIEFEE QRO FE62EF) E7815M &
of Schedule 11 to the new Hong Kong Companies 1M W2BEAEBQREHN(ERE) F 167
Ordinance (Cap. 622), with reference to section 161 of the GEHRENESHSOT
predecessor Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32),
is as follows:
2014
—E-mE
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’ and benefits  Discretionary scheme
fees in kind bonuses  contributions
e 2 BREHE
E3e RENFIE Rt {3
HKD HKD HKD HKD
B B B BT
Executive directors: nTES
DU Jian Jun HRE(RZZ-mF
(Appointed on 16 June 2014) NATABEZE) 260,000 - - - 260,000
JiKuang HE 342,000 = = = 342,000
Dato' Lim Ooi Hong SEWEE 240,000 347,901 = 17,395 605,296
Leung Wai Kwan 2UHFE = 480,000 40,000 16,500 536,500
Meng Xiao Ying ANE(RZF-[E
(Appointed on 26 February 2014)  — A=+ XBEZEE) 320,000 - - - 320,000
Fan Wei Peng BREMR-Z-1%
(Appointed on 16 March 2015) At BEZE) - - - - -
Zheng Chan Xing gex(h=2—1f
(Appointed on 16 March 2015) At BEZE) - - - - -
Chong Cha Hwa FRERZZ-NE

(Appointed on 26 February 2014 — A=+ ABEZER
and resigned on 30 October 2014)  MZF—M%F

+A=THE) 330,000 = = - 330,000

Independent non-executive directors: By JEH{TES -
Tony Tan 3 124,680 - - = 124,680
Wong Choi Kay BER 124,680 - - - 124,680
ChanKin Ho Philip REz(R-Z-mE

(Appointed on 22 July 2014) +tAZ+-BEZA) = - - - -
Tian Jing Hua HRE(RZ2-NEF

(Appointed on 23 July 2014) +tAZ+=BEZA) = - - - -
Cheung Ning RE(RZZ-—NF

(Appointed on 17 June 2014) ~ATEREZRE) - - - - -
Chong Lee Chang KAR(RZZ-—EF

(resigned on 23 July 2014) tAZ+=HEf) 74,630 - - = 74,630
Total st 1,816,040 827,901 40,000 33,895 2,717,836

128  DING HE MINING HOLDINGS LIMITED S MR ERA T



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

9 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) 9 EEME @)

Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’  and benefits scheme
fees inkind contributions
, RIKETE
EZHE ) 5 NI {EA R
HKD HKD
BT BT 7 BT
Executive directors: HITES !
JiKuang HE - 804,000 - - 804,000
Li Zi Cong (resigned on ZIR(N-_T—=F
6 September 2013) NESBEHT) - 260,000 - - 260,000
Liang Hai Yang (resigned on 2EHEN_T—=F
30 September 2013) NA=THEL) - 270,000 - - 270,000
Dato’ Lim Qoi Hong SEWEE - 147,698 - 19,201 166,899
Leung Wai Kwan RUE - 480,000 40,000 15,000 535,000
Independent non-executive BV IEHITEE
directors:
Chong Lee Chang KR 125,520 - - - 125,520
Tony Tan [ 120,840 - - - 120,840
Wong Choi Kay BEH 116,160 - - - 116,160
Total et 362,520 1,961,698 40,000 34,201 2,398,419
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10

130

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST 10 BEFMAL

EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, four hEESFMATEENZ(ZE—=4 : I%&)
(2013: four) are directors whose emoluments are BE HEOFHMERMEORKE - BEHAM
disclosed in Note 9. The aggregate of the emoluments in (Z2—=F —&) ATHHMEERT :

respect of the other (2013: one) individual is as follows:

Salaries, allowances and benefits inkind  #& - 28 R EYWHZR 323,285 500,687
Retirement scheme contributions RIRETEIH IR 10,125 -

333,410 500,687
Their emoluments were all within HKDNil to HERNSHRZEITE 1,000,000 8 7T IARA ©

HKD1,000,000.

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group FA - AEEWERAR R E E LR 5
to any of the directors of the Company or the five highest R B AT ERFMERIMARKINAZRE
paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining EEOFFRREBLFE BRE_T—OF
the Group or as a compensation for loss of office. No ZF—=F+ZA=+—HBLEFE  #E\ELRQ
directors of the Company have waived or agreed to waive AE B WE R B E REE B -

any emoluments during the years ended 31 December

2014 and 2013.
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11 LOSS PER SHARE 11 BRERE
(a) Basic loss per share (@) BREXEE

The calculation of basic loss per share is based on BRERNBEDERERNARREE AR
the loss attributable to owners of the Company of 1l 85 18279,819,9108 o ( — & — = & ¢
HKD279,819,910 (2013: HKD322,357,788) and the 322,357,788 L) M B BT 5 h1#E 15
weighted average number of 1,960,842,643 (2013: 1,960,842,6430( — & — = F:
1,413,974,956) shares in issue during the year, 1,413,974,956 % )T E AT -

calculated as follows:

(i) Number of shares: iy B0 A :
2014
—E-IF
Issued ordinary shares at 1 January R—A—H®HB#TLER 1,608,184,265 5,012,680,556
Effect of issue of new shares REROEEMET
pursuant to a share placing #ﬁﬁxfﬁﬁ’]?ﬁ%
(Note 30(b)(ii)) (BT 5 30(0)(iD) 135,703,956 88,119,452
Effect of shares consolidation HxT’V\ﬁTrE’JE’?
(Note 30(b)(ii)) (B 3E 30(b)iii)) - (4,020,462,798)
Effect of shares issued upon EAL%T?‘*H&F#H%
conversion of convertible bonds %“ﬁﬂxﬁﬁ’] 2
(Note 30(b)(ii)) (BT 7 30() (i) = 333,637,746
Effect of shares issued pursuantto the  1RiE &% ém tﬁﬂ%"ﬂ
loan capitalisation (Note 30(b)(ii)) BaEEZA R ) 216,954,422 -
Weighted average number of shares R+ =A=+—B&KH
at 31 December IETE Y 1,960,842,643 1,413,974,956

(b) Diluted loss per share

(b) SREBEFER

BEREEEENFELERRERLRR
EER S VEIE S E T I R Iﬁ
TESEEHERERRD

The computation of diluted loss per share does not
assume the conversion of the Company’s
outstanding convertible bonds and warrants since

their exercise would result in a decrease in loss per

share.
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12 SEGMENT REPORTING 12 DEEHK
The Group has identified the reportable segments set out REEDHE T XEHINNAIZ2|mOEL - BRERS
below. The segment information reported internally to the e R RIRFFEE A MAANEEEZLERKE
Group's CODM for the purposes of resource allocation NESERRE) D HBE R EZEHRE T IERERAM
and performance assessment is the same as those FRRE R -

reported in the consolidated financial statements.

Mining of dolomite  This segment includes trading of RAFEEEA KR It EBRIEEIEE S - BAl
and manufacture  magnesium ingots. Currently, the A E T AEBENESEHEEHER
of magnesium Group's trading activities are ER SR GEHETT o
ingots mainly carried out in South

America and Malaysia.

Exploration for iron  This segment is engaged in the BEEEL D EEHER EHFREE
ore, coal and exploration for iron ore, coal and S & A ERE - RS
manganese manganese in Indonesia. The ERBMREREGONE R

activities carried out in Indonesia HET o
are through indirectly owned
subsidiaries.

Extraction and This segment is engaged in the R ER b5 BB P B =R HR Je 3
bottling of mineral  extraction and bottling of mineral B RK IMIERK o £ B EY)E )2
water water in the PRC. The activities mE—RRAEREENRER

carried out in the PRC are through AIHETT ©

indirectly owned subsidiary.
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12 SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)
(@) Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purpose of assessing segment performance
and allocating resources between segments, the
Group’s CODM monitors the results, assets and
liabilities attributable to each reportable segment on
the following basis:

Segment assets include all non-current assets and
current assets with the exception of assets
classified as held for sale, pledged deposits, cash
and cash equivalents and other corporate assets.
Segment liabilities include non-current liabilities and
current liabilities with the exception of liabilities
associated with assets classified as held for sale,
secured bank loans, convertible bonds, deferred tax
liabilities, unsecured loans from third parties and
other corporate liabilities.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the
reportable segments with reference to sales
generated by those segments and the expenses
incurred by those segments or which otherwise
arise from depreciation or amortisation of assets
attributable to those segments.

Segment loss represents loss resulted by each
segment without allocation of central administration
costs including interest on bank loans, convertible
bonds and unsecured loans from third parties, and
directors’ emoluments, etc. This is the measure
reported to the Group’s CODM for the purpose of
resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance.

e BRI

12 DHF2HRWE)

(@

THEE BERAE

ERFEDHEEREDHEIEER
AEENETRLERRERATEEEE
BET2HOMEGESE  EERAE:

NEEEBREFMEIERDEERRDE

E ETERIBABESEEE EM
TR RehReEEMUREMARE

E-NHABEREFRADEERRDE
& BETEERESBEAFESEEAENR
MEE - FEMRITER  THRERES -
BELEHRAERE REF=HEERERLK
HpAREE-

WARSHTI2ER 2
BRZEDHAERZED
FTEREHEMELN T ETMD

EHDE ©

BOBMEENHE
D RS B E
BE%EAH

D EBRER D BAAEHMAD B RIT
A (BAESRITER - AR EF KK
BE=ZNEERERNNENLEEH
F)NEER - ERUDEEREFE D
REMAAEE LI BREERRERSOHE
i
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12 SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 12 oH2H#)
(@) Segment results, assets and liabilities (a) PHX£E -BEEREEH)
(continued)

Mining of
dolomite and Exploration Extraction
manufacture for iron ore, and bottling
of magnesium coal and of mineral

ingots manganese water
BRAZAR HASERE - RER
LEER KR EMWRK
HKD HKD HKD

AT AR BT

Year ended 31 December 2014 BE-E-ME+-R

St-HLEE
Reportable segment revenue (Note) BEEGE NS 38,730,049 - 948,213 39,678,262
Segment loss PEEE (29,521,729) 53,612 (7,793,872) (37,261,989)
Interest income FIEWA 4,235 = 178 4,413
Finance costs BERA (30,805,679) - (4,125) (30,809,804)
Depreciation and amortisation nEREH (22,249,215) (156,391) (1,137,920) (23,543,526
Impairment of e
— exploration and evaluation assets — R EE - (41,871,600) (66,336,453)  (108,208,053)
— Interests on leasehold land —HEHmiER (2,858,305) - - (2,858,305)
—other receivables and prepayments  — i EIKEIER
E2E (849,607) - (643,582) (1,493,189)
— property, plant and equipment — 0% BELEE (130,976,015) - - (130,976,015)
Write down of inventories (Note 18(b) 77 &g, (3T 18(0)) (862,884) - (219,353) (1,082,237)
As at 31 December 2014 HW-3-m&E+=8
=+-H
Segment assets DUBE 236,346,968 22,851,138 31,395,923 290,594,029
Segment liabilities PHEE (9,676,922) (1,683,527) (9,139,508)  (20,499,957)
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12 SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 12 7HE2HK#)
(@) Segment results, assets and liabilities () PHX£E -BEEREEH)
(continued)

Mining of
dolomite and Exploration Extraction
manufacture foriron are, and bottling
of magnesium coal and of mineral

ingots manganese water

3 RG> RER

REESR ERERK
0

S
870

Year ended 31 December 2013 BZ-2--E1-§

St-HLEE

Reportable segment revenue (Note) DEE:GE L INGIES) 16,098,739 - 4,802,700 20,901,439
Segment loss PEEE (9.437,982) (1,138,078) (11,048,162) (21,624,222)
Interest income FlEWBA 9,696 - 17 9,867
Finance costs BERA (40,729,769) - - (40,729,769)
Depreciation and amortisation TEREH (24,696,259) (178,458) (654,526) (25,529,242)
Loss on disposal of property, HENE - BERS

plant and equipment HEE (786,486) - - (786,486)
Impairment of HiE

— exploration and evaluation assets — R EE - (133,323,080) (74,239,500) (207,562,580)

— goodwil —BE - - (111,180,501) (111,180,501)

— interests in leasehold land —HETER (571,665) - - (671,665)

—other receivables and prepayments  — EfEKEIER

B FE (25,899) - - (25,899)

— property, plant and equipment — 0% BELE (26,195,379) - - (26,195,379)
Write down of inventories (Note 18(b) &%, (M3 18(0)) (952,452) - - (952,452)
Additions to segment non-current assets A HIEREAERE - - 168,234 168,234
As at 31 December 2013 R=B-=%+=R8

=t-H

Segment assets NEEE 419,331,483 64,747,930 100,583,415 584,662,828

Segment liabilities AHEE (9,011,598) (2,012,560) (13,374,702) (24,398,860)
Note: B 5E
Segment revenue reported above represents revenue generated ENFERDHBBAEREIMNBEEHWA « RNEEIL
from external customers. There were no inter-segment sales in the A EEEE (ZT—=F - |&) -

current year (2013: Nil).
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12 SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 12 DEEHRE)
(b) Reconciliations of reportable segment (b) AE2HmoIUA - B BERERE
revenues, profit or loss, assets and ¥ R
liabilities
2014
—E-mEF
HKD
BT
Revenue KA
Reportable segment revenue Al 25 EPUA 39,678,262 20,901,439
Loss &8
Reportable segment loss Al 2/ EhEE (37,261,989) (21,624,222)
Depreciation and amortisation Pres (23,701,500) (25,681,128)
Fair value change in contingent FEM A RER
consideration receivable N EED - 44,879,766
Finance costs BhE AR (50,952,015) (84,144,735)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HENB AR 10,471,934 -
Interest income FLEMA 4,619 10,164
Impairment of exploration and R AT A ERE
evaluation assets (108,208,053)  (207,562,580)
Impairment of goodwill EERE - (111,180,501)
Impairment of interests in leasehold land 8 & + #2585 {E (2,858,305) (571,665)
Impairment of other receivables and o FE U IR
prepayments A IR RVE (1,767,649) (25,899)
Impairment of property, plant and Yz - BB KRB RE
equipment (130,976,015) (26,195,379)
Loss on disposal of property, plantand HE%% « BE &
equipment BEREE = (786,486)
Write down of inventories FEMR (1,082,237) (952,452)
Write off of inventories FEMHE = (135,510)
Write off of property, plant and VI - R K R s
equipment = (15,525)
Other unallocated amounts HEMARDE e (3,505,815) (19,167,721)
Consolidated loss before taxation M FERIAR A B 1R (349,837,025)  (453,153,873)
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12 SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 12 W2/

AE{FSMBYA - 8% EERER

(b) Reconciliations of reportable segment (b)

revenues, profit or loss, assets and
liabilities (continued)

HYSIBR (48)

Assets EE
Reportable segment assets &“ BB E 290,594,029 584,662,828
Unallocated corporate assets: NEEE
Assets classified as held for sale ﬁiﬁiﬁ%ﬁf’ﬁ%% BE = 340,070
Pledged deposits BERFR 2,735 2,968
Cash and cash equivalents Be RIRSEEY 378,935 423,524
Others Hib 4,710,023 3,628,317
Consolidated total assets BEE 295,685,722 589,057,707
Liabilities EE
Reportable segment liabilities i& DEpAE (20,499,957) (24,398,860)
Unallocated corporate liabilities: NEAE:
Bank loans — secured *ﬁ‘ %ﬁ#fﬁﬁ%ﬁ b (445,441,694)  (454,260,751)
Convertible bonds AR ES (101,130,267) (91,253,010)
Unsecured loans from third parties REFZHEEFER = (181,037,242)
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIBAE (8,568,647) (32,061,574)
Liabilities associated with assets HYBRRBEHEEE
classified as held for sale 7FE BHaE = (2,819,092)
Others Hip (19,098,144) (7,810,335)
Consolidated total liabilities GBEE (594,738,709)  (793,640,864)
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12 SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 12

(c)

(d)

Geographical information

The following tables set out information about the
geographical location of (i) the Group's revenue
from external customers and (ii) the Group’s
property, plant and equipment, goodwill, exploration
and evaluation assets and mining deposit (“specified
non-current assets”). The geographical location of
customers is based on the location at which the
goods are delivered. The geographical location of
the specific non-current assets is based on: (1) the
physical location of the asset in case of property,
plant and equipment; and (2) the location of the
operations to which they are allocated, in case of
intangible assets and goodwill.

South America Malaysia
Bx FREE
2014 2 2014 2013

ZB-pE SR CR-QE
HKD HKD
BT iy BT

DEB2HR (&)

() HEEH
TREINERBOAKEREINDEF K
A RNAEEME BEERREB B
2 WHREEEEARRERS ([EE
FRBEEWHBLEER - TPHOM
B ETRBMEERAETE © #87E
FERBEENMIBAETIA  (WVEERE
i (R @Y% - BB &RE) - RQEDE
BEXGMAEL(RBETVEEREE) D

e

The PRC Others* Total

h Hfp* ]
2014 2 2014 013 2014
“E-mE “E-MEF -3 ZB-MF
HKD HKD HKD HKD
BT BT B BT A

Turnover ] 38,013,988 12,956,651 716,061 2,718,078

948213 4802700 = 04010~ 39678262 20901439

* Others principally included Japan and Middle East

Hong Kong Malaysia

Eis ERED
2014 2013 2014 2013
“§-mF  F--F  C§-MF 3=

HKD HKD HKD HKD

* Hi = EBFEAARHR

The PRC Indonesia Total

7 oE @it
2014 2 2014 2 2014
—§-mF “%-RmE E-mE
HKD HKD HKD

A AL B B

Specified non-current pfraE ok Y-
assets 4,624,245 1217927 229,226,226 411,632,009

o i A 7 AL

30850732 94061297 ~ 22,430,281 64,686,117 287,131,484 571597350

Information about major customers
Revenue from sales of goods to customers
represents 10% or more of the Group’s total
revenue is shown as follows:

(d) EEXEEFHNEHR
HEERTEPABRAMEARERBUA
10% KA EEFHIT -

Customer A ZEA

All revenue disclosed above is related to the “mining
of dolomite and manufacture of magnesium ingots”
reportable segment.
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13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13 YM%¥ - - BERRXRE
(@) The Group (a) X&£H

Interests in
leasehold
land held

for own
Furniture use under
Plant and Motor and Office  Computer operating

Buildings machinery  vehicles  fittings equipment equipment  Retorts  Sub-otal leases
RESEHT

KERREE

BERKE AE BARKE BOERE  EMRE i iR

HKD

Cost: A
At 1 January 2013 R-%-zZ%-5-8 201012664 4284715589 3157100 14,250,474 114939 107457 83690721 730804914 14,901,888 745,706,802
Adaltions HE 141,766 14,426 - 456,349 38,842 14,824 - 666,207 - 666,207
Reclassified as held for sale (Note 220~ EFHBARIELE (M 22) - (19969 - (10,904 - (7.55) - (16850 - (168150
Disposals e - - (774433 (1,981877) - - - (2756310 - (2756310
Write off it - - - (27,000 - - - (27,000 - (27,000
Bxchange adjustments EREE (13,09.311)  (28,308,225) (97954) (932.979) (10441) 640 (5530937 (47982484 (984833) (48967317
At31December 2013 RoB-ZE+-A=+-0 188055119 400028008 2284713 11754067 143,340 11208 78159784 680,537,177 13917055 694,454,232
At 1 January 2014 RZE-IE-A-B 188,055,119 400,028,068 2284713 11,754,067 143,340 112086 78159784 680537177 13917055 694,454,232
Adaltions HE won 410218 - 2082 - 6820 - 6252098 - 6,252,098
Bxchange adjustments EREE (11,328,576 (24,935,590) (711463 (696,636) (2,465) (584) (4368638 (41903952 (8k6904) (42,770,85%)
At31December 2014 WoE-MET-R=1-H 176867554 381194663 2213250 11,059,513 140,875 118322 73291146 644885323 13050151 657,935474
Accumulated depreciation, ZithE  BERAE:

amortisation and impairment:
At 1 January 2013 RZE-=F-f-H 60319234 140,308,154 1016714 5718126 38377 81015 27708276  2352498% 4,816,140 240,066,036
Charge for the year ERYH 106565 6T8ETT 2225 1,013 2039 0173 31981 B5RA2 1U2Y6 25681128
Impairment HE 7,736,748 15,407,120 20,554 - - - 303097 261953719 571665 26,767,004
Reclassiied as held for sale Note 220~ ERABAHIENE (W 2) - @) - (2357 - (3759 - W - W
Written back on Disposals HERR - - (0683 (39045) - - - [19189) - ()
Write off ] - - - (11,475 - - - (11479) - (11475)
Bxchange adjustments Ex A% (4133038 (9910,848) (57,584) (425518) (7.850) (1195 (1,953135) (16494168 (323770) (16,817,938
At 31 December 2013 RZF-=F+=A=1-A 67980509 162521937 1,045,105 5969643 50917 86200 31978929 269633280 5200951 274,840,231
At January 2014 RZE-I5-A-R 67980509 162521937 1045105 5969643 50917 86200 31978929 269633280 5206951 274,840,231
Charge for the year FRYH 36719926 15,707,568 20625 1042199 14,748 14388 2892581 23572035 129465 23701500
Impairment HE 38,683,958 77,035,083 102291 - - - 15154683 130976015 2858305 133834320
Exchange adjustments EfEE (4304489) (1219414 (34.408)  (306,782) (2762 (3700 (2076087 (19059042 (652841) (19,711,883
At31 December 2014 RoZ-MET-F=+-H 105949904 243070444 1333613 6,655,060 62903 100258 47950106 405122088 7541880 412,664,168
Carrying amount: RAEE:
At 31 December 2014 RZE-BET=A=1-A 70917650 138,124,219 879637 4404453 71912 18064 20341040 239763035 5508271 245,271,306
At 31 December 2013 RoZ-ZE+ZF=+-0 120074810 237506131 1239608 5784424 9243 20846 46180855 410903897 8,710,104 419,614,001
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e BRI

13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13 Y% - - BERRKE®E)
(continued)
(b) The Company (b) ZA&AF]
Office Furniture Computer Motor
equipment  and fittings  equipment vehicle
BAERE  BAREE ERE AE
HKD HKD HKD HKD
BT B BT B
Cost; B
At 1 January 2013 W-ZE-=%—F—H 22,042 99,218 87,888 858,446 1,067,594
Additions BNE 26,800 456,349 14,824 - 497,973
Write off ik - (27,000) - - (27,000)
At 31 December 2013 RZE-=%+ZA=+—H 48,842 528,567 102,712 858,446 1,538,567
At 1 January 2014 RZE-mF—f—-H 48,842 528,567 102,712 858,446 1,538,567
Additions NE - - 6,820 - 6,820
At 31 December 2014 RZE-MF+ZA=+—H 48,842 528,567 109,532 858,446 1,545,387
Accumulated depreciation:  Zi#7E
At 1 January 2013 W-Z-=%—-F-H 6,923 31,307 74,003 100,152 212,385
Charge for the year FRYH 2874 24,55 6,455 85,845 119730
Write off s - (11,475) - - (11,475)
At 31 December 2013 RZE-=4+ZA=+-H 9.797 44,388 80,458 185,997 320,640
At 1 January 2014 RZE-W§—A—H 9.797 44,388 80,458 185,997 320,640
Charge for the year FRYH 4,884 52,857 12,621 85,845 156,207
At 31 December 2014 RZE-EF+=A=1T—H 14,681 97,245 93,079 271,842 476,847
Carrying amount; SREE :
At 31 December 2014 RZE-EE+=ZA=1—H 34,161 431322 16,453 586,604 1,068,540
At 31 December 2013 RZZ2-=#+-A=1-H 39,045 484179 22,25 672,449 1217927
(c) The carrying amount of properties of the () AEEYEMNREEWMT :

Group is as follows:

Interests in leasehold land held for own 1B EEEINS LT E
use under operating leases outside FEERMEE
Hong Kong — long term TH R — R 5,508,271 8,710,104
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13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)

(d)

Included in the Group’s property, plant and
equipment as at 31 December 2014 are buildings,
plant and machinery, motor vehicles, retorts and
interests in leasehold land held for own use under
operating leases, with carrying amounts of
HKD68,682,011 (2013: HKD117,880,129),
HKD129,002,404 (2013: HKD234,748,928), HKD87,856
(2013: HKD313,176), HKD25,341,040 (2013:
HKD46,180,855) and HKD5,508,271 (2013:
HKD8,710,104), respectively located in Malaysia and
operated by CVMSB. In light of the sustained
operating losses of CVMSB and suspension of its
production plant since 2012, the directors of the
Company conducted a review on the recoverable
amount of cash-generating units (“CGU") for mining
of dolomite and manufacture of magnesium ingots
based on value in use calculation and determined
that an impairment loss of HKD133,834,320 (2013:
HKD26,767,044) was recognised and included in
other operating expenses in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss for the year ended 31
December 2014. The cash flow projections were
based on financial budget and production forecast
as approved and prepared by management,
covering a twenty-two year period, which
represents approximately the remaining license
period of the mining right to mine and extract
magnesium dolomite from two pieces of land in the
State of Perak, Peninsula Malaysia (the “Dolomite
Land"). The cash flow beyond the four-year period is
extrapolated using zero growth rate. The discount
rate applied to the cash flow projection is 20.01%
(2013: 19.55%) which is in reference to the valuation
prepared by an independent qualified professional
valuer, GC Appraisals Services Company Limited
(“GC Appraisals”) as at 31 December 2014. Other
key assumptions applied in the value in use
calculation relate to the estimation of cash inflows/
outflows which include budgeted sales and gross
margin. The discount rate used is pre-tax and
reflects specific risks relating to the relevant
segment.
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13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)

142

(e)

()

(®

The significant portion of buildings, retorts and the
interests in leasehold land held for own use under
operating leases of the Group with an aggregate
carrying amount of HKD99,531,322 (2013:
HKD172,771,088) are pledged to a bank for banking
facilities granted to the Group (see Note 27).

Property, plant and equipment held

under finance leases

The Group leases motor vehicles and furniture and
fittings under finance leases expiring in 2 to 3 years.
None of the leases includes contingent rentals. As
at 31 December 2014, the carrying amount of motor
vehicles and furniture and fittings held under
finance leases of the Group was HKD1,559,886
(2013: HKD1,899,039).

The Company leases a motor vehicle under a
finance lease expiring in 2 years. It does not include
contingent rentals. As at 31 December 2014, the
carrying amount of a motor vehicle held under a
finance lease of the Company was HKD586,604
(2013: HKD672,449).

At the end of the reporting period, the property
ownership certificates in respect of the property
interests held in the PRC have not been issued by
the relevant PRC government authorities. The
carrying amount of the properties was
HKD1,769,261 (2013: HKD1,843,328) as at 31
December 2014.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

14 GOODWILL 14 BEHE
The Group
AEH
HKD
BIT
Cost: B
At 1 January 2013, 31 December 2013 and RZE—=F—HF—H —ZT—=%F
1 January 2014 +ZA=+—BHk=ZFE—HEF

—H—H 332,328,997
Derecognized on disposal of subsidiaries (Note 33) 4% |- F&32 B & KB A 7] (B3E33) (79,525,907)
At 31 December 2014 RZZE—mEF+=A=1+—H 252,803,090
Accumulated impairment losses: AW EEE :
At 1 January 2013 WZ_ZE—=%—HF—H 221,148,496
Impairment loss RIERE 111,180,501
At 31 December 2013 RZE—=F+=H=+—H 332,328,997
At 1 January 2014 R-ZZ—WFE—HF—H 332,328,997
Derecognized on disposal of subsidiaries (Note 33) 4R | FHERE EH B A 7 (M5 33) (79,525,907)
At 31 December 2014 RZE—NWF+=—A=+—H 252,803,090
Carrying amount: BRIEE :
At 31 December 2014 N-_ZE—NE+-_A=+—H -
At 31 December 2013 R-_E—=F+-H=+—H -
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14 GOODWILL (continued)

(a)

(b)

144

The goodwill was originally arose partly due to the
acquisition of Victory Dragon Holdings Limited and
its subsidiary, Long Chuan (“Victory Dragon Group”)
during the year ended 31 December 2012. In the
opinion of the directors of the Company, the
goodwill represented the future economic benefits
together with the current establishment of the
operation arising from the potential growth in the
mineral water business acquired. It has been fully
impaired in the year 2013.

A valuation report, prepared by GC Appraisals,
showed that the fair value of exploration and
evaluation assets of the acquired subsidiary at the
date of acquisition, determined based on the
income-based method, was HKD161,763,000 (see
Note 15).

Impairment test for cash-generating unit
containing goodwiill

At the end of the reporting period, goodwill is
allocated to the Group’s CGU identified according to
country of operation and operating segment as
follows:

14 BHE @

(@

(b)

BHE-_Z——H+-A=+—HILFE"
SVEERE DO BERNKEINESES
RAsIREMBARREI(TSELE DA
W RRFREZRA  HEECKEER
IKEFSHPEITIG RATE £ R RGBT =
MRBEEBEE TER_ZT—=FEHK
A o

GC Appraisals FTiR &M BERERE T - AT
W R B A R B IR RS E E R WEE B
DNF AR AEETE 5161,763,0007 T
(RMsE15) -

EEHECREELBENMZRERNR

1

RIEHR - AERERIREE

B kg
e ReEL BN P

Extraction and bottling of mineral water $2 B K 2 7% 57K
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14 GOODWILL (continued)
(b) (continued)

)

Extraction and bottling of mineral
water

The recoverable amount of the CGU of
extraction and bottling of mineral water is
determined based on value in use calculation.
The calculation use pre-tax cash flow
projection based on financial budgets
approved by management of the Company
covering an eleven-year period, which
represents approximately the remaining
license period of the mining right to mine and
extract mineral water. The CGU's cash flows
beyond the three-year period are extrapolated
using a steady average growth rate of 5.7%
(2013: 7.0%), until reaching the maximum
capacity of 15,000 bottles per hour. This
growth rate is based on the relevant industry
growth forecasts and does not exceed the
average long-term growth rate for the relevant
industry. The discount rate applied to the cash
flow projection is 49.17% (2013: 37.02%). The
discount rate used is pre-tax and reflects
specific risks relating to the relevant segment.

The revenue generated from this CGU
subsequent to acquisition did not meet the
previous expectations because of limited cash
resources to develop a new production line
for manufacturing sparkling water, and making
reference to the valuation performed by GC
Appraisals as at 31 December 2013, the
Company's directors determined that an
impairment loss of HKD111,180,501 on its CGU
containing goodwill has been recognised and
included in other operating expenses in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss for the
year ended 31 December 2013.

14 BEEE)
(b) (#&)

0

e BRI
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ZERAKAEG/E15000 4 - #E
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FHRBREER - B REENE
FBZAR R A4917% (B —=4:
37.02%) ° BR#% 2 BRI R M AR AOBR TR
B/ BERMEBESBOHAERE -

RUHERE - RERBESEESBMLHN
U A AREFSEATTEER - TR
F 2 — G RER RUKEHT A E G D
RELERAER MELZEHKHGC
Appraisalsi® — & —=ZF + = A
=+t —HETHHE ARAES
ETEReEASMBERENR
EFE 111,180,501 B L EREE =
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15 EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION ASSETS
The Group

15 BERAGEEE
FEE

Mining of
dolomite and
manufacture  Exploration Extraction
of forironore, and bottling
magnesium coal and of mineral
ingots manganese water
BERER BEREER - RER
REESE B R i IR K
HKD HKD HKD
BT BT BT
Cost: AR
At 1 January 2013, RZE—=F—HA—H"
31 December 2013 and —E-=F+=-AH
1 January 2014 =t+—-BR-T-IF
—R—A 4,125,190 382,806,372 161,763,000 548,694,562
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAT
(Note 33) (Pt 33) - (103,196,172) - (103,196,172)
Exchange adjustments PN AR - 556,290 (4,142,911 (3,586,621)
At 31 December 2014 RZZ—E+ZA
=+—H 4,125,190 280,166,490 157,620,089 441,911,769
Accumulated amortisation R &+ # 8 R F1E
and impairment;
At 1 January 2013 R—E—=F—H—H 4,125,190 185,236,492 - 189,361,682
Impairment loss WIEEE - 133,323,080 74239500 207,562,580
At 31 December 2013 WZE—=%+=-A
=+—H 4,125,190 318,559,572 74,239,500 396,924,262
At 1 January 2014 RZE—mMF—-H—H 4,125,190 318,559,572 74,239,500 396,924,262
Impairment loss WEEE - 41,871,600 66,336,453 108,208,053
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAT
(Note 33) (P5E33) - (103,196,172) - (103,196,172)
Exchange adjustments PE 5 AR - 439,090 (2,123,864) (1,684,774)
At 31 December 2014 RZZE—E+ZA
=+—H 4,125,190 257,674,090 138,452,089 400,251,369
Carrying amount: BRHEE
At 31 December 2014 R-ZE—MEFE+_A
=+—H - 22,492,400 19,168,000 41,660,400
At 31 December 2013 R-E—=F+_A
=+—H - 64,246,800 87,523,500 151,770,300
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15 EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION ASSETS
(continued)

@)

CVMSB has undertaken various feasibility studies in
relation to the mining and extraction of dolomite in
Peninsula Malaysia since 2004. On 15 June 2006,
CVMSB entered into an agreement (the "Mining
Agreement”) with Majuperak Energy Resources Sdn.
Bhd. ("MERSB") (formerly known as Harta Perak
Corporation Sdn. Bhd.), a subsidiary of the Perak
State Development Corporation (“PSDC”), a
shareholder of the Company. Pursuant to the Mining
Agreement, CYMSB has been granted, at no initial
cost, an exclusive right to mine and extract
magnesium dolomite from the Dolomite Land for a
period of 20 years, with an option to renew for a
further period of 10 years. The Mining Agreement
can be terminated early by the Group by giving one
month'’s written notice to MERSB. CVMSB is required
to pay royalties to MERSB based on the volume of
dolomite extracted, subject to a monthly minimum
payment (see Note 34(b)). Due to suspension of its
production plant since 2012, CYMSB did not extract
any dolomite from the Dolomite Land during the
years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013.

Mining activities for this dolomite project had started
in 2010 and the amortisation charge relating to the
project for the year is included in “administrative
expenses” (2013: “administrative expenses”) in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

e BRI
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CVMSBE —ZEENFRE AT RAL Y
ERRERENEZEAETZEAITIED
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A8 12 48 HA104F o 7~ % [ A [A) MERSB %%
H—EAEEBEMNRESRIERER -
CVMSBZEMREFTIEMEHZANERELE A
FAK AT 5k A MERSB 32 1+ B Fl) i 2 ( RB 5
Un)) BHEZE—NFR-_ZT—=F
+TZA=+—HBLEFE BN CYMSBHALE
ERFE_T——FREEEE HHEWL
ENAEATHAREMNAZEA -

AEELEANFAREBER T —ZF
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FelEaRN [THAx] (Z2—=%:
[TTBFEX DA -
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15 EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION ASSETS
(continued)

148

(@

(continued)

As a result of impairment review performed by
management of the Company, an impairment 10ss
of HKD3,506,411 was made on the exploration and
evaluation assets during the year ended 31
December 2012. The management was of the view
that such impairment loss was resulted from the
suspension of CVMSB's production plant and its
operating loss. The recoverable amount of CGU for
mining of dolomite and manufacture of magnesium
ingots had been determined based on a value in use
calculation. This calculation uses cash flows
projections based on financial budgets and
production forecast as prepared by management,
covering a twenty-two year period, which
represents approximately the remaining license
period of the mining right to mine and extract
magnesium dolomite from the Dolomite Land, The
cash flow beyond the four-year period is
extrapolated using zero growth rate, and a discount
rate of 20.01% (2013: 19.55%) with reference to the
valuation performed by GC Appraisals as at 31
December 2014. The discount rate used is pre-tax
and reflects specific risks relating to the relevant
segment.

PT. Commerce Venture Iron Ore (“PTCV Iron”) and
PT. Commerce Venture Coal (“PTCV Coal”), both are
indirectly held subsidiaries of the Company, have
exploration mining permits in relation to the mining
and extraction of coal, iron ore and manganese in
Indonesia. Both PTCV Iron and PTCV Coal were
disposed to an independent third party on 3 April
2014 (the "Disposal”) (see Note 22).
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15 EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION ASSETS
(continued)

(o)

(continued)

PTCV Coal holds exploration mining permits for (i)
coal exploration in an area of 10,000 hectares in
Beutong and Tadu Raya Subdistrict, Nagan Raya
Regency, Nanggroe Aceh Darussalam Province of
Indonesia, valid until 7 October 2013 (“Permit 17);
and (ii) manganese exploration in an area of 3,710
hectares in Bakongan Subdistrict, South Aceh
Regency, Nanggroe Aceh Darussalam Province of
Indonesia, valid until 28 January 2014 ("Permit 2").

PTCV Iron holds exploration mining permits for (i)
coal exploration in an area of 9,825 hectares in
Kuala and Tadu Raya Subdistrict, Nagan Raya
Regency, Nanggroe Aceh Darussalam Province of
Indonesia, valid until 5 March 2014 (“Permit 3"), and
(i) iron ore exploration in an area of 450 hectares in
Pananggalan Subdistrict, Subulussalam City,
Nanggroe Aceh Darussalam Province of Indonesia,
valid until 14 December 2012 ("Permit 4”). On 5
September 2013, the relevant local authorities
informed the Group that the Permit 4 could not be
extended or renewed due to environmental issues
surrounding the relevant exploration activities
location and the authorities will reconsider the
renewal application if the situation has improved.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the
Permit 1, 2 and 4 had expired and Group did not
submit applications to the relevant local authorities
for extension of these permits in the view that the
Group is going to dispose of all its equity interests in
PTCV Coal and PTCV Iron (see Note 22).
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15 EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION ASSETS
(continued)

150

(o)

(continued)

During the years ended 31 December 2014 and
2013, the Group did not conduct any exploration in
these mines due to its limited cash resources. No
exploration and evaluation costs were capitalised
and no income was derived from these mines
during the years ended 31 December 2014 and
2013.

Taking into consideration the expiration and non-
renewal of these permits as mentioned above, the
Company’s directors determined that the
recoverable amounts of CGUs in respect of these
permits were below their respective carrying
amount, impairment losses of HKD87,500,000 have
been recognised and included in other operating
expenses in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss for the year ended 31 December 2013.

PTLM holds a production operation mining permit
for manganese (“Mining Permit”) in an area of 195
hectares in the Jatimulyo Village, Girimulyo
Subdistrict, Kulon Progo Regency, Daerah Istimewa
Yogyakarta Province, Indonesia (“Mining area”). The
Mining Permit is used for mining activities including
construction, mining, processing and refining or
smelting as well as hauling and sales of manganese
in the Mining area. The Mining Permit is valid for a
period of 10 years from 24 February 2011 and is
capable of being extended for two further terms of
10 years each at the maximum. PTLM has
undertaken various feasibility studies in relation to
the mining of and exploration for manganese in the
Mining area.
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15 EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION ASSETS
(continued)

©

(continued)

No exploration activities were conducted in the
mine as the Group lost contact with the legal
representatives of PTLM in 2012. This brought to a
halt to the daily operations and mining activities of
PTLM and might impact the fulfillment of the
obligations of PTLM in respect of its Mining Permit
and any other government regulations it would be
subject to (see Note 17). During the year ended 31
December 2014, re-nominating the legal
representatives according to the relevant legal
requirements of Indonesia was being undertaken.
On 21 August 2014 and 13 October 2014
respectively, PTLM received warning letters from
Trade and Energy Industries of Resource of Minerals
Office Government of Kulon Progo Regency
reminding PTLM to immediate implement its
obligations as the holder of Mining Permit by
submitting the tax form and reporting of PTLM’s
status to the relevant Indonesian authority with the
legal representatives’ signatures, not later than one
month from the date of these letters. On 22
September 2014 and 4 November 2014 respectively,
the management of the Company reiterated that it
is currently undergoing management restructuring
and therefore all activities are currently being
suspended temporarily until the management
restructuring is completed. Besides, once the
management restructuring has been completed,
PTLM will resume with investment and other mining
activities. Due to previous failure in calling for
extraordinary meetings for appointing new directors
and legal representative to the board of PTLM, PTLM
had applied to the Court in Yogyakarta for a court
ruling on the appointment of re-nominated directors
and replacement of legal representative.
Nevertheless, the third hearing was further
postponed by the court to 30 September 2014. On
19 November 2014, court judgement stipulated that
the holding company of PTLM could organize an
Extraordinary General Meeting of shareholders to
undergo the re-nomination of the legal
representative ("EGM”). The EGM and the re-
nomination of the legal representative according to
the relevant legal requirement of Indonesia are still
in process as at the approval date of the
consolidated financial statements.
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15 EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION ASSETS
(continued)

152

©

(continued)

No exploration and evaluation costs were
capitalised and no income was derived from the
mining of manganese during the years ended 31
December 2014 and 2013.

At 31 December 2014, the Group determined the
recoverable amount of CGU for PTLM based on
value in use calculation. The calculation uses cash
flow projection based on financial budgets and
production forecast as prepared by management of
the Company covering a sixteen-year period, which
represents approximately the remaining licence
period of the mining right as well as hauling and
sales of manganese in the Mining area. The cash
flows are in zero growth rate. The discount rate
applied to the cash flow projection is 25.51% (2013:
27.38%). The discount rate used is pre-tax and
reflects specific risks relating to the relevant
segment. Taking into consideration the uncertainties
mentioned in Note 17 and making reference to the
valuation performed by GC Appraisals as at 31
December 2014, the Company’s directors
determined that an impairment loss of
HKD41,871,600 (2013: HKD45,823,080) has been
recognised and included in other operating
expenses in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss for the year ended 31 December 2014.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

15 EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION ASSETS
(continued)

(d)

Long Chuan holds a mineral water permit (5 & 7K Ex
JKEF A 3) to extract maximum volume of water up
to 33,000 meter cube per annum in relation to the
Longchuan Spring (the "Water Permit”) from 1
March 2007 to 26 February 2015. The application for
renewal of the Water Permit was submitted in
December 2014 and has been renewed on 1 March
2015. Long Chuan had also been granted in prior
years a mineral water extraction permit (#& 5= 7K £
f& = ] %) with a right to extract mineral water in
the stipulated mining area for a period from 23
December 2011 to 23 December 2021. Nonetheless,
the statutory required mineral water registration
certificate (H&R/KFEMEE2E) ("Water Registration
Certificate”) had expired on 31 December 2012
already and not yet been renewed up to the
approval date of the consolidated financial
statements. The main reason was due to the change
in approval procedures of the State Land Resources
Bureau in Guangzhou since August 2012 whereas
the approval power has been delegated to County
Land Resources Bureau in Guangzhou who has no
relevant experience of how to approve such
licenses or registration certificates. This had caused
a substantial delay in the renewal of the Water
Registration Certificate. Long Chuan had submitted
a renewal application of the Water Registration
Certificate in December 2014 and had passed
through to the intermediate stage of the renewal
process because Long Chuan had received from
County Land Resources Bureau in Guangzhou an
acknowledgement of receipt in writing on 17
December 2014 of its renewal application being in
process.

e BRI

15 BRKFIEEE @)

(d)

BE )15 B 18 SR K EUKEF AT 3% ([ BUKEF AT
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15 EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION ASSETS
(continued)

154

(d)

(continued)

The Longchuan Spring is situated at Damiao Village
Longmu Town Longchuan County Heyuan City (i &
ael| S Be B K BEAY), the PRC, with an aggregate
mining area of approximately 0.3956 km?2. It is well
connected with the source of the East River
(Dongjiang) which supplies fresh water to Hong
Kong and parts of Guangdong Province. The
Longchuan Spring is protected by a protection zone
of 30 km in radius with no significant industrial
pollution source within a radius of up to 50 km.
Longchuan Spring contains six of the eight
prescribed minerals in sufficient quantity to quality,
including free carbon dioxide.

According to the technical report prepared by E=
B E F T TIEFE A 7 (unofficially translated as
Guangdong Province Geological Engineering
Consulting Firm) in July 2003, the Longchuan Spring
provides about 270,000 tons of minerals water
annually and the water contains significant amounts
of minerals including potassium, sodium, calcium,
magnesium, lithium, strontium and zinc.

Taking into consideration the performance of the
mine as disclosed in Note 14, sustained operating
losses and unable to generate positive cash flow
from the date of acquisition in April 2012 to 31
December 2014, the business operated by Long
Chuan is not commercially viable, as a result, the
mineral water extraction permit had not been
reclassified to an intangible asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

15 EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION ASSETS
(continued)

(d)

(continued)

At 31 December 2014, the Group determined the
recoverable amount of CGU for extraction and
bottling of mineral water based on value in use
calculation. The calculation uses cash flow
projection based on financial budgets and
production forecast as prepared by management
covering an eleven-year period, which represents
approximately the remaining license period of the
mining right to mine and extract mineral water. The
CGU'’s cash flows beyond the three-year period are
extrapolated using a steady average growth rate of
5.7% (2013: 7.0%), until reaching the maximum
capacity of 15,000 bottles per hour. This growth rate
is based on the relevant industry growth forecast
and does not exceed the average long-term growth
rate for the relevant industry. The discount applied
to the cash flows projection is 49.17% (2013:
37.02%). The discount rate used is pre-tax and
reflects specific risks relating to the relevant
segment. Taking into consideration the performance
of the mine as disclosed in Note 14, and making
reference to the valuation performed by GC
Appraisals as at 31 December 2014, the Company’s
directors determined that an impairment loss of
HKD66,336,453 (2013: HKD74,239,500) has been
recognised and included in other operating
expenses in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss for the year ended 31 December 2014.

16 MINING DEPOSIT
This amount represents a deposit of RM90,000 (equivalent
to HKD199,778) at 31 December 2014 (2013: RM90,000
(equivalent to HKD213,049)) paid to MERSB pursuant to
the Mining Agreement (see Note 15(a)) by the Group.
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EEAERAZEE LRI (ZE—=
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16 HEEZRSE
HEEER_E—NF+_A=+—BXEER
RIS RE 7 3% (R M52 15()) < F MERSB #91%
£90,000 5 ¥ (FHE K 199,778 L) (=ZE—=
£ 90,000 ¥ (HHE R 213,049 7T)) °
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e BRI

17 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 17 RMBLANKRE

The Company
¥ YN
2014

—EF-ImF
HKD
BT

Unlisted shares, at cost IEETRG - AR 337,898,800 457,898,300
Impairment loss BEEE (273,767,405)  (386,013,465)

64,131,395 71,885,335

Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUHI B A R 50E 640,501,508 610,636,881
Impairment loss PEREN SR (640,423,243)  (610,586,215)
78,265 50,666
Amount due to a subsidiary FER—REWB A RIFIEA (262,582) (262,582)
(184,317) (211,916)

63,947,078 71,673,419

Details of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2014 are as R-ZB—ME+-A=+—08  WEBAFFEN
follows: T
Place of Issued and Percentage of
incorporation paidup effective ownership
Name of company and operation capital interest Principal activities Note
ML K BRTR NGl
ARER EHE BERE EHZEAL TEER Bt
Direct  Indirect
BE# i
CYMSB Malaysia RM36,000,000 100% - Mining of dolomite and @
BRAED 36,000,000 51 manufacturing of
magnesium ingots
HREERRAERSE
CVM Marketing Limited BVI UsD10,000 - 100%  Investment holding (@)
EERTHE 10,0005 7T RERR
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e BRI

17 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Name of company

DAER

CVM International Marketing
Sdn. Bhd.

CVYM Marketing Sdn. Bhd.

Step Pacific Development
Limited

Stabil Megamas Sdn. Bhd.

PTLM

Nice Tone Enterprises Limited

Victory Dragon Holdings
Limited
HEEEERAR

Long Chuan
ge)ll

Chinese Loong Culture
Development Group Limited
REECEREEERAF

Place of

incorporation
and operation

B3 AA
33k

Malaysia
SRAED

Malaysia
SRAED

BVI
RBRARS

Malaysia
SRAD

Indonesia

fle

BVI
RBRUES

Hong Kong

B

The PRC
G

Hong Kong
B

Issued and
paid up
capital
BRTR
MR R

RM2
25%

RM100,000
100,000 55 %

USD10,000
10,000 7T

RM10,000
10,000 5%

RPH10,000,000,000
10,000,000,000
HEE

USD10,000
10,0007

HKD6,000,000
6,000,000/ 7T

USD1,400,000
1,400,000 7T

HKD1
17587

17 RRBLRINKRE#)

Percentage of
effective ownership

interest

KAEEL
EREIN

Direct
B

60%

51%

100%

100%

Indirect

B3

51%

50.50%

51%

51%

ANNUAL REPORT %k 2014

Principal activities

FERH

Trading in magnesium
ingots
5373

Dormant
TEax

Investment holding
REER

Investment holding
REER

Exploration for manganese
MG

Investment holding
RERR

Investment holding
REER

Extraction and bottling of
mineral water
REURERRERK

Dormant
LEEX

(a)

o

©

U
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17

158

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Notes:
(a) Audited by Baker Tilly Monteiro Heng.
(b) Audited by Achmad, Rasyid Hisbullah & Jerry.

(C) No separate financial statements were prepared as it is not
required to issue audited financial statements under the local
statutory requirements.

(d) Audited by Solarmark (HK) C.P.A. Limited (“Solarmark”).

(e) Consolidated financial statements, including Long Chuan are
audited by Solarmark.

() Audited by AR T AR A K& 5HED RIS

(8) Reviewed by Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited.

The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured,
interest-free and have no fixed terms of repayment. In
light of the continuing operating loss of the Group's
operations in (i) the mining of dolomite and manufacture
of magnesium, (ii) the exploration for iron ore, coal and
manganese, and (iii) extraction and bottling of mineral
water, the directors of the Company have reviewed the
carrying amounts of the investments in subsidiaries and
assessed the recoverability of the amounts due from
subsidiaries. Consequently, further impairment losses of
HKDNIl (2013: HKD137,444,367) and HKD29,837,028 (2013:
HKD18,455,919), respectively, have been recognised
during the year in respect of these two items.

In 2012, the Group lost contact with the legal
representatives of PTLM. This brought to a halt to the daily
operations and mining activities of PTLM and might
impact the fulfillment of the obligations of PTLM in respect
of its production operation mining permit for manganese
and any other government regulations it would be subject
to as set out in Note 15(c).

DING HE MINING HOLDINGS LIMITED & HfiE£ZRBERAF
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17

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Victory Dragon Holdings Limited, a 51% owned subsidiary
of the Company, has material non-controlling interests
(“NCI"). The NCI of all other subsidiaries that are not 100%
owned by the Group are considered to be immaterial by
the directors. Summarised financial information in relation
to the NCI of Victory Dragon Holdings Limited, before

inter-group eliminations, is presented as below:

e BRI

17 HAMBARNKRE®E)
ARFEAE %R B AN EEBER
AT EAIE R (IR ]) - B3E
mAEERERENHELCIBARNIER
BESREFRALTEA - GHYEEEER
N T 6 35128 R 5 5 52 1B Y 0 B AT B B T R
BE25MT :

Year ended 31 December:
Revenue

Loss for the year

Total comprehensive 10ss
Loss allocated to NCI
Dividends paid to NCI

Net cash generated from/(used in)
operating activities

Net cash used in investing activities

Net cash used in financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash
and cash equivalents

At 31 December:
Non-current assets
Current assets
Current liabilities

Net liabilities

Accumulated NCI

BE+-RA=1T—-HLFE:
WA

FAEE

EHEREE

D EEEIERERER
EANEISRYiEE 5 9]

rmExBmE/ (BM)
BeHE

REXBHAHRLFHE
ME XTGP AE SRR

ReRBTEHED
20, O ) 58

Rt=RA=+—8:
FRBEE
MBEE
RBAE

Rt IRE s

2014

—E-nmE

HKD

BT
948,213 4,802,700
(9.783,161) (11,823,039)
(9,519,065) (12,031,470)
(4,793,749) (5,793,289)
6,165,130 (188,721)
(6,104,088) (26,294)
(4,123) -
56,919 (215,015)
11,334,154 6,537,796
981,558 6,552,977
(38,747,074) (30,211,501)
(26,431,362) (17,120,728)
(12,951,367) (8,389,157)
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18

160

INVENTORIES

@

Inventories in the consolidated statement of
financial position comprise:

R
+ B
UK

Raw materials
Work-in-progress
Finished goods

The analysis of the amount of inventories
recognised as an expense and included in profit or
loss is as follows:

Carrying amount of inventories
sold (Note 7(d))

Write down of inventories

Write off of inventories (Note 7(c))

7 SR

Because of fluctuations in the market price of
magnesium, there was a significant reduction in the
net realisable value of inventories as at the end of
the reporting period. As a result, a write down of
inventories of HKD1,082,237 (2013: HKD952,452)
was made at 31 December 2014.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, raw
materials of HKD135,510 were written off. This was
because these materials used for manufacturing
bottling water had been deteriorated tremendously
and could not be used as assessed by the
management of the Company.

DING HE MINING HOLDINGS LIMITED & HfiE£ZRBERAF

18

BEEFEREE
(BEE7(d)

TrEsE (R 7(C))

30
@)

HEAEMBMARTHFERR

The Group
rEE
2014

—2-nmFE
HKD

BT
1,929,238

38,062
1,747,263

2,772,702
179,761
2,436,310

3,714,563 5,388,773

BRARZ A ABENEESES TN
T

The Group
rEER
2014

—T-—mF
HKD
BT

59,509,517 46,113,638
1,082,237 952,452
= 135,510

60,591,754 47,201,600

HRENTERE  RREPRTENT
BHFENRRL MR T —HF+=
A=+—B#RFEE10822378 T (=%
— =% 19524528 7T) °

HE-_Z—=%t+-_A=1+—B1tFE"
JR 813551078 L E W8 - 1 Ty B AR %
EHREERE KOV B EBRESRL - I
KARNRERETHAEEFER -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

19 TRADE RECEIVABLES 19 BWERR

The Group
rEE
2014

—EF-ImF
HKD
BT

Trade receivables FEUT AR X 2,854,282 434,787

All of the trade receivables are expected to be recovered TEEART B FEW R F RN —F A YE -
within one year.

(@) Ageing analysis (@) HREDHT
An ageing analysis of trade receivables, based on BREZ AN EYERFTRER DT T -
the invoice date, is as follows:

The Group
REE

2014

—E-NF

HKD

BT
Current, neither past due nor impaired ~ BNER - 3t 8 & B sl R (B 2,711,735 148,140
Less than 1 month past due BEF DR —1E A 388 82,075
1 month to 2 months past due B E—1E A = ™M 1{E A 9,237 32,086

More than 2 months but less than 11 ER R R A E A B R

12 months past due +=@EA 29,907 172,486
Over 12 months past due BERSe T @A 103,015 -
Amounts past due mHE R 142,547 286,647
Total HEt 2,854,282 434,787
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19 TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

162

(a)

(b)

Ageing analysis (continued)

Trade receivables derived from sales of magnesium
ingots are due within 14 days (2013: 5 days) from
the date of the bill of lading for exports sales or date
of invoice for local sales. Other than that the Group
has a policy of allowing customers for domestic
trading and distribution in the PRC with credit terms
or normally cash on delivery.

Further details on the Group's credit policy are set
out in Note 32(b).

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
related to independent customers that have a good
track record with the Group. Based on past
experience, the directors of the Company believed
that no impairment allowance was necessary in
respect of these balances as there had not been a
significant change in credit quality and the balances
were still considered fully recoverable. The Group
does not hold any collateral over these balances.

At 31 December 2014, none of trade receivables
(2013: Nil) were pledged as security for banking
facilities granted to the Group.

DING HE MINING HOLDINGS LIMITED & HfiE£ZRBERAF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fn & M m R

20 PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 20 FEMNRE - REREMEWTRE
RECEIVABLES
The Group The Company
rEE RAT
2014 2014
—E2-mEF —E2-mF
HKD HKD
BT BT
Other receivables H b U RIE 42,487 873,671 6,600 6,600
Advance payment to a A—ZEBEER
contractor (Note 20(a)) (F5E20(a)) 14,911,170 15,901,699 = -
Deposits for purchase of EEWE BEX
property, plant and FEH RS
equipment - 5,131,402 = -
Prepayments for raw materials R} #2524
and machinery (Note 20(0)) ~ F&fJ & (Fff 5 20(b)) 677,430 6,562,868 - -
Deposits and prepayments k4 RIERFIE 1,524,845 4,855,686 77,566 2,400,203
17,155,932 33,325,326 84,166 2,406,803
Less: Impairment losses: W ORERE
— advance payment to — A ZEBERN
a contractor (Note 20(a)) (PFiF3E20(a)) (14,911,170)  (15,901,699) - -
— prepayments for raw — R R 25
materials and B E
machinery (Note 20()) (Bif5E20(0) (677,430) (6,562,868) - -
1,567,332 10,860,759 84,166 2,406,803

Apart from certain of the Group’s deposits and
prepayments of HKD637,851 (2013: HKD2,236,053) as at
31 December 2014, and of the Company’s deposits and
prepayments of HKD64,500 (2013: HKD216,084) as at 31
December 2014, the remaining prepayments, deposits
and other receivables of the Group and the Company are
expected to be recovered or recognised as expenses
within one year.

BRALKER-_Z—NF+-_A=+—HWET
Be RIEMNREEI78NBT(ZE = F
2,236,053 L) RARRIR ZE—MNF+=A
=+ —H®ZRE MENRIE450ETL(ZF
— =% : 216,084 8 7T) N - TBEAREE KA QA
WEBRTEMNFIE - Ze REMBERFIEE N —F
WU Bl Sk iR BRI o
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fr & M| R EE

20 PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (continued)

(@

In prior years, the Group advanced a total of
HKD14,911,170 (2013: HKD15,901,699) to a
contractor for ratification works in the production
plant of magnesium ingots in Malaysia. This
contractor was put under creditor’s winding up in
2012. The Group’s management assessed the
recoverability of these advances was remote and
had made a full provision against them as at 31
December 2014 and 2013.

At 31 December 2014, the Group had made
prepayments of HKD677,430 (2013: HKD6,562,868)
to an entity for purchase of raw materials and
machinery. During the year, no goods and/or
machinery have been received by the Group from
that entity in settlement of the prepayments made.
The Group’'s management assessed the
recoverability of these prepayments was remote
after suspension of the production plant in Malaysia,
and thus a full provision against them has been
made as at 31 December 2014 and 2013.

21 PLEDGED DEPOSITS

164

The Group's deposits of HKD2,735 (2013: HKD2,968) is

pledged to a bank for loan facilities granted to the Group
(see Note 27).

As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, the Company did not

have any pledged deposits.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

22 ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE

Pursuant to an agreement dated 16 October 2013 entered
into between the Company and an independent third
party (the “Purchaser”), the Company disposed of 100%
equity interest in CVM International Limited (“CVMI"), to
the Purchaser at a consideration of USD1,000,000
(equivalent to HKD7,753,940). CVMI and its subsidiaries,
CVM Minerals Indonesia Sdn. Bhd., PTCV Coal and PTCV
Iron (collectively “CVMI Group”), are principally engaged in
the business of exploration of minerals namely iron ore,
coal and manganese in Aceh of Indonesia. The assets and
liabilities attributable to CVMI Group, which are expected
to be sold within six months from the date of this sale and
purchase agreement, have been classified as a disposal
group held for sale and are presented separately in the
consolidated statement of financial position. The net
proceeds of sale are expected to be lower than the
carrying amount of the related net assets and,
accordingly, an impairment loss related to exploration and
evaluation assets of HKD87,500,000 was recognised,
neither when the operation was re-classified as held for
sale nor at 31 December 2013. The disposal was
completed on 3 April 2014.

The major classes of assets and liabilities comprising
CVMI Group classified as held for sale as at 31 December
2013 are as follows:

22

e BRI

PEABESEEE
REARRIEBYE=F(TEHFDEIZBHA
ZE-=F+ATENHE  AARRESH
£ CVM International Limited ([CVMI) # & &8 A%
1 X (B A&1,000,0003 Jt (#8 & 1 7,753,940 7%
7T ) e CYMIBA K H fff B 2 & CVM Minerals
Indonesia Sdn. Bhd. ~ PTCV Coal % PTCV Iron (%t
BICYMIEE ) ZZMNETERNREREY (BNE
A~ Exkim) MRES - HHER I EE
#HBEHRFANEAANHENCYMIEBEREE
RAaEE s BARESELERR - UGS
BIkAFRRPFES o SHEFSHRIEFEENR
RIEREEFEMREE - Bt - WIEREBKE
BV EABEFEINR T —=F+=A
ST —HREREEMRELTHEENREEE
87,500,000 7T » s HHEFEE N T —MF
MA=H%MK °

R-ZE—=F+-"A=+—H8 DEARFEFE
AR CVMIEENEZEERBEENNT -

The Group
REH

Assets EE

Property, plant and equipment (Note 13(a)) ME - WE N EE (M 13@)) 120,874
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TERFRIE  1'e REM BRI 212,590
Cash and cash equivalents RERFSEEY 6,606
Assets classified as held for sale DEARBEFEEE 340,070
Liabilities aE

Accrued expenses and other payables FERT S R B At FE A B IR 2,819,092
Liabilities classified as held for sale PEARBEFEARE 2,819,092
Net liabilities of CYMI Group classified as held for sale  CVMIEE DB A EFE A ETFE (2,479,022)
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e BRI

23 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

23 BAERRREMENTRIEA

The Group The Company
KEE b /N
2014 2014
—E-NmF —E-NF
HKD HKD
BT BT
Trade payables e BRI 2,831,490 278,104 - -
Accrued interest on RITEFERTF S
bank loans 64,049,521 47,929,022 - -
Accrued interest on EHEREFERT RS
unsecured loans - 31,037,242 - 31,037,242
Accrued interest on ARRES RS
convertible bonds 6,852,144 7,608,222 6,852,144 7,608,222
Accrued salaries [EtEe 2,800,027 2,190,413 1,224,023 852,283
Other payables and HipfE{TRUIE R
accrued expenses JEET RIS 28,575,686 21,387,863 17,461,871 5,888,907
105,108,868 110,430,866 25,538,038 45,386,654

7
O

TEHA LAt B B FE S SRR I — F N4 B S RERR
BN - AR BEREEE -

=113

All of the above payables are expected to be settled or
recognised as income within one year, or are repayable
on demand.

An ageing analysis of trade payables, based on the invoice JEMERRIR R R B SRR AT AT
date, is as follows:

The Group
KEH
2014

—g-msF
HKD
BT

Current BNER 2,701,050 53,262
Due within 3 months —EAREH = 4,315
Due after 3 months but within 12 months = {@ A 1418+ — {& A R | &4 32,983 220,527
Over 12 months e+ (@A 97,457 -

2,831,490 278,104
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

24 OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES 24 ®ERERE
(@) The Group (@ E&£E
At 31 December 2014, the Group had obligations R-Z—NFE+_A=+—8 AEEHD
under finance leases repayable as follows: JEEERMEREAENT ¢

2014 2013
—F-mF —F=%
Present Present
value of the Total  value of the Total
minimum minimum minimum minimum

lease lease lease lease
payments payments payments payments
REHE REHE =EHE =EHE
RBRE REE B E eEE

HKD HKD HKD HKD

BT BT BT BT

Within 1 year —FR 315,456 336,972 413,972 453,773
After 1 year but within —FREMFA

2 years 197,272 205,234 324,368 346,926
After 2 years but within MFRERFA

Syears 62,758 64,193 272,164 282,145

260,030 269,427 596,532 629,071

575,486 606,399 1,010,504 1,082,844

Less: total future interest AR IRF S

expenses GRS (30,913) (72,340)
Present value of lease AEAERE
obligations 575,486 1,010,504
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e BRI

24 OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES 24 BEREAE®
(continued)
(b) The Company (b) ZA&AF]
At 31 December 2014, the Company had obligations R-E—WNF+_A=+—8 ARQFH
under a finance lease repayable as follows: FEEEmERERENT

2014 2013
—E-NEF
Present Present
value of the Total  value of the
minimum minimum minimum minimum

lease lease lease lease
payments payments payments payments
REHE REHE EHEE REHEE
ARBAE AREE 5 ERE F54aE

HKD HKD HKD HKD

BT BT BT AT

Within one year —FR 181,314 187,140 175,236 187,140
After 1 year but within —FRERFR

2 years 77,342 77,975 181,314 187,140
After 2 years but within WMERERFA

5years - - 77,341 77,975

77,342 77,975 258,655 265,115

258,656 265,115 433,891 452,255

Less: total future interest AR IRF S

expenses S 4858 (6,459) (18,364)
Present value of lease HEAERE
obligations 258,656 433,891
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES

(continued)

(b)

The Company (continued)

The policies of the Group and the Company are to
lease certain of its motor vehicles and furniture and
fittings under finance leases expiring in 3 years and
2 years, respectively (2013: 4 years and 3 years,
respectively). As at 31 December 2014, the effective
borrowing rate of the Group and the Company was
in a range from 1.8% p.a. to 3.68% p.a. and 1.8%
p.a., respectively (2013: a range from 1.8% p.a. to
3.68% p.a. and 1.8% p.a., respectively). Interest rates
are fixed at the contract dates and thus expose the
Group and the Company to fair value interest rate
risk. All leases are on a fixed repayment basis and
no arrangements have been entered into for
contingent rental payments. At the end of each
lease term, the Group and the Company have an
option to purchase the motor vehicles and furniture
and fittings at nominal prices.

25 AMOUNT(S) DUE FROM/(TO) RELATED
PARTIES AND A DIRECTOR

e BRI

24 BMEBREEE R

(b) A&AT#E)
AEBRARARMBREZRERERER
EETREURRMREE  FHHFA
SFER2F(ZZE—=F: DA BLIF K3
F)eRZTE—MF+-A=+—H8B" ' &
SERARREREBERFHNESB AN T
1.8%%E3.68% % 18%(—ZT—=4%: D5l
BT 1.8%23.68% K 1.8%)  F KA
WBEBET Bt AEERARARET
NFEFERRAR - IEANRETERE
HET AVERIABENRII LR
e REMEBR  REBRAARAE
BREAEERBETEARERMEEE -

25 W (BN)BEIR-—EESHKR

The Group The Company
KrEH RAT

2014 2014

—E2-mF —E2-mF

HKD HKD

BT BT
Trading account ZHEP (2,347,241) (2,229,650) = -
Current account BEERRP (2,153,329) (4,730,684) (138,000) (628,790)
(4,500,570) (6,960,334) (138,000) (628,790)

Classified as: DA
Amount due from e — &R HIE

a related party 36,391 9,476 - -
Amount due to a director B —RESEHRE (138,000) (628,790) (138,000) (628,790)

Amounts due to related parties &~ #8528 (4,398,961) (6,341,020 -
(4,536,961) (6,969,810) (138,000) (628,790)
Total 45 (4,500,570) (6,960,334) (138,000) (628,790)
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e BRI

25 AMOUNT(S) DUE FROM/(TO) RELATED 25 W (ER)BESR—RBRESERE
PARTIES AND A DIRECTOR (continued) (#&)
The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and have no ZREAEERE £ HEEETENRSE -

fixed terms of repayment.

An amount due from a related party disclosed pursuant to RIEFEEQFKRO(FE622F) B7815H &
section 78 of Schedule 11 to the new Companies M- T2REEEBATHEN (F32F)F 1618
Ordinance (Cap. 622), with reference to section 161B of BB EW —2BE T ZIBENT -

the predecessor Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.
32) is as follows:

The Group
rEE
Maximum
amount
Balance at Balance at outstanding
31 December 1 January during
Term of loan 2014 2014 the year
R-B-MFE R-F-0OF FN
+=-HA=+—H —A—H BB Y
ifess MR EEtE
HKD HKD HKD
BT BT BT
HWG Tin Mining Sdn. Bhd. Interest-free, unsecured and 36,391 9,476 36,391
("HWGTM") has no fixed terms of
repayment
HWG Tin Mining Sdn. Bhd. 28 BIEFEEETERY
(THWGTM )
HWGTM is a subsidiary of Ho Wah Genting Berhad which HWGTM & 752 &) i% 5 Ho Wah Genting Berhad #9
is a shareholder of the Company. Mg aaE e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

26 CONVERTIBLE BONDS

@

On 1 September 2011, the Company entered into a
placing agreement with a placing agent, Cheong Lee
Securities Limited for the issue of convertible bonds
with maturity period of eight months to three years
from the date of issue for an aggregate principal
amount of HKD80,000,000. The convertible bonds
bear interest at 10% p.a. payable annually and are
unsecured. As at the end of reporting period, the
aggregate principal amount of convertible bonds
being available was HKD80,000,000 (2013:
HKD8&0,000,000).

The bondholders at any time before maturity can
convert the whole or part of the principal amount of
the convertible bonds into ordinary shares of the
Company at the conversion price of HKD0.10 per
share. As a result of the said share consolidation in
Note 30(b)(iii), the conversion price of outstanding
convertible bonds of the Company was adjusted
from HKDO.10 per share to HKDO.40 per share with
effect on 29 July 2013.

Upon maturity any unredeemed and unconverted
bonds will be redeemed at par value of the
outstanding principal amount in cash.

The convertible bonds may be early redeemed at
par value of the outstanding principal amount of the
bond at any time at the option of the Company up
to maturity provided that the Company has given
not less than 7 business days’ prior notice to the
bondholder(s) of its intention to make that
redemption.

e BRI

26 THRKRESR

@)

RZZT——FNA—H  ARRHAEER
BENFBHFBRARVEERHHE AR
B BT AN £ 4258 80,000,000 7 7T K A #2
BfEsH - ATREHRE TR BRN\EA
E=FREH - JRREFILZFHE10%
A REEWR . NEEGELN - RBE
HAR  ATHERMARRES A REA
80,000,0007% 7t (=& — = 4 : 80,000,000
BIT) °

B ARIA BB AT 6 (T R 4% = R
01078 TTHY 4R BB 1 2 BB R BB 0 AT #R IR B
FOARSEEBRRARANE B - AR
B & 30(0) (i) P 2t B0 B 0 & B AR R A
AR B AT HA AR 25 RO HR AR (B 1 B A0.10
ABTABEFR040BIL R-T—=%F
AT hBEX-

(EAR] R B [ J R BB 4 e (8 7518 10 B HA 1R DA
R RKEEASENHERD -

AMRESAT AR RRE  REEDH
BRIEEAERREFREENSRNE
BEREEED  ARERACKETESKE
ATRPR7EZEEANELBA - RRE
BEHETHER -
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fr & M| R EE

26 CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)

172

@)

(continued)

The maturity date of the five principal amounts of
convertible bonds of HKD26,000,000 (“First Tranche
Bonds"), HKD17,000,000 (“Second Tranche Bonds”),
HKD10,000,000 (“Third Tranche Bonds"),
HKD10,000,000 (“Fourth Tranche Bonds”) and
HKD17,000,000 (“Fifth Tranche Bonds”) is 1
December 2014, 29 December 2014, 9 January 2015,
4 March 2015 and 22 March 2015 respectively. The
above aggregate principal amount of HKD80,000,000
is collectively referred to as the “Matured Bonds".
As at date of approval of these consolidated
financial statements, the repayment of all these
Matured Bonds were defaulted. The directors of the
Company represented that (i) the Company is
currently in the course of arm’s length negotiations
with the holders of the Matured bonds in relation to
the Proposed Alteration; (i) as negotiated with the
holders of the Matured Bonds, they verbally agreed
not to redeem the Matured Bonds until the
Proposed Alteration is confirmed; and (iii) the
interest on the Matured Bonds will continue to be
payable by the Company until the date of
redemption pursuant to the terms of the Matured
Bonds. As at the approval date of the consolidated
financial statements, the Proposed Alteration of the
Matured Bonds have not been fixed and confirmed
yet.

The non-redemption of First Tranche Bonds on 1
December 2014 technically constitutes an event of
default on the part of the Company and can lead to
a mandatory redemption of the Second Tranche
Bonds, Third Tranche Bonds, Fourth Tranche Bonds
and Fifth Tranche Bonds (the “Non-redemption”).
Therefore, the Matured Bonds have become due
and payable at their principal amounts if any of their
holders serves a notice on the Company. As at the
approval date of the consolidated financial
statements, the Company represented that no
mandatory redemption request has been received
from any of the bondholders of the Matured Bonds.
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RRES #)

@)

(&)

AL A FE 5 Bl 5 26,000,0007% 5T ([ 55—
#H{E % 1)~ 17,000,000 7T ([ £ — # &
# 1) ~ 10,000,000 ([ E=H#EH ) -
10,000,000 ([ 8 WM # & % 1) &
17,000,000 7T ([ BB A #HLES |) B A2 A%
BEENESMASRA-_Z—ME+_-F—
A —ZE2—mWF+=—RA=+nH =%
—RE-ALA - —E-RAFE=AWAR
TE-—RAFZA-+=ZH- Ll AeEE
80,000,000 T4t 8 & [ ZIHAE S | - Rt
B EGAVEREOBE a5
HEFERER - ARBEEXRT ()X
ARFEFBAERSE ARERBEEET
AEER ()R BREFFEAERR
& DR B R ERIE SR AT E R 2
HES R IRIBRHEHFER - ARAF]
HERER A ATEE S MEIEESFE -
RERA T RAIEBR - ISESNE
HEMNARIRTE RHER -

FHEFNR-_FT-OF+-A—-BKXT
B AEH EBRARBEY  AATE
BoatlERE —MES  F=MEF F
mitEFLREARER(RTFED]) -
it BEES B NMEASIBRESFE AR
AARELBAKIE  WAEEAR
T REFAUBMERMERH - RARXR
FEIRZREEFNIBESSAABLE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

26 CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued) 26 TRARKRERE)
(@) (continued) @@ (&)

At 31 December 2014, convertible bonds are due for R-ZZE—NF+_A=+—H  J#EKE
repayment as follows: HFRUATEIE R HEE -

2014

—E—0mF

HKD

BT
Within 1 year —FR 82,561,759 36,080,198
After 1 year but within 2 years —FREMFR - 36,729,997

82,561,759 72,810,195

The interest charged for the year is calculated by FENBZLNDERNFEESD 17.54%
applying an effective interest rate with a range from E23BPIBB(ZZE—Z=ZF: N F1754%=
17.54% p.a. to 33.73% p.a. (2013: a range from 33.73%) BB FEHNE  IREFBITEE
17.54% p.a. to 33.73% p.a.) to the liability WMEMRIENREGTE -

component for the number of days to the end of the
reporting period since the bonds were issued.

The directors of the Company estimate the fair KRR ESHFAR T —WNF+ A
value of the liability component of the Matured =T —RIBMEFEBELSHORITEN R
Bonds as at 31 December 2014 to be approximately 82,125,0008 70 (=& — = £ : 72,793,000
HKD82,125,000 (2013: HKD72,793,000). This fair BIT) o i A FETYIET S F R AL IR KK
value has been calculated by discounting the future REREFTE ©

cash flows at the market rate.
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e BRI

26 CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued) 26 ABRRES &)
@@  (continued) @ (&)
The net proceeds received from the issuance of the FTARBRESASEREFEE ) RAE
convertible bonds have been split into the liability By RAER IR T ¢
and equity components, as follows:
First Second Third Fourth Fifth
Tranche Tranche Tranche Tranche Tranche
Bonds Bonds Bonds I Bonds
S-#EE  ECHESR 0 ESHER 0 ZOMER 0 SEHES
HKD HKD HKD HKD HKD
At 1 January 2013 RZE-=F-f-H 18,697,603 11,735,082 9,476,511 9173724 15,675,750 64,758,670
Interest charged MEx 5,989,404 3,958,109 1,661,767 1,679.804 2,762,441 16,051,925
Interest paid BAFE (2,600,000) (1,700,000 (1,000,000) (1,000,000 (1,700,000) (8,000,000)
Liabiliy componentasat W= E-=E+ZA
31 December 2013 —+-BHAEHH 22,087,007 13,993,191 10,138,278 9,853,528 16,738,191 72,810,195
At 1 January 2014 RZF-NE-A-A 22,087,007 13,993,191 10,138,278 9,853,528 16,738,191 7281019
Interest charged MEZH 6,512,993 4,706,809 1771812 1,804,281 2,949,669 17,751,564
Interest paid ERHE 2,600,000 (1,700,000 (1,000,000 (1,000,000 (1,700,000 (8,000,000
Liabilty componentasat RN =F-MF+ZA
31 December 2014 =T-BHARHR 26,000,000 17,000,000 10,916,090 10,657,809 17,987,860 82,561,759
(b)  In 2012, the Company issued convertible bonds with b)) RZZTE——%F ARAABTALHERE
maturity date on the fifth anniversary of the date of 106,840,000 A Al AR EH - EARZ
issue for an aggregate principal amount of T FUEEERZHMHRE - ATk
HKD106,840,000 as part consideration for the RESNIHBEAZETEHRRASE - RF
acquisition of Victory Dragon Group in 2012. The L% T B R EER - FBEGFIN -
convertible bonds bear interest at 5% p.a. payable
annually and are unsecured.
The bondholder of the convertible bonds at any time AT AR B H R B A T F B AR B &9 fr] 5
before maturity can convert the whole or part of the 2GR 0.126 7 T K [E F 2R (B % 2 5ok
principal amount of the convertible bonds in whole B4 7N 4545 1,000,000 78 7T 2 B AE BRAY AT
multiples of HKD1,000,000 into ordinary shares of HREFERK A QTR LR o R
the Company at a fixed conversion price of 30(b)(iii) 2 it i tn& Pf ek & - AN ARl
HKDO.126 per share. As a result of the said share REROAIRRESFHRKREE S —=
consolidation in Note 30(b)(iii), the conversion price FELAZ+TNBRHFR0126BTTAE
of outstanding convertible bonds of the Company Z5MR0.504 T
was adjusted from HKDO0.126 per share to HKD0.504
per share with effect on 29 July 2013.
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26 CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)

(0)

(continued)

Upon maturity any unredeemed and unconverted
bonds will be redeemed at par value of the
outstanding principal amount in cash.

The Company may at any time before the maturity
date early redeem the convertible bonds.

On 15 January 2013, the convertible bonds in the
principal amount of HKD43,840,000 were converted
into 347,936,507 ordinary shares of the Company at
HKDO0.025 each.

Pursuant to an agreement signed for acquisition of
51% of the issued share capital of Victory Dragon
Group, Voice Key Group Limited (“First Vendor”) and
the guarantor, Mr. Chu Yuk Lung (the “Guarantor”)
irrevocably warrants and guarantees to the Group
that the audited consolidated net profit after tax and
any extraordinary and exceptional items (“Audited
Profit”) of Victory Dragon Group will not be less than
RMB30,000,000 (“Guaranteed Profit") for the period
of twelve months commencing from the date of
completion of the acquisition (“Guaranteed Period”).

If the Guaranteed Profit is not achieved for the
Guaranteed Period, the Group will be entitled to
deduct from the outstanding principal amount of
the convertible bonds on a dollar for dollar basis
which is equivalent to the difference between the
Audited Profit and Guaranteed Profit. If Victory
Dragon Group record a consolidated net loss after
tax and any extraordinary and exceptional items for
the Guarantee Period, the Group will be entitled to
deduct from the outstanding principal amount of
the convertible bonds which is equivalent to an
amount of the summation of the loss and the
Guaranteed Profit provided that the maximum
compensation amount shall not exceed
HKD50,000,000.

e BRI

26 TRARKRERE)

(b)

(%)
EAARE @ RS 1 (F 7515 70 B #1122
ReRAEEASBENEERE -

AR R AIAE) HY A AT RE B 12 A1 A @A) AR
(EEZ

RZE—=F—A+HAB £&8EA
43,840,000 70 2 AT AR fE 4 i A
347,936,507 i T IR EE0.025 8 7L 2 A A
AlE @ -

RERWEYEEED HITRAN51%M
% 5T 2 sk  Voice Key Group Limited ([ 55
—BH ) RERAFARELE(ERAD
ATt A A SR B A R AER - glBEs
® &5 Sepk Ui B HRERT 12 8 A BRI ([R&E
) BB S AT REAESRRIEEEIEE
B HEEZRE AR ([ EEZEF ) BT
A AR5 30,000,000 7T ([REE % F] 1) -

R E IR RBEER R BN - AEE
HAERRSERSEEQAJBRESFNR
BEEASERHRBAFINEELLDH ER
B FEERE - MYl EEERRER
MRS IR T AR5 R I SF S IR B 1R AR
BEEFE  AREKEEE TRRIES
MAREEASBEPMRBFNEERRE
HBHEENESR  ERSHESETGE
i# 50,000,000 & 7T, ©
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26 CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)

176

(0)

(continued)

The First Vendor (i.e. the bondholder) agrees that
unless and until the delivery of the consolidated
audited financial statements of Victory Dragon
Group for the Guarantee Period showing that the
Guaranteed Profit has been fulfilled, it will not
convert, transfer or dispose of the convertible bonds
such that the outstanding principal amount of the
convertible bonds shall be less than HKD50,000,000
or otherwise cause the outstanding principal
amount of the convertible bonds below
HKD50,000,000.

On 30 August 2013, the directors of the Company
announced the audited financial statements of
Victory Dragon Group for the Guarantee Period
showed a net loss after tax and any extraordinary
and exceptional items of HKD8,228,917. Based on
the exchange rate at that time, the Guaranteed
Profit was HKD38,090,401 (equivalent to
RMB30,000,000), and hence, the actual shortfall
between the audited net loss and the Guaranteed
Profit was HKD46,319,318. As such on 16 October
2013, the convertible bonds in the principal amount
of HKD46,319,318 was cancelled and deducted.

As at the end of the reporting period, the principal
amount of convertible bonds in relation to the
Victory Dragon Group in 2012 being available was
HKD16,680,682 (2013: HKD16,680,682) with maturity
due in 2017.

The Non-redemption technically constitutes an
event of default on the part of the Company and can
lead to a mandatory redemption of the Victory
Dragon Bonds. Therefore, Victory Dragon Bonds
have become due and payable at their principal
amounts if any of their holders serves a notice on
the Company. As at the approval date of the
consolidated financial statements, the Company
represented that no mandatory redemption request
has been received from any of the bondholders of
the Victory Dragon Bonds.
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RRES #)

(b)

(&)

FE-BHBEHERFEANRE  BRIERE
FYREEERRIBH I GACEZYE
WK BREBEDRELR  TRIEBT
TR - B AR AR S T B E AT
B EH 2 K EE AN £ % 47 50,000,000
EIT - A E A S N BUE AT R E S 2 K
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RZTE—=%\B=1+H AQFEEE
i SBEEBENREBHOCEZTBHRE
B S EREESERBMI AT R
N IEAE H I8 B 14 518558 8,228,917 7T ©
RERNEXRFE REZHN A
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e BRI

26 CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued) 26 WBRRES#)

(o)

(continued)

The net proceeds received from the issuance of the
convertible bonds have been split into the liability
and equity components, as follows:

At 1 January 2013

Interest charged

Interest paid

Conversion of convertible
bonds

Repayment of convertible
bonds

At 31 December 2013 and
1 January 2014

Interest charged
Interest paid

At 31 December 2014

M_ZE—
=t-—
—F—HA—H

MBS
ERHE

i
=t—

=F+=A
HX

mE+=—A
H

The interest for the year is calculated by applying an
effective interest rate of 17.58% p.a. (2013: 17.58%)
to the liability component for the number of days to
the end of the reporting period since the bonds

were issued.

The directors of the Company estimate the fair
value of the liability component of the convertible
bonds as at 31 December 2014 to be approximately
HKD12,013,000 (2013: HKD10,104,000). This fair
value has been calculated by discounting the future

cash flows at the market rate.

b (&)

BT ELRMBFIEFRC O RBE
B RS T

Liability Equity

component component

=Ry R

HKD HKD

BIT BIT
70,282,100 44,326,000 114,608,100
3,310,892 - 3,310,892
(5,372,268) - (5,372,268)
(29,024,400) (18,188,430) (47,212,830)
(28,361,731) (19,217,054) (47,578,785)
10,834,593 6,920,516 17,755,109
1,715,805 1,715,805
(834,034) - (834,034)
11,716,364 6,920,516 18,636,880

FEFMETIEBANTEAELMD17.58% (=

T—ZF 1 1758%) NEBRFFE  IZE
FRTBREREPERIEMREGTE -

RABERMHBFAR S
—t+—HARREFAESHHA
12,013,000 7T(
10,104,000/ 7T) ° &% A
BRIR ARG REFH -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

27 BANK LOANS — SECURED 27 BIXHBITER
The Group REEH
2014
-—g-mE
Less:
Nominal  unamortised Nominal
value costs value
e
HE AR HE
HKD HKD HKD
BT BT 7 BT
Bank loans, secured BEMBTER 383,212,795  (1,820,622) 381,392,173 408,669,115 (2337,386) 406,331,729
At 31 December 2014, interest bearing bank loans are due RZE—MFE+_A=+—H i 2RITEXR
for repayment as follows: AT ERRIZI B E R -
2014
—E-NF
HKD
BT
Portion of term loans due for —FREEEED
repayment within 1 year BEE R, 381,392,173 82,863,708
Term loans due for repayment —FRIBEREN
after one year: BHER
After 1 year but within 2 years —EFIREMFA - 90,316,599
After 2 years but within 5 years MEBREBRFN = 233,151,422

= 323,468,021

381,392,173 406,331,729
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fn & M m R

27 BANK LOANS — SECURED (continued) 27 BEHBRITERSE)
The amounts due are based on the scheduled repayment NN RERBEMSBEEEABRAE
dates set out in the loan agreement and ignore the effect A AT RATA AT BER 2 RERIERHOTE -

of any repayment on demand clause.

2014
—ZE—NF

HKD

BT
Transaction costs RBHRA
Cost: B
At 1 January n—A—H 9,277,771 9,934,307
Exchange adjustments M H AR (577,920) (656,536)
At 31 December R+-—A=+—H 8,699,851 9,277,771
Accumulated amortisation: 25t -
At 1 January wn—A—H 6,940,385 7,007,687
Amortisation for the year F 372,904 411,611
Exchange adjustments b H A% (434,060) (478,913)
At 31 December At+t-—A=+—H 6,879,229 6,940,385
Unamortised transaction costs REEHZ Z A 1,820,622 2,337,386
The secured bank loans as at 31 December 2014 are RZZE—NF+_A=+—BHEERRTE
interest bearing at 8.6% p.a. (2013: 8.6% p.a.). These bank RIRER LG 6% (= E—=4 : F£F|FL8.6%)
loans were restructured on 25 July 2011 by Bank Rakyat. B WERTERR _T——FtH-1THHH
In accordance with the restructured bank loan agreement, Bank Rakyati#tTTE 4 - IRIFEAARITE KB
the Group is required to repay the bank loans by monthly AEBER-_TE——FNAEZZE—=F+=
instalment of RM670,000 (equivalent to HKD1,586,032) A& A5 B{EREIRITEK670,000 5 % (AR
with effect from August 2011 to December 2013 and 1,586,028 7)) WH_ZE—MFEF-HE_F
increasing to RM4,200,000 (equivalent to HKD9,942,287) — )\ FH&EE ZBE R 2 B % 4,200,000 5
from January 2014 to the second last repayment of the B (FEE 509,942,287 % L) o
loans in 2018.
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27 BANK LOANS — SECURED (continued)
The bank loans are granted to CYMSB and secured by
way of:

180

(iv)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

a legal charge over the land and factory building to
be erected thereon held by CVMSB;

assignment of trade receivables;

a debenture creating fixed and floating legal charge
over all present and future assets of CVYMSB
excluding the performance bonds;

assignment of all CYMSB's rights, entitlement and
interest in and to all building contracts, design
drawings and other contracts pertaining to the
magnesium ingot project (the “Project”);

an assignment of all CYMSB's rights, benefits and
interest under insurance undertaken by CVYMSB as
part of its operations for the Project;

an assignment over the existing revenue accounts
maintained at HSBC Amanah Malaysia Berhad and
monies standing to the credit of the revenue
account in favour of the bank, the revenue accounts
shall be operated solely by the bank;

a first fixed charge/assignment over the retorts of
CVMSB;

an assignment over the insurance policies of the
retorts of CYMSB; and

corporate guarantee by Ding He Mining Holding
Limited (formerly known as CVM Minerals Limited)
(Note 36(a)).

All of the Group's banking facilities are subject to the
fulfilment of covenants, as are commonly found in lending
arrangements with financial institutions. If the Group was
to breach the covenants, the drawn down facilities would
become payable on demand. The Group is required to
comply with the covenants when CVMSB’s production
operation commences, which was in or around February
2011. Further details of the Group’s management of
liquidity risk are set out in Note 32(e).

DING HE MINING HOLDINGS LIMITED SFiE£ZERERAR

27 BEMFRITER®E)
#EF CYMSB BUERTTE FRIZ A R 5 IR -

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(Vi)

(vii)

(viii)

LCVMSB AT b N A B B3 7 iR 5 3%
SORERRRD

R AR
FLCVMSBFT A RA RAKAE (TRIERE

IR ) RILEE Ko BAE MR ES

EECVMSBR Bt E B ([Z BB DA
BMHMBERTAL  RAERIREMLED
B —EDHER) - ZARE R

% CVMSBIE AR RZ A B %55 — &b A7
AR B — UIRER - Flas S s

M $R 17 ¥ 3 £ HSBC Amanah Malaysia
Berhad Bz IR B WA P Rz A F
BRFIAE - A FERBITIRE:

FLCVMSBHY & R R LW 5 — B & &
i

% CVMSB HE REERIRE © |

S MBI E R AR (BT [Fop g
BRRAF D ERRRER (HE36()) ©

AEREBEITRE (R BB LB RT
NERRE) T ESERITEE - WAKEE

RZER

ABREREECREANEE - A

EEENCYMSBEEZZ——F = AkAiEMiA
EELERTAZREES AHAEEERRY
A RRHE— SRIBE NI EE320)



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

27 BANK LOANS — SECURED (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group
defaulted on the repayments of bank loans since
November 2013 and breached one of the covenants of
the banking facilities. Upon discovery of the breach, the
directors of the Company commenced a negotiation of
the terms of the loans with Bank Rakyat. These
negotiations have concluded on 24 February 2014
whereby Bank Rakyat agreed to extend a one year grace
period without executing legal proceeding against the
Company and CVMSB until 31 December 2014. CVMSB is
required to repay monthly instalment of RM670,000
(equivalent to HKD1,586,032) for the year ended 31
December 2014.

On 15 December 2014, the Group has accepted the
restructuring proposal discussed and offered by Bank
Rakyat in respect of the outstanding loans owing by
CVMSB (the “Proposal”). Pursuant to the Proposal, the full
and final settlement sum by CVMSB shall be reduced to
RM113,040,000 (equivalent to approximately
HKD258,850,469) which is repayable to Bank Rakyat on or
before 30 June 2015, in which (i) an amount of
RM4,020,000 (equivalent to approximately HKD9,205,404)
must be settled to Bank Rakyat on or before 31 December
2014; (i) a monthly sum of RM200,000 (equivalent to
approximately HKD457,980) shall be repayable to Bank
Rakyat on the last day of each calendar month
commencing from January 2015 to June 2015 and the final
instalment of RM2,820,000 (equivalent to approximately
HKD6,457,522) will be paid as bullet payment latest by 30
June 2015; and (iii) a full and final settlement sum of
RM105,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HKD240,439,661) be repayable by CVMSB to Bank Rakyat
on 30 June 2015.

e BRI

27 BHEMFRITERE)

REE-Z—=F+_A=+—BULFE " £&
BE-T—=F+—ARBRKREEERTERR
BEREP—HORTHER - HHEBEAELNE -
NN B E EFIHA EEBank RakyatiE i B F RIS o
WEHEBER S NE-_A-+HB%FR "
Bank Rakyat A Btk —FERAEEZ T —
F+ZA=Z+—HmMTEH AR RCVMSB 1R
kRN - BE—E—mE+—B=+—H1IF
£ - CYMSBZEfEE T A 5 BAiE 51 670,000 f5 ¥
(FAEH1,586,03287T) °

RZZE—NFE+-A+HA AEECDEESR
Bank Rakyat 5t CVMSB #5 /K B K (B8 B FT 7 7
RRENEARR(ZER] - REZRER
CWWSBH 2 HM&Z B MERS BRI E
113,040,000 5 # (1555 70 47 258,850,469 78 7T )
VTHR—ZZE—RAFNA=ZTHEAREET
Bank Rakyat - £ #(1)4,020,000 55 ¥ (8 & 7 49
9,205,404 70) MER —E—MNF+=-A=+—
B st 2 Al {8 % ¥ Bank Rakyat : (B —Z— R 4F
— Az RFEAABABRNEE—AM
Bank Rakyat®& A & $X200,000 5 ¥ (48 & 1 4
457,980 7T ) + M 1% — Hi#E 505 2,820,000 5
B (FEE 46,457,522 70) A B R B AR
BREE_ZT—RAFNA=Z+AINM Kl
CVMSB# i — =& — A F 75 A = + B [Bank
Rakyat {& 2 2 B M £ 4% /9 8 3 & 8 105,000,000
B (FAE R 49240,439,661 78 7T) °
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27

182

BANK LOANS — SECURED (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2014 and due to
continued negative cashflows, the Group defaulted on the
repayments of bank loans of RM4,020,000 (equivalent to
approximately HKD9,205,404) and breached one of the
covenants of the banking facilities. Upon discovery of the
breach, the directors of the Company commenced a
negotiation of the terms of the loans with Bank Rakyat.
These negotiations have concluded on 12 January 2015
whereby Bank Rakyat has agreed to defer the repayment
by CVMSB of the bank loan amounting at RM4,020,000
(equivalent to approximately HKD9,205,404) to 16 January
2015, which was originally repayable on or before 31
December 2014. According to Bank Rakyat, such deferral
is final and Bank Rakyat shall not allow any further delay
and/or failure on the part of CYMSB to meet its payment
obligation. Up to the approval date of the consolidated
financial statements, the bank loan of RM4,020,000
(equivalent to approximately HKD9,205,404) is defaulted
again and not yet repaid.

On 17 March 2015, the Company received a letter issued
by Bank Rakyat indicating that the continued failure to
fulfil the repayment obligations as set out in the Proposal
constituted a breach of terms and therefore the above
Proposal was terminated and/or allowed to be terminated
(the “Letter”). Accordingly, the total amount owed and
repayable to Bank Rakyat was restored to RM203,141,864
(equivalent to approximately HKD465,174,866) as at 28
February 2015 (the "Outstanding Loan”) which was
required to be settled within 14 days from the date of the
Letter. According to Bank Rakayt, legal actions will be
commenced against CVMSB including all its corporate
guarantors if CVMSB failed, neglected or refused to settle
the Outstanding Loan within the given period.

DING HE MINING HOLDINGS LIMITED SFiE£ZERERAR

27

BEARTER®E)
HE-Z-ME+-_A=+—RHALFE aNEF
BHEABRESRE  MASEAREERBITER
4,020,000 55 ¥ (FHE 7R 499,205,404 B 7T) i R
Hp—HRTRMER - BEBHENE A2
A)ZE ERtAEEBank Rakyat EF R & FAVIEN »
WEERER_E—RAF—A+-_B&FR"
Bank Rakyat BRI ZE CVMSBEIEE —F — A F —
A+ AEEZERETENR_E—TF+=A
=+—HBsk A& 8<% 54,020,000 5 ¥ (48
R #99,205,404 % 7T ) 2 HRITE X o B IR Bank
Rakyat » /2 /X AL B T J& & 4% %C 8 - Bank Rakyat
TR EMEEINER K, HLCYMSB T EITEE
RED - BESAVBHREIEBLL - RITE
74,020,000 55 ¥ (18 E 1049 9,205,404 B 7T) IR
HBRE®MAKEE -

R-ZTE—RAF=A++H  &~2RQaEEBank
Rakyat 2 H 8 1 - 8RR BIEFFEREEETT
ZIRBRATHOEESTMERIER - St - %2
RISERIER SRAT R ([FZEREF]) o B
RZE—RAF A=+ )\HAGBERKEEET
Bank Rakyat #7428 < %8 0118 %= 203,141,864 5 ¥ (18
HERA465,174,866 8 7T) (IREERER]) - WA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

28 UNSECURED LOANS FROM THIRD PARTIES

Within 1 year —FA

The amounts due are based on the scheduled repayment
dates set out in the loan agreements which do not have a
repayment on demand clause.

On 13 June 2011, the Company entered into a loan
agreement with an independent third party for an
unsecured loan of HKD50,000,000 at an interest rate of
12% p.a. payable half-yearly. The loan is wholly repayable
on or before June 2014.

On 12 February 2014, the Company successfully
negotiated with the lender with written confirmation to
defer the repayment by a year to 12 June 2015 and to
charge interest rate at 12% p.a. payable half-yearly with
effect on 13 June 2014.

On 14 October 2011, the Company entered into loan
agreements with four holders of convertible bonds,
pursuant to which the holders of convertible bonds
agreed to make available to the Company with aggregate
loan facilities of HKD100,000,000. The Company applied
these loans for repayment of the outstanding convertible
bonds issued by the Company in September 2010 in the
principal sum of respective amount and registered in the
name of the lenders. The unsecured loans are recognised
initially at fair value less attributable transaction costs. In
the opinion of the directors of the Company, the principal
value of the unsecured loans is approximate to its fair
value. These loans are unsecured, interest bearing at 15%
p.a. payable half-yearly and repayable within 12 months
from the respective drawdown date.

e BRI

REE=ZFEREHAER

The Group and the Company
AEERAAT

2014 2013

—E =

—E-mEF
HKD HKD
BT

= 150,000,000

BB TR IR Ty DAL 5 BE R 2SR E IR IR RV E
HTEETEEAN B HRE -

RIB——FRA+=H ARARE-EBILE
= 735£ 50,000,000 7T #Y £ 45 9 B SRAT S & 5K
& FHER12%  BFEXN  c ERARZTE
—PHERNARZAEHEER -

R-Z—ME-A+—-H  KRARSKIHEER
ANETHERATEAER  BERREE—F5=
T—RAFAATZH WEZZE—WFAAT=
ARZEFEFE 2% ERGEFER -

M_ZT——F+A+ME - AR F)EPNH A AR
BEEIFBEATLERGE - Bt - ATRRESRE
B ARERARBREMEA 100,000,005 L E
HEE - AARIEARSEREELARANE
—SFENABRTACREAERSELIUNER
AZEBRH IR EFHREEFE - EIKT
BRRAVIAR R A FEREGER ZHATRER ° &
RAEERE  EEREFNASEHEEATE
FBE - WEERBEERA - FRE15%  BFF
ERMARSRERASET 12@ARNER -
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UNSECURED LOANS FROM THIRD PARTIES
(continued)

In March 2012, the Company successfully negotiated with
these four lenders in writing to defer the repayment by six
months and eighteen days to May 2013 and to charge
interest at 18% p.a. payable half-yearly with effect from
October 2012.

In March 2013, the Company has successfully negotiated
with these four lenders in writing to defer the repayment
by a year to April 2014 and to charge interest rate at 18%
p.a. payable half-yearly.

On 30 January 2014, the Company further successfully
negotiated with these four leaders to defer the repayment
by a year to 30 April 2015 and to charge interest rate at
18% p.a. payable half-yearly with effect on 1 May 2014.

0On 21 March 2014, the Company negotiated with all of the
above five lenders (collectively known as the “Lenders”)
and entered into capitalisation agreements respectively in
relation to, among others, the set-off of each of the
Lenders’ outstanding principal sum and unpaid interests
by way of (i) the issue and allotment of capitalisation
shares; and (i) the issue of convertible preference shares
(“CPS") (the “Loan Capitalisation”).

On 12 August 2014, the Company entered into a deed of
waiver to each of the Lenders, of which the Lenders (i)
confirm that they will waive all their rights in the unpaid
interest accrued on the outstanding principal sum from 21
March 2014 to the date of completion of the Loan
Capitalisation; and (ii) confirm and agree to release, acquit
and discharge the Company from any and all liability of
any nature whatsoever and from any and all claims,
demands, causes of action or liens of any nature
whatsoever arising out of or in connection with Lenders’
outstanding principal sum and unpaid interests as at 21
March 2014.

The Loan Capitalisation was eventually completed on 14
August 2014, of which an aggregate of 565,631,172
ordinary shares and an aggregate of 565,631,177 CPS
were allotted and issued to the Lenders.

As at 31 December 2013, the outstanding sum to the

Lenders which comprises the outstanding principal sum
and unpaid interest amounts to HKD181,037,242.

DING HE MINING HOLDINGS LIMITED SFiE£ZERERAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

29 DEFERRED TAXATION

The following are the major deferred tax balances
recognised and movements thereon during the current
and prior years:

Deferred tax liabilities
At 1 January 2013
Credit to profit or loss (Note 8(a)) FFAEZE

At 31 December 2013

FEHRBEEE
R-ZE—=F—H—H
5 (BisE8(a))

R=F-=#+=A=+—H

e BRI

IESERL IR
R AR B 8RR A E B R
BRERR R H B

The Group
TEE
Exploration and

evaluation assets
R R HEE
HKD

BIT

(72,619,757)
40,558,183

(32,061,574)

At 1 January 2014 RZE—WF—H—H (32,061,574)
Credit to profit or loss (Note 8(a)) AR (FIEE8(@)) 23,492,927
At 31 December 2014 RZE—MOF+-_A=+—H (8,568,647)

As at 31 December 2014, the Group has not recognised
deferred tax assets in respect of accumulated tax losses
of approximately HKD258,374,000 (2013: HKD225,302,000)
as it is not probable that future taxable profits against
which the losses can be utilised will be available in the
relevant tax jurisdictions. The tax losses do not expire
under current tax legislation. Other temporary differences
are not material.

As at 31 December 2014, the Group has deductible
temporary differences of approximately HKD130,625,000
(2013: HKD73,908,000). No deferred tax asset has been
recognised in relation to such deductible temporary
difference as it is not probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary
differences can be utilised.

A TE AR R VERE I S K AT RE B AT A YRR
% 2B E R RRERTES - MAEER

—E+ =A==+ —BHERRBAHELEE
18#49258,374,0005 7T ( —F — =4 : 225,302,000
BT ERIELERIEEE - BEBERBUBED -
FISE B AR - EMEREHEATBER -

R-ZE—NE+-A=+—H  AEBHEEAH
S B 2 5B 49130,625,0008 T ( =T — =4 ¢
73,908,000/ 70 ) o F A & 2R B0 I #8 AT g &1
WA AZSEREEMGTA B REHREE
EESLRZ A PR B = KA T ERERR o
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30 CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Movements in components of equity
The reconciliation between the opening and closing
balances of each component of the Group’s
consolidated equity is set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity. Details of the
changes in the Company's individual components of
equity between the beginning and the end of the
year are set out below:

186

(a)

The Company

At 1 January 2013
Changes in equity for 2013
Loss and total comprenensive oss
for the year
Shares issued pursuant
toa share placing
Conversion of convertible bonds
Repayment of convertible bonds

At 31December 2013

At January 2014

Changes in equity for 2014;

Loss and total comprehensive loss
for the year

Transition to no-par value regime on
3March 2014

Shares issued pursuant
toa share placing

Shares issued pursuant to the
Loan Capitalisation

At 31 December 2014

R=F-=F-A-A
“E-CERHEE:
ERMERRZESRLEE

BERDEEMETH
Ry 300)
BATRRES 300
[EETRRES

s

R=F-MF-A-A
“3-MEREEE:
ERBER2EERLSE

R-E-ME=A=H
BRZEEENE
BERDEEMETH

iy
BEETARLA
BRIl

30(i)

30b)

30b)

RZE-METZA=1-H

Share
capital

B

Convertible
preference
shares
T4

BRKf#E
(@)

30

SR R

REE G S B ARER ) I IR

mF

Share
premium

Capital
reserve

BRG
HKD

RipaE

Convertible

bond equity

reserve
TRRES

=)
A

Other
reserve

Accumulated
losses

ZithR
HKD

b3

L

WERBE - KRS
R4 35 4L K BB 9 A 4F 4 25 R

8

125,317,014 - 634530688 1,338,136 66,737,350 33925000 (950725908 (88,877,720)
- - - - - - (169474437)  (169474.437)

26,803,000 - 17,100,314 - - - - 43903314
8,698,413 - 38514417 - (18188430 - - 29,024,400

- - - - (19217054 - - (19217,05)
160,818,427 - 690145419 133813 29,331,866 33925000 (1120200345)  (204,641,497)
160,818,427 - 690,145,419 1338136 29,331,866 33,925,000 (1,120,200,345) (204,641,497)
= o = = o - (79,694199)  (79,694,199)
690,145,419 - (690,145,419) = = = = =
48,245,400 o = = o o - 48,245400
90,500,988 90,500,988 = = o o - 181,001976
989,710,234 90,500,988 o 1338136 29,331,866 33,925,000 (1,199,894,544)  (55,088,320)
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30 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)
(b) Share capital

)

Authorised and issued share capital
The Company

e BRI

30 BEARRfHE )

(b)

2014

IR
() FEEREBITRA
AAT

2013

= —%-=%

Number

of shares
RAEE

Number
of shares
RHEE

Authorised: ETE V)

At 1 January m—HR—H = - 10,000,000,000 250,000,000
Consolidation of shares  f&fn & B (i) - - (7,500,000,000) -
At 31 December M+-ZA=1+—H (v) = = 2,500,000,000 250,000,000
Ordinary shares, issued @R - B#TR

and fully paid: HR:

At 1January R—F—H 1,608,184,265 160,818,427 5,012,680,556 125,317,014
Consolidation of shares  ffn & B (i) - - (4,020,462,793) -
Conversion of convertible #3555

bonds (i = - 347,936,507 8,698,413
Transition to no-par value  R=Z—MF

regimeon3March 2014 =A=H@EZE

BEEHE (Vi) = 690,145,419 - -
Shares issued pursuantto  RERHEER

a share placing BIIMBRS (i 321,636,000 48,245,400 268,030,000 26,803,000
Shares issued pursuant to 185 &5 &AL i

the Loan Capitalisation ~ E47HII (7 (i) 565,631,172 90,500,988 - -
At 31 December nt-ZA=+—H 2,495,451,437 989,710,234 1,608,184,265 160,818,427

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to
receive dividends as declared from time to
time and are entitled to one vote per share at
meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares
rank equally with regard to the Company’s
residual assets.

WA A MR T B R
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30 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)
(b) Share capital (continued)

188

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Issue of shares

On 15 January 2013, the Company issued
347,936,507 ordinary shares of HKD0.025 each
in respect of the conversion of convertible
bonds with a principal amount of
HKD43,840,000 held by Voice Key Group
Limited (see Note 26(D)).

On 2 September 2013, 268,030,000 ordinary
shares of HKDO.10 each were issued at a price
of HKDO0.168 each for cash consideration of
HKD45,029,040.

On 30 July 2014, 321,636,000 ordinary shares
of HKDO0.10 each were issued by placing at
HKDO.15 each for cash consideration of
HKD48,245,400.

On 14 August 2014, an aggregate of
565,631,172 ordinary shares and an aggregate
of 565,631,177 CPS each were issued at a
price of HKDO.16 and HKDO.16 respectively in
respect of the Loan Capitalisation (Note 28).

Consolidation of shares

As announced by the Company on 12 July
2013, the Company proposed to effect a share
consolidation and every four issued and
unissued shares of the Company of HKD0.025
each were consolidated into one consolidated
share of HKD0.10 each. An ordinary resolution
approving the share consolidation was passed
at the extraordinary general meeting of the
Company held on 29 July 2013 and the share
consolidation became effective on 30 July
2013.

Under the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622), which commenced operation on 3
March 2014, the concept of authorised share
capital no longer exists.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

30 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)

(b)

()

(d)

Share capital (continued)

(v) In accordance with section 135 of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), the
Company's shares no longer have a par or
nominal value with effect from 3 March 2014.
There is no impact on the number of shares in
issue or the relative entitlement of any of the
members as a result of this transition.

(vi) In accordance with the transitional provisions

as set out in section 37 of Schedule 11 to

Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622),

any amount standing to the credit of the share

premium has become part of the Company'’s

share capital on 3 March 2014.

Share warrants

On 6 October 2011, the Company issued
543,636,000 warrants at HKD0.001 each to seven
independent third parties raising HKD543,636. The
warrants entitle the holders to subscribe for
543,636,000 new shares of the Company at a
subscription price of HKDO.10 per share for a period
of 36 months commencing from the date of issue of
the warrants. As a result of the said share
consolidation stated in Note 30(b)(iii), the exercise
price of outstanding warrants of the Company was
adjusted from HKDO.10 per warrant share to
HKDO0.40 per warrant share with effect on 29 July
2013. At 31 December 2014, 543,636,000
outstanding warrants lapsed after the close of
business on 5 October 2014.

Nature and purpose of reserves

(i) capital reserve
The capital reserve mainly represents the net
proceeds received from the issue of warrants
of the Company. The reserve will be
transferred to share capital and share
premium account upon the exercise of the
warrants.
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(b)

(c)

(d)
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(V) REFEBRAUEDI(F622%)E135
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0.001 B T EBR M B BILE = H T
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30 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)
(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

190

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(V)

Share premium

Prior to 3 March 2014, the application of the
share premium account and the capital
redemption reserve was governed by sections
48B and 49H respectively of the predecessor
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32). In
accordance with the transitional provisions set
out in section 37 of Schedule 11 to the new
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622),
on 3 March 2014 any amount standing to the
credit of the share premium account and the
capital redemption reserve has become part
of the Company’s share capital (see note
30(a)). The use of share capital as from 3
March 2014 is governed by the new Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622).

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of
foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policies set
out in Note 2(t).

Convertible bond equity reserve

The value of the unexercised equity
component of convertible bonds issued by the
Company is recognised in accordance with
the accounting policies set out in Note 2(]).

Other reserve

The Group

Other reserve of the Group represents the
reserve arising from the reverse acquisition on
14 October 2008.

On 14 October 2008, the Company acquired
the entire issued and fully paid-up share
capital of CVYMSB, a company incorporated in
Malaysia.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

30 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)
(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

Other reserve (continued)

The Group (continued)

The consideration was satisfied by the
allotment and issue of 338,249,999 new
ordinary shares and the existing 1 share of the
Company to the then shareholders of CVMSB,
credited as fully paid at an issue price of
HKDO0.10 per new share.

The Company

Other reserve of the Company represents the
difference between the value of the shares of
CVMSB acquired over the nominal value of the
shares used by the Company as consideration
for the reverse acquisition on 14 October
2008. The application of the other reserve is
governed by section 196 of the new Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) with
reference to section 48C of the predecessor
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32).

Distributability of reserves

At 31 December 2014, there were no realised
profits available for distribution to owners of
the Company (2013: Nil).

Convertible preference shares

On 14 August 2014, the Company issued
565,631,177 CPS at an aggregate nominal
value of HKD90,500,988 upon the completion
of the Loan Capitalisation. The conversion
price of the CPS is fixed at HKDO.16 per
ordinary share and can be converted into
ordinary shares without specified maturity
date. Neither the Company nor the holders of
the CPS shall have any right to redeem the
CPS, other than for the purpose of conversion
of the CPS pursuant to the terms thereof. The
CPS shall at all times (a) rank pari passu to any
and all current or future preferred equity
securities of the Company; (b) shall not be
entitled to any dividend; (c) non-redeemable in
nature; and (d) have no voting rights.

30
(d)
(v)

(vi)

(vii)
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30

31

192

CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)

(e) Capital management
The Group's primary objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern, so that it can continue
to provide returns for owners and benefits for other
stakeholders.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and
manages its capital structure to maintain a balance
between the higher shareholder returns that might
be possible with higher levels of borrowings and the
advantages and security afforded by a sound capital
position.

The Group is not subject to externally imposed
capital requirements in either the current or prior
years.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to the written resolution passed on 14 October
2008, the Company adopted a share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) to (i) attract and retain the best quality
personnel for the development of the Group’s business;
(i) to provide additional incentives to the employees; (iii)
to provide eligible persons with the opportunity to acquire
proprietary interests in the Group; and (iv) to promote the
long term financial success of the Group by aligning the
interests of grantees to shareholders. The Scheme is to
remain in force for a period of 10 years from the date of
adoption of such scheme and will expire on 13 October
2018.

Under the Scheme, the Board of Directors of the Company
(the "Directors”) may at their discretion grant options to (i)
Board of Directors or a duly authorised committee; or (ii)
any person employed by the Company or any subsidiary;
(iii) any consultant, adviser, supplier, customer or
subcontractor of the Company or any other person
determined by the Directors from time to time to
subscribe for the shares of the Company (the “Shares”).

DING HE MINING HOLDINGS LIMITED & HfiE£ZRBERAF

30

31

EXRREE

(e) EBEXRER
AEEEREANTIERBRAREALE
FEKENRE)  UBBRER ATRE
B AEAMFEARE RN o

AEEEGRERBRS MNEREELEARAR
B NERSRRO®R(AJESHRSE
FOKFE) E R AFH)EAARE R ES K
RIZ 2 PRSP -

AEEAFESBEFETZIMNENER
BEMR -

BT

RARRER-_ZETENF+A+NBEBHBZE
EDRFE IRV R T 2 ([32ETE)) - BTEG) R
SINBBREEATERAEEES  (VBEE
REFEINER () BAERALTREREAE
EEERERKE  Riv)BEBRGARAHBERKRRE
MR EM - REAEBRIAMBEH - ZatE
BEME BRATERER  RZT—N\F1+A
+=RE -

RigZaTE ARAEE((EF)EEREE
THANEEFEREAEZENTE S =)
ARBHERNHERRNERNES : (AR F]
EREER - BAA - HER  EFIoendE
EETHEENTAEMALREARBEARAR
mIRtn ([BAn 1) R R -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Options granted must be taken up within 28 days of the
date of grant, upon payment of HKD1 per option. The
maximum number of Shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the Scheme shall not exceed 10%
of the issued share capital of the Company on the date of
adopting the Scheme. The limit may be refreshed at any
time provided that the new limit must not be in aggregate
exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the Company
as at the date of the shareholders’ approval in general
meeting. However, the total number of shares which may
be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted
and yet to be exercised under the Scheme and any other
scheme of the Company must not in aggregate exceed
10% of the shares in issue from time to time. The
maximum number of Shares in respect of which options
may be granted to any individual in any 12-month period
shall not exceed 1% of the Shares in issue on the last date
of such 12-month period unless approval of the
shareholders of the Company has been obtained in
accordance with the Listing rules. Options granted to
substantial shareholders or independent non-executive
directors in excess of issued share capital of the Company
or with a value in excess of HKD5 million must be
approved in advance by the shareholders of the
Company.

Options granted may be exercised at any time from date
of grant of the share option to the 10th anniversary of the
date of grant as may be determined by the Directors. The
exercise price is determined by the Directors, and will not
be less than the higher of the closing price per share as
stated in the Stock Exchange's daily quotations sheets on
the date of the grant of the options, the average closing
price per share as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily
quotations sheets for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of the grant of the options, and the
nominal value of a share.

No option has been granted by the Company under the
Scheme since its adoption date.
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32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES

194

(a)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives
and policies

Management has adopted certain policies for
financial risk management with the objective of:

() ensuring that appropriate funding strategies
are adopted to meet the Group’s short term
and long term funding requirements taking
into consideration the cost of funding, gearing
levels and cash flow projections of each
project; and

(i) ensuring that appropriate strategies are also
adopted to manage related interest and
currency risk.

Credit risk

The Group’s and the Company’s credit risk are
primarily attributable to cash and cash equivalents,
trade receivables, prepayments, deposits and other
receivables. The exposure to this credit risk is
monitored by management on an ongoing basis and
management does not expect any counterparty to
fail to meet its obligations.

Cash and cash equivalents are placed at financial
institutions that have sound credit rating.

In respect of trade receivables, individual credit
evaluations are performed on all customers
requiring credit over a certain amount. These
evaluations focus on the customer’s past history of
making payments when due and current ability to
pay and take into account information specific to
the customer as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customer operates. Trade
receivables derived from sales of magnesium ingots
are due within 14 days from the date of the bill of
lading for exports sales or date of invoice for local
sales. Other than that the Group has a policy of
allowing customers for domestic trading and
distribution in the PRC with credit terms or normally
cash on delivery. Debtors with balances that are
more than 6 months past due are requested to
settle all outstanding balances before any further
credit is granted. Normally the Group does not
obtain collateral from customers.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (continued)
(b) Credit risk (continued)

(c)

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced
mainly by the individual characteristics of each
customer rather than the industry in which the
customers operate and therefore significant
concentrations of credit risk primarily arise when
the Group has significant exposure to individual
customers. As at 31 December 2014, 95% (2013:
17%) of the trade receivables was due from the
Group’s largest customer.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented
by the carrying amount of each financial asset, in
the consolidated statement of financial position.
Except for the corporate guarantees given by the
Group as set out in Note 36(a), the Group does not
provide any other guarantees which would expose
the Group or the Company to credit risk. The
maximum exposure to the credit risk in respect of
these corporate guarantees at the end of the
reporting period is disclosed in Note 36(a).

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the
Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from trade
receivables are set out in Note 19.

Foreign currency risk

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk
through trade receivables and payables that are
denominated in a currency other than the functional
currency of the operations to which the transactions
relate.
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32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 32 2 REREERAFE#E)
VALUES (continued)
(c) Foreign currency risk (continued) (c) SERERE)
(i) Exposure to currency risk () FHEBENEERK

The following table details the Group’s and the TRAFMANEER KRR R RIRE E
company's exposure at the end of the RETEERE ABEHE AR E
reporting period to currency risk arising from BONNEEBENEBRAEEXE
recognised assets or liabilities denominated in B EENEERERE - AR E
a currency other than the functional currency BRERIILFEAMBIRERH %
of the relevant subsidiaries. For presentation BITEZIIZA
purposes, the amounts of the exposure are
shown in HKD, translated using the spot rate
at year end date:

P R 0 SN [ B (JAEB TTHIME)

Exposure to foreign currencies (expressed in

196
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HKD)

2014 2013
—E—mE —EF-=F
United States  United States
Dollars Dollars
Sk ET
HKD HKD
i v P IT

The Group REHE
Cash and cash equivalents RERFASEEY 23,595 16,878
Trade and other payables JE AT BR 3k % L Ath FE 15 5K 1B (2,838,317) (1,320,224)
(2,814,722) (1,303,346)

The Company

2014
—F-0F
United States

Dollars
EYH
HKD
BT

2013
—E—=F
United States
Dollars

=TT

HKD

BT

Cash and cash equivalents Re MRS EEY 11,225 11,283

Other payables and accrued Eofh e FRIE R FERT R 2
expenses - (1,320,224)
11,225 (1,308,941)
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32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 32 4£RIEREERQAFEEE)
VALUES (continued)

(c) Foreign currency risk (continued) (c) INERPRERE)
(i) Sensitivity analysis (i) BRBREDN
The following table indicates the approximate TREMMEERTRZEBEZRG
change in the Group's loss before tax and EEREIMNERE RSB B (K&
accumulated losses in response to reasonably ERREHAEZSEYHEBGEEXR
possible changes in the foreign exchange [BLBg) (% AT A H AR s & 2 (R EF
rates to which the Group has significant ) i RBUE L o R ) B 4H A
exposure at the end of the reporting period, BB 52 SN e SR B R &

assuming all other variable risk variables
remained constant. Other components of the
equity would not be affected by changes in
the foreign exchange rate:

2014
—E-mE

(Increase)/ (Increase)/
Increase/ decrease Increase/ decrease
(decrease) in loss before (decrease) inloss before
in foreign tax and in foreign tax and
exchange accumulated exchange  accumulated
rates losses rates losses
BER BER
SN BB 2 BB HNE [ = ZEHER
LH/(TR)  (8m)/EHP  EH/(RE)  gEm)/ R
HKD HKD
BT BT

The Group rEE
United States Dollars T 5% (140,736) 5% (65,167)
(5)% 140,736 (5)% 65,167

The Company Vi UNE]
United States Dollars ETT 5% (561) 5% (65,447)
(5)% 561 (5)% 65,447
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32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (continued)
(c) Foreign currency risk (continued)

198

(d)

(ii)

Sensitivity analysis (continued)

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the
change in foreign exchange rates had been
applied to re-measure those financial
instruments held by the Group which expose
the Group to foreign currency risk at the end
of the reporting period. The analysis excludes
differences that would result from the
translation of the financial statements of the
foreign operations into the Group’s
presentation currency. The analysis is
performed on the same basis as for 2013.

In addition, the operations of the Company’s
investments in Malaysia, Indonesia and the
PRC are mainly transacted in Ringgit Malaysia
("RM"), Rupiah (“RPH") and Renminbi (“RMB")
respectively. Any distributions from these
investments in RM, RPH and RMB may expose
the Company to a certain degree of risk
resulting from fluctuation in these currencies
against HKD.

Interest rate risk

The interest rate risk of the Group and the Company
arise primarily from secured bank loans, unsecured

loans from third parties and convertible bonds.
Borrowings issued at variable rates and fixed rates

expose the Group and the Company to cash flow

interest rate risk and fair value interest rate risk,
respectively.

The following table details the interest rate profile of
the Group’s and the Company’s borrowings at the
end of the reporting period.
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e BRI

32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 32 4£RIEREERQAFEEE)
VALUES (continued)

(d) Interest rate risk (continued) (d) RI=EkE)
The Group E
2014
—2-mE
Effective Effective
interest rate Amount interest rate Amount
ERERE &8 EREF|= &8
HKD
BT
Variable rate borrowings: FENFIRfE -
— Secured bank loans - BEBRTER 8.6%p.a. 381,392,173 8.6% p.a. 406,331,729
Fixed rate borrowings: EIE FI=E K -
— Convertible bonds —RES 17.54% p.a.- 17.54% p.a-
33.73% p.a. 94,278,123 33.73% p.a. 83,644,788
— Obligations under finance —MERERE 1.80% p.a.- 1.80% p.a.-
leases 3.68% p.a. 575,486 3.68%Dp.a. 1,010,504
— Unsecured loans k=il 12% p.a-
from third parties |EBER - - 18% p.a. 150,000,000
476,245,782 640,987,021
The Company b

2014
—E-MF
Effective Effective

interest rate interest rate
BERFRR c ERERE

Fixed rate horrowings: EE IR E
— Convertible bonds — AR ES 17.54% p.a.- 17.54% p.a.-
33.73% p.a. 94,278,123 33.73% p.a. 83,644,788
— Obligations under afinance  — B ERE&AIE

lease 1.8% p.a. 258,656 1.80% p.a. 433,891

— Unsecured loans fromthird — —RBE=74 12% p.a.-
parties BEAER = - 18% p.a. 150,000,000
94,536,779 234,078,679

ANNUAL REPORT £ 2014 199



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fr & M| R EE

32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (continued)

200

(d)

Interest rate risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2014, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 100 basis points in interest
rates, with all other variables held constant, would
increase/decrease the Group’s loss before tax and
deficit by approximately HKD3,814,000 (2013:
HKD4,063,000).

There is no effect on the Company’s loss before tax
for both years and accumulated losses.

The sensitivity analysis above indicates
instantaneous change in the Group's and the
Company’s loss before tax (and accumulated losses)
and other components of consolidated equity that
would arise assuming that the change in interest
rates had occurred at the end of the reporting
period and had been applied to re-measure those
financial instruments held by the Group and the
Company which expose the Group and the
Company to fair value interest rate risk at the end of
the reporting period. In respect of the exposure to
cash flows interest rate risk arising from variable
rate non-derivative instruments held by the Group
at the end of the reporting period, the impact on the
Group's loss before tax (and accumulated losses)
and other components of consolidated equity is
estimated as an annualised impact on interest
expense or income of such a change in interest
rates. The analysis is performed on the same basis
for 2013.
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32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 32 4£RIEREERQAFEEE)
VALUES (continued)

(e) Liquidity risk (e) REBEZRM

The liquidity of the Group is primarily dependent on
its ability to maintain adequate cash inflow from
operations to meet its debt obligations as and when
they fall due and on its ability to obtain external
financing for its committed future capital
expenditures.

The Group had net current liabilities of
HKD577,355,794 (2013: HKD695,957,811) at 31
December 2014 which include secured bank loans
and unsecured loans from third parties of
HKD381,392,173 (2013: HKD406,331,729) and HKDnil
(2013: HKD150,000,000), respectively. As detailed in
Notes 26(a) and 27 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Matured Bonds and all the secured
bank loans were defaulted for repayments
respectively as at 31 December 2014 and/or on the
approval date of the consolidated financial
statements. As detailed in Note 26(b), Victory
Dragon Bonds have become due and payable at
their principal amounts if any of their holders serves
a notice on the Company as a result of the Non-
redemption. The directors of the Company closely
monitor the cash flows of the Group and the
Company and upon maturity, arrange renewal and
refinancing of these borrowings, where necessary,
to enable the Group to carry on its operations in the
foreseeable future. As disclosed in Note 2(b) to the
consolidated financial statements, the directors of
the Company have taken action to mitigate the
liquidity issues faced by the Group and the
Company. Accordingly, the directors of the
Company are of the opinion that the Group’s and
the Company’s liquidity risk will be addressed once
the Proposed Alterations and extended maturity
dates with these bondholders and re-negotiations
with Bank Rakyat can be reached in near future.

AEENRDESTIZRTHETERTR
M SR IMAAEE S IER - PANBE
BRLE B AE R AR IE A F STEUS SRR

—T—WNFE+-_A=+—8 " KEEDH
B B(ER577,355 794 (- E—=
F 1 695,957,811 L) « BIEAEMELT
BERMKREF=ZFERFERD A
381,392,173 w( = T — = F:
406,331,729 8 70) REB T (ZE—=%F :
150,000,00078 7T ) ° B a0ERE Hﬁ k=
26 M275F - D RIA ZF — O F
TZAZ+ AR SEREMBEREME
HES - BIHEE %&ﬁﬁﬁamﬁﬂfﬁﬁg #
HERGB IR o S A0FT 7 26(D) SEES
KERIE Wﬂﬁj%ﬂ%&%%ﬁﬁ)\lﬂ%%
ERImmARRELBEN  AEREERS
BN - ARAEFHYELEAEB KA

S
)

RAIMBRERE  WHREHBNLHEZERE
ROBETNBRE(WMERLE)  UFEARE

BIRT AR RABELLEET - BAEE
BB HRRME2DRE  ARAERER
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TEE - Bt ARABEFEZRS - —BR
ITHRZEEARE A AERERER ST

KRIHIA - I8 Bank Rakyat B E 114 -
BARRAEB R ARRNREE SRR °
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32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 32 4£REREERAFEEE)
VALUES (continued)

(e) Liquidity risk (continued) (e) RBELEME)
The following table details the remaining contractual TREFVAREE RAR R RHRE R
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the HaEFRGENEHE (TREA LKL
Group’s and the Company’s financial liabilities, REene(BEREOTE  EREH
which are based on contractual undiscounted cash ME - BEHREHARORBEFNERAENF
flows (including interest payments computed using BERFOFE) RAEBRARRIAZNH
contractual rates or, if variable, based on rates =FHE:

current at the end of the reporting period) and the
earliest date the Group and the Company can be
required to pay:

2014
“E-NE
Contracted undiscounted cash flows
BERANRBLRE
More than  More than
Carrying Within 1yearbut 2 years but
amount at 1 year or less than less than
31 December on demand 2 years 5 years
iy
=t+-AH —ENAK —ENE MENRL
HERHE{E REXE  ERENAR  EEFEHUR
HKD HKD HKD HKD
BT j BT BT BT
The Group iy |
Convertible bonds R ES 94,278,123 99,184,207 99,184,207 - -
Secured bank loans* BEARITER 381,392,173 447,527,837 447,527,837 - -
Obligations under finance ~ FAE M EHIE
leases 575,486 606,399 336,972 205,234 64,193
Trade and other payables  FEREEZREM
BT 105,108,868 105,108,868 105,108,868 - -
Amounts due to related EfEERFE
parties 4,398,961 4,398,961 4,398,961 - -
Amountduetoadirector RN —ZEEFA 138,000 138,000 138,000 - -

585,891,611 656,964,272 656,694,845 205,234 64,193
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32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 32 mEREERAFRESE)

VALUES (continued)
(e) Liquidity risk (continued) (e) RBELEMRE)
2013
—T-=f
Contracted undiscounted cash flows
BORBRASTE
More than More than
Carrying Within 1 year but 2 years but
amount at 1 year or less than less than
31 December on demand 2 years 5 years
w+=A
==k —FE A —ENE ML E
MEREME ‘ REXE  BARENR BRENUR
HKD HKD HKD
BT BT BT
The Group r&EE
Convertible bonds hkES 83,644,788 195,970,777 55,739,581 140,231,196 -
Secured bank loans* BERARTED 406,331,729 578,564,695 124,066,730 124,066,730 330,431,235
Obligations under finance ~ FIEMERKIE
leases 1,010,504 1,082,844 453,773 346,926 282,145
Trade and other payables  FEREEZREM
B3 110430866 110,430,866 110,430,866 - -
Amounts due to related ENEERE
parties 6,341,020 6,341,020 6,341,020 - -
Amountduetoadirector  EN—HREZEFA 628,790 628,790 628,790 - -

Liabilities associated with B2 R AIERFE
assets classified as held BEMEBENAR

for sale 2,819,092 2,819,092 2,819,092 - -
Unsecured loans fromthird kKB E=FEERER
parties 150,000,000 173,950,820 173,950,820 - -

761,206,789 1,069,788904 474,430,672 264,644,852 330,713,380

* The amounts due are based on the scheduled repayment * SRR ERRGEMSRNEEEER S
dates set out in the loan agreements and ignore the effect RIS N AT A A BE A ESRE R AR R
of any repayment on demand clause (see Note 27). T (RKE27) -
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32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 32 cmEREERAFRESE)

VALUES (continued)
(e) Liquidity risk (continued) (e) RBELEME)
2014
—E-NE
Contracted undiscounted cash flows
BRAERRERE
More than  More than
Carrying 1yearbut 2 years but
amount at Within less than less than
31 December 1 year 2 years 5 years
Rt=A
=t+-H —ENE MEAL
HEREE —ENR  EREUR  BEFUA
HKD HKD HKD HKD
BT i BT BT BT
The Company Y NG|
Convertible bonds ThkES 94,278,123 99,184,207 99,184,207 - -
Other payables and accrued  Efti R FE R
expenses EETAX 25,538,038 25,538,038 25,538,038 - -
Obligations under finance  REMEHE
leases 258,656 265,115 187,140 71,975 -
Amount dueto adirector  ERN—ZEEFA 138,000 138,000 138,000 - -

120,212,817 125,125,360 125,047,385 77,975 =
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32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 32 mEREERAFRESE)

VALUES (continued)
(e) Liquidity risk (continued) (e) RBELEMRE)
2013
“E=F
Contracted undiscounted cash flows
BORBRASTE
More than More than
Carrying 1 year but 2 years but
amount at Within less than less than
31 December 1 year 2years 5 years
W=7
==k —ENE ML E
MERE A | —E0A ERENR BREHUA
HKD HKD
BT BT
The Company A UNC|
Convertible bonds hkES 83,644,788 195,970,777 55,739,581 140,231,196 -
Other payables and HERFER
accrued expenses eI 45,386,654 45,386,654 45,386,654 - -
Obligations under finance ~ BAMERHE
leases 433,891 452,255 187,140 187,140 77975
Amount dueto adirector  ERN—ZEEFUA 628,790 628,790 628,790 - -
Unsecured loans from REE=HBEAER
third parties 150,000,000 173,950,820 173,950,820 - -

280,094,123 416,389,296 275892985 140,418,336 77975
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32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 32 £@EREERAFE )
VALUES (continued)
(f) Categories of financial instruments fh &WMITEDE

The Group The Company
PN | VNN
2014 2013 2014

—E-mE —E-=fF —E-mE
HKD HKD HKD
BT BT BT

Financial assets PREE
Loans and receivables (including &3 & e Y ziIE (B35
trade and other receivables) TEUBR 2 R Eo A

FENEhE) 4,839,675 12,071,584 108,879 2,561,280
Financial liabilities TRIEE
Financial liabilities at amortised 1z SR A& )
cost (including trade and SRBE(BEEN
other payables) ER R EMENTIE) 585,891,611 761,206,789 = 120,212,817 280,094,123
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32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 32 mEREERAFRESE)

VALUES (continued)

(g) Fair values of financial instruments
Except as detailed in the following table, the
directors consider that the carrying amounts of
financial assets and liabilities recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position
approximate to their values:

2014
—E-mEF
Carrying

amount

BEE
HKD

B

(8

EMTRZAFE

BRTRAEI EFRA - REAH
BRAKRPHERANESREENBENRE
EEEBERS

Carrying
Fair value amount Fair value
2 ¥E REE NFE
HKD HKD HKD
BT BT BT

Financial liabilities carried 1R KA ER

at amortised cost cREE
Obligations under finance  BY&TH E#&4E

leases 575,486
Convertible bonds REES 94,278,123
Unsecured loans from REE=F

third parties EHEIRER -

606,399 1,010,504 1,082,844

94,138,000 83,644,788 82,897,000

- 150,000,000 170,913,813

The fair value of the liability component of First
Tranche Bonds and Second Tranche Bonds is
assumed to be its principal amount. The fair value of
the liability component of Third Tranche Bonds,
Fourth Tranche Bonds and Fifth Tranche Bonds is
determined assuming redemption on 9 January
2015, 4 March 2015 and 22 March 2015 respectively
and using a discount rate at 25.55% based on the
Company's credit rating and the yield of quoted
bonds with similar maturity date. The fair value of
the liability component of Victory Dragon Bonds is
determined assuming redemption on 17 April 2017
and using a discount rate at 21.86% based on the
Company's credit rating and the yield of quoted
bonds with similar maturity date.

FHELFRF_HEFEEIMOLT
EREAEARSTE F-HESF  FHEHL
BEHFELERAHEFEEIHORFEIR
KON =—ZE—RF—ALBE - —ZF—FH
FEZANBE-E-—HE=A-+_-0E
B - WREBARFEE AR B ER
RHMNEE S R ZE B RILIT IR T 25.55% &
E o HEEFABENOHNAFENRER
—E—tFUA+ERER  TREAR
AEEG R B EANHEESNZE
BRIDIIIER 21 86%ET -
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33

208

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 33 HEKEAR
Pursuant to an agreement dated 16 October 2013 entered RIEARBIEBYIE=F(TEHFDEIZBHHA
into between the Company and an independent third ZZE—=F+RA+"BMHE  ARFREF T
party (the “Purchaser”), the Company disposed of 100% B CVMIH) 2 Z0 A% # - X & %2 1,000,000 7t (18
equity interest in CVMI, to the Purchaser at a ER7,757,479%70) - CYMIE B E BRI E g8
consideration of USD1,000,000 (equivalent to EAVCEwEY (ADEER  Hk Rih) iR -
HKD7,757,479). CVMI Group is principally engaged in the ZHEEEER T —NFHEA=ZHEX °
business of exploration of minerals namely iron ore, coal
and manganese in Aceh of Indonesia. The disposal was
completed on 3 April 2014.
HKD
BIT

Analysis of assets and liabilities over which K EZEZ4IENEEREBIH

control was lost
Property, plant and equipment ME - WE RS 112,095
Goodwill EES -
Exploration and evaluation assets (*) RN FHEEE (%) -
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables FERTRRIE -« e RE M IR 224,066
Cash and cash equivalents ReEMRESEEYD 659
Trade and other payables JE 1T BR 0 % EL At FE 5 50 IE (2,792,716)
Net liabilities disposal of HENEEFE (2,455,896)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEWB AR RE
Consideration received EEAE 7,757,479
Net liabilities disposal of HEMNBETFE 2,455,896
Non-controlling interests IEIE AR R (1,263,559)
Cumulative exchange differences in respect of the B H &GN E R B 5z

net liabilities of the overseas subsidiaries HHNRBATIMBEFEAER

reclassified from equity to profit or l0ss upon ENOBERRNRTIELER

disposal of the overseas subsidiaries 1,522,118
Gain on disposal HE W 10,471,934
Net cash inflow arising on disposal of HEMBARNEENEESRAFE

subsidiaries
Cash consideration HERE 7,757,479
Less: cash and cash equivalents disposed of B HEMNES RIS EEY (659)

*: The corresponding goodwill and exploration and evaluation assets
amounting to HKD79,525,907 and HKD103,196,172 respectively

were fully impaired (see Notes 14 and 15).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

34 COMMITMENTS 34 EiE
(@) Capital commitments (@) BEXREE
Capital commitments outstanding as at 31 R-E—NER_E—=F+-_A=+—
December 2014 and 2013 not provided for in the B WENRAEVHREPEEORES
consolidated financial statements were as follows: EAFEFENT -

(b)

The Group
rEE
2014

—E-mE
HKD
B

Contracted for EHES! 17,526,584 18,690,853
Authorised but not contracted for BEREBRTY = -

17,526,584 18,690,853

Future minimum royalty payments (b) RRFRESFIEE

Pursuant to the Mining Agreement (Note 15(a)), the RIBEERE (M 15@) » BikG ASK
royalties to MERSB are subject to a monthly P A MERSB HY Z A1) & & 30,000 55
minimum payment of RM30,000 (equivalent to (B RH669058TT) (T E— =4
approximately HKD66,905) (2013: RM30,000 30,000 55 ¥ (FB & R 497390074 78)) * B
(equivalent to approximately HKD73,900) for a HI204F - B FE 7K & [E (A MERSB 3 H — f&
period of 20 years, unless early terminated by the AEEBARIRL - 20F B RIEE
Group by giving one month’s written notice to & 4858 552200005 % (HHERY
MERSB. The total minimum royalties amounted to 11,640,000 7T) (ZZF—=4F : 5,580,000
RM5,220,000 (equivalent to approximately B (FHE 5 4913,210,00078 7)) °

HKD11,640,000) (2013: RM5,580,000 (equivalent to
approximately HKD13,210,000)) over the 20 years
period.
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34 COMMITMENTS (continued)
(c) Operating lease commitments

34

A )
REHERE

(c)

At 31 December 2014, the total minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases
are payable as follows:

RZZ—MEFE+=ZA=+—8 ' RETA
BERG ST E S BN RIEHE S M@ m
™

The Group The Company
rEE b/
2014 2014
—E-NfF —Z-—nmF
HKD HKD
BT BT
Within 1 year —F AR 34,737 410,435 32,500 262,500
After 1 year but within —FEER
5 years HELA - 2,481 - -
34,737 412,916 32,500 262,500
The Group is the lessee in respect of office premises REBAFELCEHENPAETAAA -
held under operating leases. The leases typically run MO —BFRE—F W EERER
for an initial period of one year, with an option to BTEMBIEREEDN - FIBEHENHTRE
renew the lease when all terms are renegotiated. HARES -
The leases do not include a contingent rental.
(d) Environmental contingencies (d) BREIREE
The Group has not incurred any significant REE W ARR RSB E S EEEMER
expenditure for environment remediation and has T IR B 2 RS AR R B IR SR AR
not accrued any amounts for environmental FIEEEFMERRIE - RERITE
remediation relating to its operations. Under existing Bl EREREISEETMERNERNG
legislation, management believes that there are no BRAAEEEEBEERAEFENE
probable liabilities that will have a material adverse & o RERFHER LRI FEER -
effect on the financial position or operating results FERAREL BERREEMEIE R
of the Group. Laws and regulations protecting the REESRZETHBPAEZ  AJPERE
environment have generally become more stringent B 5T S AR A RIBE 1 - ZE T HARA
in recent years and could become more stringent in E=84E
the future. Environmental liabilities are subject to
considerable uncertainties which affect the Group'’s
ability to estimate the ultimate cost of remediation
efforts. These uncertainties include:
(i) the exact nature and extent of the () BLUREBRAEESRARNERE
contamination at the mines and processing ERE
plants;
(i) the extent of required cleanup efforts; iy  FTRBEIENEE
210 DING HE MINING HOLDINGS LIMITED SHEgiERERLDH
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34 COMMITMENTS (continued)
(d) Environmental contingencies (continued)

(i) varying costs of alternative remediation
strategies;

(iv) changes in environmental remediation

requirements; and

(v)  the identification of new remediation sites.

The amount of such future cost is indeterminable
due to such factors as the unknown magnitude of
possible contamination and the unknown timing and
extent of the corrective actions that may be

required. Accordingly, the outcome of
environmental liabilities under proposed for future
environmental legislation cannot be reasonably
estimated at present and could be material.

35 MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS
Save as disclosed in Note 28 to the consolidated financial
statements in relation to the Loan Capitalisation
completed on 14 August 2014, there is no other major
non-cash transaction during the year ended 31 December
2014,

34

35

e BRI

A& ()

(d) RRIREE @)
(i) BEAHERIE RN TRKA
(iv) BRFEFEBORERE &
V) ZAEMEARE R T R R RERR o
MR EAREE R EE LSRR ZIZENAT
Rz #REmOEIBRMEZESER
- R EAREE R KA R LU AR N
e HAMBEGEMMAF PR
RVEFREZRVREENRRAE A
BARER/EAX -

TEFRRERS

Bia M BRRME2AFEEFENR T —N

FAATHBEERNERERNI BE-F

—HFE+ A=+ -BIFETEEMEZIE

ANNUAL REPORT £ 2014 211



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fr & M| R EE

36 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

212

(a) Corporate guarantees issued

As at 31 December 2014, the Company has issued
corporate guarantees totalling approximately
RM184,600,000 (equivalent to approximately
HKD409,767,000) (2013: RM184,600,000 (equivalent
to approximately HKD436,987,000)) to Bank Rakyat
in respect of bank loan facilities granted to CVMSB.
For details of the contingency upon default of
CVMSB on the secured bank loans owing to Bank
Rakyat, please refer Note 36(c) below.

As at 31 December 2014, the Company has issued a
corporate guarantee totalling RM850,000 (equivalent
to approximately HKD1,887,000) (2013: RM850,000
(equivalent to approximately HKD2,012,000)) to a
supplier in respect of the purchase of liquefied
petroleum gas made by CVMSB.

As at 31 December 2014, the Company has issued
corporate guarantees totalling RM133,004
(equivalent to approximately HKD300,000) (2013:
RM222,768 (equivalent to approximately
HKD530,000)) for finance lease creditors in respect
of the purchase of motor vehicles and equipment by
CVMSB.

In respect of the Company’s corporate guarantee
provided in relation to above other financing
facilities granted to a supplier of liquefied petroleum
gas made by CVMSB and the guarantee given to
finance lease creditors of motor vehicles and
equipment purchased by CVMSB, the directors of
the Company consider the possibility of being
materialised is remote and immaterial. The directors
of the Company consider that no such liabilities are
required to be recognised as at 31 December 2014
and 2013.

The Company has not recognised any deferred
income in respect of the corporate guarantees as its
fair value cannot be reliably measured and its
transaction price was nil for the years ended 31
December 2014 and 2013.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

36 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)
(b) Contingent liability arising from default

(0

of convertible bonds

As explained in Notes 2(b)(vi), 2(b)(vii) and 26 to the
consolidated financial statements, the Matured
Bonds and Victory Dragon Bonds had become due
and payable at their principal amounts if any of their
holders serves a notice on the Company
subsequent to 1 December 2014 as a result of the
Non-redemption by the Company or an event of
default occurs. Pursuant to the convertible bond
agreements, at any time after the convertible bonds
have become payable, the respective convertible
bondholders may without further notice institute
such proceedings as it may think fit to enforce
payment of the monies due.

Contingent liability arising from default
of secured bank loans

As explained in Notes 2(b)(viii) and 27 to the
consolidated financial statements, legal actions will
be commenced against CYMSB including all its
corporate guarantors if CYMSB failed, neglected or
refused to settle the Qutstanding Loan within the
given period.

As at the approval date of the consolidated financial
statements, CVMSB has not yet settled the
Outstanding Loan and is expected unlikely to settle
the Outstanding Loan within the stipulated period
set out in the Letter from Bank Rakyat dated 17
March 2015. Bank Rakyat has the right to
commence any litigation against the Company and
CVMSB. As at the approval date of the consolidated
financial statements and per Company’s
announcement dated 31 March 2015, the board of
directors of the Company is in the process of
assessing the financial impact on the Group in
relation to the breach of terms of the Proposal. The
Company and CVMSB shall use their best efforts
with an intention to further negotiate with Bank
Rakyat to ease the repayment term. It is expected
that in the event that a proposal cannot be reached
between CVMSB and Bank Rakyat, there would be
material adverse impact on the financial position of
the Group as a whole.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

37 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY

214

TRANSACTIONS

During the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013, in
addition to the transactions and balances disclosed in
Note 25 to the consolidated financial statements, the
following related party transactions took place between
the Group and related parties on terms mutually agreed
by the parties concerned.

Name of party
BESER

Ho Wah Genting Berhad ("HWGB")

Ho Wah Genting Berhad ([HWGB])

Ho Wah Genting Holiday Sdn. Bnd. ("HWGH")

Ho Wah Genting Holiday Sdn. Bnd. (THWGH J)

Ho Wah Genting Poipet Resorts Sdn. Bhd. ("HWGP")
Ho Wah Genting Poipet Resorts Sdn. Bhd. ([HWGP ])
HWG Tin Mining Sdn. Bhd. ("HWGTM")

HWG Tin Mining Sdn. Bhd. ([HWGTM )

Majuperak Energy Resources Sdn. Bhd. (“MERSB")
Majuperak Energy Resources Sdn. Bhd. (TMERSB )
Dato’ Lim Hui Boon

2 & Lim Hui Boon

Perak State Development Corporation (“PSDC")
Perak State Development Corporation ([PSDCJ)

PT Ho Wah Genting

PT Ho Wah Genting

Particulars of significant transactions between the Group
and the above related parties are as follows:
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Relationship
2R

A shareholder of the Company
RARPEE

A subsidiary company of HWGB
HWGB EY T & 2 7

An associate of HWGB

HWGB A9 & A ]

A subsidiary of HWGB

HWGB &9 I /& A 7]

A subsidiary of PSDC

PSDC K I A 7]

A father of a director
—BEENR

A shareholder of the Company
RARPEE

A subsidiary of HWGB

HWGB #Y T /& 2 7
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

37 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 37 EXBEIRS (#)
TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(@) Recurring transactions (@) REXS
2014
—ZT-nF
HKD
BT
Office rent payable to: ENBRAEHE T
HWGB HWGB 107,048 177,238

Rental income from drilling machines  FEW T 71| B8 3E 77 B 1R

receivable from: HEWA :
HWGTM HWGTM 28,186 27,273
Purchase of flight tickets from: MTAEESEERE
HWGP HWGP 269,855 305,655
Maintenance fee payable to: JEfHEEET
MERSB MERSB 883,140 974,810
(b) Amount due from a related party (b) PEWERESFKIE

2014
—2-nmFE

HKD
BT

HWGTM HWGTM 36,391 9,476

ANNUAL REPORT £ 2014 215



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

37 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 37 ERBERIRS &)
TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(c) Amount due to a member of staff (c) ERBEIXE

Dato’ Lim Hui Boon 2 & Lim Hui Boon 2,015,329 4,101,894
The amount due is unsecured, interest-free and has FZHEAEER B BEETERE -
no fixed terms of repayment.

(d) Amounts due to related parties (d) ENBESRE
2014
—Z—mF
HKD
BT
HWGH HWGH 46,579 -
HWGB HWGB 8,879 777,048
HWGP HWGP = 251,249
MERSB MERSB 2,014,428 1,210,829
PT Ho Wah Genting PT Ho Wah Genting 313,746 -
2,383,632 2,239,126
The amounts are trade in nature, unsecured, ZERIBERESME  mEHR 2EEE
interest free and have no fixed terms of repayment. BEENRE -
(e) Key management personnel (e) FEEBEAEME

remuneration

Directors’ fees E=Ne 1,816,040 362,520
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind &4 -~ 28 R EWFZE 1,391,553 2,812,693
Retirement scheme contributions RIKE TR 51,288 42,751

3,258,881 3,217,964
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

38 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES
In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following accounting
judgements:

(a)

(b)

Going concern

As disclosed in Note 2(b), the consolidated financial
statements have been prepared on a going concern
basis. The appropriateness of the going concern
basis is assessed after taking into consideration all
relevant available information about the future of
the Group, including proposed measures as
described in Note 2 and cash flow projections for
the year ending 31 December 2015. Such forecasts
and projections about the future inherently involve
uncertainties. Actual results could differ significantly
and hence render the adoption of the going concern
basis not appropriate.

Current and deferred taxation

The Group is subject to income taxes in various
jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required in
determining the provision for income taxes. There
are transactions and calculations for which the
ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the
ordinary course of business. The entities within the
Group recognise liabilities for potential tax
exposures based on estimates of whether additional
taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of
these matters is different from the amounts that
were initially recorded, such differences will impact
the current and deferred taxation provisions in the
financial period in which such determination is
made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and certain tax losses are recognised as
when management considers it is probable that
future taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences will impact the
recognition of deferred tax and tax in the periods in
which such estimate is changed.

e BRI
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(b) EMRIELBE

AEBEBBNZ ERDEERBOMER - R
EEMSHBERAELERAE - 5T
R 5 RETEHARN B EEBBEHARE
HEREORBETE - ARBERNERREZ
BAMMBINA BN EREERAR
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fr & M| R EE

38 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

218

()

(d)

Useful lives of property, plant and
equipment

Management determines the estimated useful lives
of and related depreciation charges for its property,
plant and equipment. This estimate is based on the
actual useful lives of assets of similar nature and
functions. It could change significantly as a result of
significant technical innovations and competitor
actions in response to industry cycles. Management
will increase the depreciation charges where useful
lives are less than previously estimated lives, or will
write-off or write-down technically obsolete or non-
strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold.

Impairment of property, plant and
equipment

The Group reviews the carrying amounts of the
assets at the end of each reporting date to
determine whether there is objective evidence of
impairment. When indication of impairment is
identified, management prepares discounted future
cashflow to assess the differences between the
carrying amount and value in use and provided for
impairment loss. In determining the value-in-use of
certain assets and liabilities, the Group makes
assumptions of the effects of uncertain future
events on those assets and liabilities at the end of
the reporting date. These estimates involve
assumptions about such items as risk adjustment to
cash flows or discount rate used, future changes in
salaries and future changes in prices affecting other
costs. The Group's estimates and assumptions are
based on the expectations of future events and are
reviewed periodically. Any change in the
assumptions adopted in the cash flow forecasts
would increase or decrease in the provision of the
impairment loss and affect the Group’s net asset
value.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

38 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND

ESTIMATES (continued)

(e) Impairment of goodwill, and exploration
and evaluation assets
Determining whether exploration and evaluation
assets and goodwill (collectively referred to as “CGU
of exploration for iron ore, coal and manganese”
and “CGU of extraction and bottling of mineral
water”) are impaired require estimation of the value-
in-use of the CGUs to which these assets have been
allocated. The value-in-use calculation requires the
Group to estimate the future cash flows expected to
arise from the CGU and a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value. Where the
actual future cash flows are less than expected, a
material impairment loss may arise.

The carrying amounts of goodwill, and exploration
and evaluation assets at the end of reporting period
were HKDNil and HKD41,660,400 (2013: HKDNil and
HKD151,770,300), respectively, after impairment
losses of HKDNil and HKD108,208,053 were
recognised during the year ended 31 December
2014 (2013: HKD111,180,501 and HKD207,562,580)
respectively. Details of the impairment losses
calculation are provided in Notes 14 and 15 to the
consolidated financial statements.

39 NON-ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER THE END
OF THE REPORTING PERIOD
Save as disclosed in Notes 2(b), 15, 26(a) and 27 to the
consolidated financial statements, there are no material
non-adjusting events subsequent to the end of the
reporting period and up to the approval date of the
consolidated financial statements.
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e BRI

40

41

220

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

Up to the approval date of the consolidated financial
statements, the HKICPA has issued a number of new and
revised standards and Interpretations which are not yet
effective for the year ended 31 December 2014 and which
have not been adopted in the consolidated financial
statements. These include the followings which may be
relevant to the Group and the Company.

40

CHEMESRESBEZE-F—NFE+_-A
=+ - BLEFEERAHET REETE
AIRBREBUESTRNTZE

BEERAUBHRERMEAN L BESHAE
EEM—RNEE T -NF+-_A=+—H
LEFE HARER BERA WIS IRE TR RN
FIRAERT R Nt o A EAKE R ARE
TRBHIFNR] RSB RT R R T -

Effective for accounting periods

beginning on or after
RTIBEHARERBROSTHHIRER

Amendments to HKAS 19, Defined benefit plans:
Employee contributions
BEASERNE19RIER] - REEFEE - ESHEX

Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 cycle
CEEFR T F AR E B &R F R

Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013 cycle
SR —FERCE = FHANE B EREGERAFE N

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38, Clarification of
acceptable methods of depreciation and amortisation

BEREGFTERE 165 BB SR ERIF 38K AUSHT -
JEB A BT E K i 5 =

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers
BEMERELERE 1SR - FEEAIZ WA

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments
BB HHREERFEN - 2T A

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
the impact of these amendments, which are expected to
be in the period of initial application. So far it has
concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely to have a
significant impact on the Group’s or the Company’s
results of operations and financial position.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified in
order to conform with the current year’s presentation.
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1 July 2014
—F-HEHFEA—H

1July 2014
—E-WNFE+A—H

1July 2014
—ET-NHFEH—H

1 January 2016
—ET-RF—H—H

1 January 2017
S

1 January 2018
—E-N\F¥—H—H
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